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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
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80th Anniversary Celebration

0f  BRAEARANER I AAFERBR AL ARERRTOATERAGEE BRIHET - BREES
BAY o BB AT EHAT PR ARBAE S BIRT REBERAT - R EARLANENSBHE BT
BESEEABURERS R FET ST EEE  BARAAHEYAS BELAAARE  HHZEE -
BENECE SRMMBTIEAEA BERES EARUSEE ASEREE  FEAS FZEEIAS .
EENEEE  BRAS EEABZHEAARRRAGRE FOOEBREALBRAE OSANRERE
AEBEESEHE R  UREFEARRTEEAS ERRIRA  EEREF BIARZHE0A2
R HRE R ERBTAL0EE o

In September, the Bank held an official ceremony in Hong Kong to celebrate the 74th anniversary of the founding of the People's
Republic of China and the 80th anniversary of the founding of Chiyu Bank by Mr. Tan Ka Kee, with more than 500 guests attended. Main
officials from Fujian Provincial Party Committee and Provincial Government, The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, The Liaison Office of the Central People's Government in the Hong Kong S.A.R., The Commissioner's Office of China’s Foreign
Ministry in the Hong Kong S.A.R., Xiamen and Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee and Municipal Government and other main
officials from the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the Hong Kong deputies to the National People's
Congress, the Hong Kong members of the National Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference, leaders
of Hong Kong and Macao Chinese enterprises and financial institutions, dignitaries of the Hong Kong Fujian and overseas Chinese
community, renowned experts and scholars, representatives of the University of Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Hong Kong Chu Hai College, Xiamen University, Huagiao University and alumni associations, Southeast Asian Overseas Chinese
Associations and chambers of commerce, guests of Tan Ka Kee charity organizations and foundations and other sectors, as well as the
management of Xiamen International Bank; shareholders, directors, customers and employees of Chiyu Bank, to celebrate Chiyu Bank's
80th anniversary together.

£RIRITHEMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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At the ceremony, the book “Tan Kah Kee and Chiyu Bank” was officially released together with the “Chiyu Bank Centenary Vision”. The
plague unveiling ceremony of Chiyu Bank Museum of History and Culture and the “Kan Kee Spirit” torch relay were also successfully

held.
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80th Anniversary Celebration

£RIRITAMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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Promoted Chiyu Bank’s 80th anniversary online and
offline including, SOGO Mega TV advertisement, Hong
Kong Tramways, bus and bus stop advertisements, and
social media.
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Towards High-quality Development

68 MEABRTEREMVCEEBSERNMT-—F—BKITFRRNES - EAEREIEEBEERT W
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R 8 T PR ER o

On June 7th, the Ten Years of Achievements and Visions of the Belt & Road Initiative — The Bauhinia Cultural Forum, jointly organized
by Chiyu Bank and Bauhinia Culture Group, was held in Hong Kong. During the forum, the plaque unveiling ceremony of Chiyu Bank's
Cross-Border and Overseas Chinese Finance Department was held, which marked the beginning of a new phase of the Bank’s further
deepen its services for the “One Belt, One Road” project.

TR BERATHIRHEEESRERSRRB AR [ RTHERER KERRTS2ENMERG I BIREMFEE]
[REFREIMBRE -

On July 19th, Chiyu Bank won the “Grand Prize” and the “Best Solution Award” at the first Outstanding Cross-Border Financial Services
Awards presentation ceremony organized by Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong.

£RIRITAMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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In March, Mr. Zheng Wei, the Bank’s Chief Executive, attended the plaque unveiling ceremony of the Secretariat of the Consultative
Committee on Fujian-Hong Kong Co-operation and was awarded the certificate of appointment as a member of the Consultative
Committee.
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Towards High-quality Development
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Chiyu Bank has once again won the “Best Bank in the GBA" at the 4th GBA Navigation Award Presentation Ceremony and
Development Forum, which was jointly organized by Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group, Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, and the GBA Fintech Promotion Association. It's the fourth consecutive year for Chiyu Bank to win this award and the first
time to win the “Excellent Financial Services Award in the GBA".

£RIRITAMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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In August, the Bank and GoldenSun Group held
a strategic collaboration signing ceremony in
Xiamen, embarking a new chapter of co-operation
and development.

NR  ERBITEFMAEEXIITE
BEEBSRBRB P OBEEER
EmEIT -

In December, the relocation of Chiyu
Bank’s Xiamen Jimei Sub-branch and
the plaque unveiling ceremony of the
International Financial Services Centre
was successfully held.

2B A THNERBMNMEBSRTEKS
FiEEERN  HEEBRBEETRE

In February, a strategic collaboration agreement
signing ceremony was held between the Bank and
the Hong Kong Community of Fuzhou Associations,
embarking a new chapter of Fujian-Hong Kong co-
operation.
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Actively Fulfilling Corporate Social Responsibility

REBRERAMRIHER HK 38 RERESHESETIEEFAZRESTNRYBTEHKSE
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In line with Mainland’s strategies in enhancing science and technology, a strategic collaboration agreement signing
ceremony was held between the Tan Kah Kee Fund Association and the Overseas Chinese Charity Foundation of China in

Shenzhen in March.

£RIRITAMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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Chiyu Bank held the “Above Finance, Together with Chiyu” Charity Donation Ceremony and a kick-off ceremony for the celebration of
the Bank's 80th Anniversary. On the occasion of the 80th Anniversary of the founding of Chiyu Bank, the Bank continues to expand
its support for education in Hong Kong and care for the livelihood of the underprivileged to live up to Mr. Tan Kah Kee's initiative of
“supporting schools with proceeds of the bank”.

EARERYEESnNEBET KERBEB100
BERXRVIEAREREBBREEZS |-

ERRITAEARERBBEESIREBE 1008 T -

Chiyu Bank donated HK$1 million to Chiyu Tan Kah Kee
Education Foundation. Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation donated HK$1
million to The Hong Kong Polytechnic University for the setup

of the “Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Fintech Scholarship”.

EARERABEECHEBHRBERBFVRIIE
ERERVEESRES IREXARERKEES
SRR o

ERRITANBELESSREBEI0B TR
[ERBTHNRSERSETEREEER | -

Chiyu Bank donated HK$1 million to the Full Caring

A signing ceremony was held between Chiyu Tan Kah Kee
Education Foundation and Hong Kong Chu Hai College for
the setup of the “Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation
Scholarship” and “Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation
Academic Achievement Award”.

Foundation for the setup of “Chiyu Bank — Taxi Drivers
& Operators Association Members' Emergency Living
Assistance Charitable Program”.
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Actively Fulfilling Corporate Social Responsibility

NA EERERHEESTEHE
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Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation
has made the first title sponsorship
of the "Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education
Foundation Outstanding Teachers
Recognition Scheme — Outstanding
Class Teacher and Outstanding Teaching
Award”, to recognize teachers with
outstanding performance and giving
back to education.

£RIRITAMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

8R  F=EERTELERERER
LEEEREEEERZRWEIERM
BEESERLEHRNER 28
EREBRERERERS

On August 30th, the award presentation
ceremony of the Third International
Secondary School Students’ General
Knowledge Contest on Tan Kah Kee and
the commencement of the Xiamen Study
Tour were successfully held. The number
of participating schools and teams has
reached a record high.




ERARERHYBEECEEE=F[2A
HEEEEES BN BFHEbEEE
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Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation
fully support “The Community Chest Medical
Assistance Fund” by making a donation for
the third consecutive year, with a cumulative
donation amount of nearly HK$1 million.

68 REDRSHBERER
ARHERRHETEZLEN
i SERERBEESH
B MEN(ETRES)HE
BBEEE -

In order to promote integrated
education and raise public
awareness of students with special
education needs, Chiyu Tan Kah Kee
Education Foundation has given
special support and sponsorship to
the repeat performance of “1 Am
Not Stephen Hawking” in Hong
Kong.
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Awards & Recognition

TR ARITTHARBREEETSEENTHRETHRESZTRE
TERBKEHE -

On July 1st, Mr. Zheng Wei, Chief Executive of the Bank, was awarded the
Medal of Honor by Mr. John Lee, Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.

RTEEE_FHREFTER
TESEZIHKBA AR EE
2023]

The Bank was awarded “HKIB Talent
Development Award 2023" by the
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers for
the second consecutive year.

£RIRITAMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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The Bank has been awarded the “Best Corporate Social
Responsibility Award — Gold” under “Best HR Awards
2023" of CTgoodjobs for the fifth consecutive year for
its “people-oriented” philosophy. This year, the Bank
was also awarded the “Best Rewards and Recognition
Strategy Award — Grand”, which recognized the Bank’s

FTEAF=-FESAREMPERER2023-mE
BESBCRAE] -

The Bank has won “Awards for Excellence in Finance 2023 -
Brand Value Award for Excellence in CSR" from Ming Pao for
the third consecutive year.

contribution in fulfilling its corporate social responsibility
in the areas of environment, sustainability, community
partnership, and education, as well as the Bank's efforts
in fostering and caring for its employees.

ERBITEBEF0FESRE
HEREHEERXEARRE

RIEE -

Chiyu Bank has been awarded the
Caring Company Logo by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service for
the tenth consecutive year.
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Awards & Recognition

ERBTEMNITEEHBERZNIBIEFERERIBMNERET |RIE -

Chiyu Bank's Fuzhou Branch was named “2023 China Best Employer Award — Fuzhou Preferred Employer of the Year” by Zhaopin.

ERBTEMNOTERERRNBERFEFLETIRE -

Chiyu Bank's Fuzhou Branch was awarded the “2023 Fujian Outstanding Employer of the Year” by Liepin.

£RIRITAMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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203 REFEFNEEIRE -

Chiyu Bank's Xiamen Branch
was awarded the “2023 Fujian
Outstanding Employer of the Year”
by Liepin.

SERBITRYIDITHEEEER
B[2023ERFEFNEE |55 -

Chiyu Bank’s Shenzhen Branch was
awarded the "2023 Guangdong
Outstanding Employer of the Year” by
Liepin again.
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W sHEsE Financial Highlights
(EEF)
(Restated)
1k
2023 2022 Change
24 For the year ﬁfi,:gg—g ’Eﬁtgg +- %
FERURE SEMH R 248 A Net operating income before impairment
allowances 2,290,029 2,937,093 -22.03
e el Operating profit 251,143 1,063,460 -76.38
PR AT A Profit before taxation 241,379 1,045,447 76.91
FREA Profit for the year 176,525 902,668 -80.44
REESEH At year-end %ﬁiﬁ;{g /ﬁpﬁtgg +- %
N Total equity 18,269,008 17,863,372 +2.27
ELSE T KSR A Issued and fully paid up share capital 6,577,871 6,577,871 -
AL Total assets 184,652,243 181,870,551 +1.53
FAEstLER Financial ratios % % +- %
SRS R (O] Return on average total assets ' 0.10 052 -0.42
SEH R SR RE RS (O] e 2 Return on average shareholders’ equity 2 0.31 4.83 -4.52
AT ALER Cost to income ratio 60.28 45.41 +14.87
BELE® 3 Loan to deposit ratio 61.80 62.92 112
eI S LA (E 4 Average value of liquidity coverage ratio *
FTE First quarter 205.47 184.03 +21.44
FTE Second quarter 176.10 197.00 -20.90
BEFE Third quarter 191.52 186.35 +5.17
SBIURE Fourth quarter 179.21 205.67 -26.46
TBEE S FHEIRINZERL4E  Quarter-end value of net stable funding
B ratio °
FTE First quarter 123.47 120.19 +3.28
BoEE Second quarter 125.10 120.04 +5.06
EEFE Third quarter 120.95 120.11 +0.84
EIUZEE Fourth quarter 123.75 121.65 +2.10
HEE R 6 Total capital ratio ® 17.81 16.29 +1.52
A

1. P E R

Return on average total assets

2. PR R A m R

Return on average shareholders’ equity

Profit for the year

HEEEE9E

Daily average balance of total assets

IR TR EA TR

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank

AR THE SR IEAGHE AT -0 S R R BRI 9 (E

Average of the beginning and ending balance of capital and reserves

attributable to equity holders of the Bank
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Financial Highlights (continued)

3. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross advances

ZH o

- BN S LLRAVISIE SRR (BRIT3E CRigh
) A RiEEEemERE (285 ) 8t
BB RUE R AR T Z AR SRR ~ M5 AT
BB TR AR B ER T L -

FEEESIFHEILRTIRE (SR73% CREhts) #
HI) Kz g mmE B E SR AR T 2 A
HRERIE ~ IBIMI T R A mI R e EE bR

71

ST RS (RITSE (A MR Koy
B E R R B A EOR AT Z A
B~ IBINITT BARENT B A S RRAAR S EERE

e
EHE -

to customers.

. The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis

which comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries
of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (‘HKMA”) for its
regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

. The net stable funding ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises

the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries of the Bank
specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

. Total capital ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the

positions of local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries of the Bank
specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2023, despite the fading impact of the epidemic and the gradual return of
economic activities to normal, external economic recovery is slower than
expected. Geopolitical risks have intensified, and domestic risks continue to
deteriorate asset quality. The global financial market remains uncertain, posing
a significant challenge to the operation of the local banking industry.

Although the banking industry faces numerous challenges, the Group continues
to proactively implement various management strategies and employ different
means to address these challenges, such as optimizing business structures,
enhancing quality and efficiency, strengthening risk management, and actively
and effectively mitigating potential risks. Despite the decrease in total lending
scale in the Hong Kong banking industry, the Group's loan portfolio has
maintained steady growth throughout the year, showing a trend of steady
progress and improvement.

In 2023, the Group further leveraged the advantage of having numerous
overseas Chinese clients by establishing a robust Overseas Chinese Financial
Services Department. The Group successfully launched the "Overseas Chinese
Preferred Bank" brand and actively engaged with domestic and overseas
Chinese business associations and communities to deepen our connections
with the overseas Chinese community. By developing tailored financial services
for overseas Chinese clients and expanding our reach, the Group have
strengthened our customer base.

With branches in Hong Kong, together with 3 branches and 4 sub-branches in
Fujian and Shenzhen in the Mainland China, the Group remains committed to
enhancing facilities of our branches in order to improve our corporate image as
well as to provide better services to our customers. This is also to represent our
ongoing pursuit of sincere, flexible, customized and professional cross-border
banking and financial services for our customers.
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2023 £F > AL EH RIS RIS S R B
176,525,000 7T » BXE4ERY) 80.44% » F 22
HFER S AR ~ HfrRlE T (55
IETHE > DUSCBE S RS AT EL - P9
FRORE 7 (0] e R R P P R E B SR o il s
0.31%%2 0.10% -

P B Ryt 1,576,751,000 7T %
2022 fEE 12.55% - FEEIFFE UG
R TR 19 RG22 0.89% » MM FH4E A
BRI T 5.89% - JRARISE K AL
A EFE TR 14.33% 2 8% 604,662,000
7T - $LE S H Rl 1,380,391,000 7T 0 [FIEE
BN 3.51% - MEA ST A LSRR LA F
BTt 14.87 {EEH 3B % 60.28% -

FE SRR E 2B (S (TS 658,495,000
7T R R RN 540,008,000 7T tEE
EFEIHI A 118,487,000 JT - RiEIHH
FHIRELREE 2022 4R BT 0.15 (HE 73R
2.31% -

HE 2023 FK > AEFGFEHEE B
184,652,243,000 7T > & 2022 4 JE B A0
1.53% - & 5 B Ry i 90,665,844,000 T
WEFE ETF 231% - &0 BB g
146,717,601,000 7T - # % 4 &€ 75 7+
4.18% -
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BB AR S - AR ER e R
TREAYEE RIS - W hNSRE b E R - F A8
s B DU S [ B AV ER S - ITLIETT
HERE - WIEEFH RFPE -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Financial Review

For the year 2023, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$176,525,000, decreased by 80.44% from last year. This was mainly due to
decrease in net interest income, increase in mark to market loss in other financial
assets, and increase in net charge of impairment allowances. The return on
average shareholders’ equity and the return on average total assets were 0.31%
and 0.10% respectively.

Net interest income for the year was HK$1,576,751,000, decreased by 12.55%.
It was mainly due to net interest margin decreased by 19 basis points to 0.89%
compared with 2022, but increase in average interest bearing assets by 5.89%.
Net fee and commission income decreased by 14.33% to HK$604,662,000.
Operating expenses increased by 3.51% to HK$1,380,391,000, while the cost to
income ratio increased by 14.87 percentage points to 60.28%.

In 2023, net charge of impairment allowances was HK$658,495,000, while in
2022 was net charge of HK$540,008,000, increased by HK$118,487,000 as
compared with last year. The classified loan ratio increased by 0.15 percentage
points to 2.31% compared with the end of 2022.

As of 31 December 2023, the total consolidated assets of the Group increased by
1.53% to HK$184,652,243,000 compared with the end of 2022. Advances to
customers increased by 2.31% to HK$90,665,844,000. Customer deposits also
increased by 4.18% to HK$146,717,601,000.

Prospect

Looking forward to 2024, despite the anticipated global economic slowdown,
escalating geopolitical risks, and ongoing risk releases, mainland China will
continue to transition between new and old driving forces, experience moderate
economic recovery, and implement supportive policies. This will create a complex
situation where opportunities and challenges are intertwined. The Group will
pursue a stable and steady development strategy, strengthen risk management,
and uphold the concept of serving society. The Group will continue to fulfil our
commitment to corporate social responsibilities and a dedicated customer
service.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Founded in 1943 in Yong'an, Fujian Province and started business in Hong
Kong in 1947, Chiyu Bank has been committed to its original aspiration of
“setting up of a bank to support schools and help the hometown” and the
principle of “taking root in Hong Kong, connecting with overseas Chinese and
serving the community”, promoting financial inclusion and providing quality and
convenient banking services to Chinese customers in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and overseas for 80 years. Chiyu Bank has seized the opportunity of the
establishment of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area(“GBA”)
to promote the construction of the Bank’s multi-licensing system and achieve
high quality cross-border and cross-boundary development. In addition to
pursuing steady development of its banking business, the Bank is also
dedicated to carrying forward the "Kah Kee Spirit", actively promoting the
economic and social development of the country, and fulfiling its social
responsibility by organizing and participating in various types of public welfare
activities to serve Hong Kong and the motherland.

1. Providing comprehensive financial services

Chiyu Bank has always been committed to serving the country's social and
economic development, responding to and supporting the initiatives of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (“‘HKMA”), actively promoting financial inclusion, and
providing quality and convenient banking services to the public, industrial and
commercial enterprises with a friendly, flexible and professional image.

(1) Expanding the "circle of friends" through overseas Chinese
finance

During the year, the Bank inaugurated the "Cross-border Business and
Overseas Chinese Financial Department", established and strengthened its
overseas Chinese financial units of its head office and branches. Based on the
deepening of cross-border and cross-boundary interconnected business
development, Chiyu Bank strives to construct the five major systems of
"gathering people, expanding ways, building systems, improving service, and
establishing brand", to be widely connected with the overseas Chinese, and
start a new chapter of overseas Chinese finance development, and provide
high-quality and diversified financial services for all the overseas Chinese and
overseas Chinese enterprises.

In the year of 2023, the Bank actively connected with and integrated into
domestic and overseas Chinese associations and platforms to facilitate
communication and interaction between banks and overseas Chinese. The
Bank signed strategic cooperation agreements with various Fujian associations
in Hong Kong, Fujian Provincial and Municipal Overseas Chinese Chambers of
Commerce and important overseas Chinese clients. The Bank also visited
Fujian and other Chinese associations and chambers of commerce, overseas
Chinese clients and peer financial institutions in the Southeast Asian region.
And the Fuzhou Branch and Xiamen Branch have been elected as the standing
vice-presidential units of the Provincial and Municipal Overseas Chinese
Chambers of Commerce which will help to strengthen the development
positioning of "Connecting with overseas Chinese", and to continue to broaden
the basis of cooperation with overseas Chinese communities.

(2) Cross-border and cross-boundary interconnected business
gains speed

By the end of 2023, Chiyu Bank's cross-border and cross-boundary
interconnected business covered a wide range of businesses, such as personal
and corporate deposits, loans, life insurance and fund investment, and
registered a steady growth in both southbound and northbound Cross-boundary
Wealth Management Connect Scheme related business. Meanwhile, Chiyu
Private Equity Fund Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. was selected as one of
the first three “The Qualified Foreign Limited Partnership” (“QFLP”) pilot
enterprises in Shenzhen out of 196 organizations in the city, and Chiyu Bank
has achieved a good trend of progressing on three fronts, namely,
interconnected business, fund business and proprietary investments.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

1. Providing comprehensive financial services (continued)
(3) Green finance unlocks a “new race track”

In line with the theme of green development, we have collaborated with
professional organizations to launch the "Fujian-Hong Kong ESG Index", which
is the first of its kind in cross-border and provincial ESG index compilation, and
has gained recognition from the governments of Fujian and Hong Kong,
supervisory authorities, and domestic and foreign banks, clients, and other
sectors of the community. It has also made a strong impression on the brand of
Chiyu's sustainable development.

Throughout the year, Chiyu Bank joined the Hong Kong Green Finance
Association to actively develop its green finance business in a variety of ways
and fulfill its social responsibility. We significantly increased our green credit
portfolio, which grew by 21% compared to the previous year. Additionally, we
introduced new green loan programs, including the Green Personal Loan
Promotion Program, Green Mortgage Program, and Green and Sustainable
Business Loan Promotion Program for Micro and Small Enterprises, and saw a
20% growth in green loans compared to the previous year. We are also actively
increasing our holdings of green bond assets and expanding our green bond
underwriting business. By the end of 2023, our holdings of green bonds have
increased by 34.60% compared to 2022.

2, Building a caring and cohesive bank

Chiyu Bank is dedicated to building a warm and distinctive corporate culture,
upholding the spirit of patriotism and love for Hong Kong, and actively
undertaking social responsibility. At the same time, Chiyu Bank values the
development of well-rounded financial professionals, and provides employees
with opportunities for further education to enhance their career growth and
professional skills. This allows mutual growth between the employee and the
bank.

(1) Nurturing financial talents in full force

The Bank actively responds to the HKSAR Government's call to nurture talents
for the industry by providing employment and training programs for those who
wish to pursue a career in the financial industry. The Bank promotes the
development of talent in the three key areas of Engagement, Enabler and
Encouragement (“3Es”). In response to the launch of new module of HKMA's
Professional Qualifications Framework (“PQF”) -Fintech, Green and
Sustainable Finance, in 2023, we actively encouraged our staff to participate in
training courses and gaining relevant certifications. At the same time, we have
joined hands with The Chinese University of Hong Kong to organize a series of
talent exchange activities, such as the "Green Bay Area: A Journey Together:
ESG Sustainable Finance Workshop for the Group's middle and senior
management, in-house training seminars on fintech, and a joint seminar on
sustainability report. These initiatives aim to help our staff cope with business
innovations and future restructuring, promote sustainable development of our
talents, and enhance the Bank's professionalism in the provision of financial
services.

In response to the HKSAR Government's call to attract talents, the Bank
organized and launched job fairs titled “Attracting Talents to Hong Kong,
Together with Chiyu” in Shenzhen, Xiamen, and Fuzhou, in order to attract
talents to work in Hong Kong.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

2. Building a caring and cohesive bank (continued)
(2) Stimulating the driving force of corporate culture

In 2023, several high-profile events were held to celebrate the 80th anniversary
of Chiyu Bank, including the official release of the book named "Tan Kah Kee
and Chiyu Bank", the construction and unveiling of the Chiyu Bank Museum of
History and Culture, the "Above Finance, Together with Chiyu" Charity Donation
Ceremony and Chiyu Bank’s 80th Anniversary Kick-off Ceremony, the Ten
Years of Achievements and Visions of the Belt & Road Initiative - The Bauhinia
Cultural Forum, the 3rd Tan Kah Kee General Knowledge Contest for
International Secondary School Students, the "Kah Kee Spirit" torch relay , and
the Chiyu Bank 80th Anniversary Celebration Ceremony. These activities were
held to raise the Bank's international recognition and brand influence.

The bank has created WeChat official accounts and video account "Voice of
Chiyu", and formed a new media matrix, creating a new joint force of speed,
warmth and strength to promote the 80th anniversary intensively. Throughout
the year the Bank continues to promote the celebration, and further co-construct
the culture of the Bank.

(3) Employee care continues to escalate

The Bank has continuously enriched staff recreational activities and benefits,
upgraded the group health protection and physical check-up plans. With the
80th anniversary of the Bank, we organized a series of "80 Years of Integration
and Friendship" activities for staff to have fun together, presented employees
with special souvenirs for the 80th anniversary of the Bank, planned and carried
out a variety of festive-themed activities. We also organized staff to actively
participate in the Group's various cultural and sports activities and external
activities to enhance their cultural integration. Additionally, the Group has
actively sought external support through various talent policies. The Shenzhen
Branch was granted 10 units under the Talent Housing Program by the local
government, which were allocated to the staff, particularly frontline staff at once,
to enhance their sense of well-being and belonging, and to stimulate their
internal motivation.

Furthermore, Chiyu Bank successfully hosted the 2022 Award Presentation
Ceremony and 80th Anniversary Employee Fun Day, which was attended by
over 1,600 employees and their family members, inspiring all attendees to
pursue their passions and embark on new career chapters.

3. Fulfillment of corporate social responsibility

The year 2023 marked the 110th anniversary of the founding of Jimei School
by Mr. Tan Kah Kee, as well as the 80th anniversary of the founding of Chiyu
Bank by Mr. Tan Kah Kee. The Bank has arranged a range of events to promote
the "Kah Kee Spirit" and fulfill its corporate social responsibility.

(1) Practical actions to benefit the community

Chiyu Bank has always been committed to the well-being of Hong Kong people.
On the occasion of its 80th anniversary, the Bank held the "Above Finance,
Together with Chiyu" Charity Donation Ceremony and donated HK$1 million to
the Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation (the "Foundation")andthe Full
Caring Foundation run by the Taxi Drivers & Operators Association.
respectively, to fulfill the founding principle of Mr. Tan Kah Kee, the patriotic
overseas Chinese leader, of "supporting schools with proceeds of the bank", to
continue to expand its support for education in Hong Kong and its care for the
people's livelihoods of the grassroots in the hope of benefiting the community
more and to proactively carry out the Chinese bank's mission and responsibility
of "Loving the country, Loving Hong Kong, and Serving the community".
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

3. Fulfiliment of corporate social responsibility
(continued)
(1) Practical actions to benefit the community (continued)

In June, the Hong Kong Community Chest (“HKCC”) organized the annual
large-scale TV fund-raising program "The Community Chest Charity Show",
during which the Foundation donated HK$300,000 to the Community Chest
Medical Assistance Fund, marking the third consecutive year for the Foundation
to donate to HKCC. Also, in June, in order to promote integrated education and
raise public awareness of students with special educational needs, the
Foundation supported and sponsored the Hong Kong University of Education's
charitable stage play "l am not Stephen Hawking" to be performed in Hong Kong
again.

(2) Firmly support for the development of education

In line with the Bank's commitment to supporting education, Chiyu Bank
sponsored the 13th National Knowledge Contest for Hong Kong Students for
the fifth consecutive year, helping to promote national education and deepen
Hong Kong students' understanding of the country and its history.

Additionally, Chiyu Bank established the Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation
Limited (“the Foundation”) in 2018 to further promote the development of
education. During the year, Chiyu Bank donated HK$1 million to The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University through the Foundation and established the "Chiyu Tan
Kah Kee Fintech Scholarship"; the "Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation
Scholarship” and the "Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation Academic
Achievement Award" with a donation of HK$1 million to Hong Kong Chu Hai
College. In November, the Foundation also sponsored the "Chiyu Tan Kah Kee
Education Foundation Outstanding Teachers Recognition Scheme -
Outstanding Head Teachers and Outstanding Teaching Awards" jointly
organized by the Hong Kong Chinese Educational Organization and the Head
Teachers Association, in which a total of 32 outstanding head teachers and 31
outstanding teachers from 14 traditional patriotic schools were awarded. From
November to December, the "Flag of Overseas Chinese and the Glory of the
Nation" — Mr. Tan Kah Kee's Life Story Exhibition organized by the Foundation
was held at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the Hong Kong Chu Hai
College respectively.

(3) Expanding the breadth and depth of the inheritance of the
"Kah Kee Spirit"

To promote the understanding of modern Chinese history among Chinese
secondary school students worldwide, and to study the spirit of our
predecessors and enhance international exchanges, Chiyu Bank sponsored the
award presentation ceremony of The 3rd Tan Kah Kee General Knowledge
Contest for International Secondary School Students (“the Contest”) and the
kickoff ceremony of the Xiamen Study Tour at the end of August. The Contest
has been successfully held for three consecutive years since August 2021,
when it was first extended to the international arena through a cloud-based
platform. Thanks to Chiyu Bank's active participation in preparing this year's
competition, the impact of the event has continued to expand. A total of 290
teams from Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Malaysia, the Philippines, and
Singapore registered globally, with a record-breaking 1,450 participants and the
highest number of schools and teams ever. Notably, Singaporean students
participated in the competition for the first time. With the pandemic fading and
life returning to normal, this year's addition of study tour themed “Retracing Kah
Kee's Hometown” brought together winners and outstanding performance
teams from various regions to gather in Xiamen. The tour aims to provide
overseas Chinese children with an opportunity to visit Mr. Tan Kah Kee's
hometown, follow his footsteps, and thus experience the “Kah Kee spirit”.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

3. Fulfiliment of corporate social responsibility
(continued)

(3) Expanding the breadth and depth of the inheritance of "Kah
Kee Spirit"

On the occasion of the 80th anniversary of the founding of Chiyu Bank, torch
relays with the theme of “Passing on the Kah Kee Spirit, Gathering Overseas
Chinese Hearts and Together with Chiyu” were organized at 12 cities where Mr.
Tan Kah Kee had worked and lived. This was a high tribute to Mr. Tan Kah Kee's
initiative of “supporting schools with proceeds of the bank”. The event inspired
all Chiyu Bank employees to never forget the original aspiration of the bank in
the new era.

(4) All staff practicing green environmental protection

Chiyu Bank is committed to environmental protection, with all staff members
practicing environmental protection and actively participating in green public
benefits activities. These include promoting a paperless office, using energy-
efficient appliances and products, reducing waste, avoiding the use of
disposable items and installing electronic sensor taps in toilets, as well as
encouraging staff to recycle, energy conservation and water conservation.
Throughout the year, the Bank continued to support and participate in the
Charter on External Lighting launched by the Hong Kong Environment and
Ecology Bureau, pledging to turn off devices that affect the outdoor environment
at night to reduce the problem of light pollution. The Bank also organized its
staff to actively participate in social welfare activities, such as the Oxfam
Trailwalker, the Southern District Volunteer Service Campaign and the "Duck
Run" campaign on the National Day.

To reduce paper consumption, Chiyu Bank continues to promote online banking
and mobile banking, and encourages customers to use and experience safe,
environmentally friendly, convenient and fast financial services. As of the end of
2023, the number of its e-banking users has recorded a 9% growth compared
to the end of 2022.



LN W
3 4%
Chiyu Banking Corporation Led

EEE T ()

EEEERE ()

4. BIEREEET

FER AT TR & B DR
SREARIRIEELET - NG HAIR

- BRTREE AT B R G e
PR RS NS TR TR
#% 5

- AITOSEERIRTE G THKIB A
SEfEA% 2023 5 ;

- BERTAEEEMRE (J.P. Morgan) 45
S5y 2023 FEFLEBELAHE (2023 Elite
Quality Recognition Award - US Dollar
Clearing) ;

- BRIRTHEEBRAEEEEERSE
BB - KBS SREH RS
GGG BT T 9+2 SBIUEERREA
B T RIS | e T E
AR ERERTIE 0 BEEET
AE VU A - T RS T BRI R
B e R S

- BERIMTEEE S JobMarket SKIREEE1H
Y TR RS B AR T
FRAESIELIRSS |

- BERSTREIE A T U S AR
SHRREE Tk CSR KU | BHIAITE
HHEEMGERD - BITRPE M BERERER
TTHEE = PR

- HEXER{T1E (CTgoodjobs Best HR Awards
2023 ) ol i (A R R R i
EMEEEALE ) EREMMTEE LT
TERLTRSE

- TEIN TSNS T 2023 R
BET  H BN TR =
IR

- FEIN TSRS T 2023 TR IR LR
F 3 P AESRNE T 2023 (R IR
FURTE 35 A TR S RS T 2023
RERIEMRE 13

- RSN TG = A R AR R SR AT M B
EEWNEE SIS EE Nl e SR
BT

- EF T 2023 EEEF TN R
TAESNETEE N R A — 1% -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

4. Awards and Recognition

Throughout the year, we received the following accolades acknowledging the
achievements we have made in fulfilling our corporate responsibility and driving
our business development:

+ Chiyu Bank has won the "Grand Prize" and "Best Solution Award" in Hong
Kong Chinese Financial Association's first-ever Outstanding Cross-
Boundary Financial Services Awards;

« The Bank has been awarded the "HKIB Talent Development Award 2023"
by the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers;

+ Chiyu Bank has been awarded the “2023 Elite Quality Recognition Award” -
US Dollar Clearing by J.P. Morgan;

- Chiyu Bank has once again won the "Best Bank in the GBA" at the 4th GBA
Navigation Award Ceremony and Development Forum, which was jointly
organized by Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group, Hong Kong
Chinese Enterprises Association, and the GBA Fintech Promotion
Association. It's the fourth consecutive year for Chiyu Bank to win this award
and the first time to win the "Excellent Financial Services Award in the GBA";

- Chiyu Bank has once again won “The Employer of Choice Award” by
JobMarket, marking the fifth consecutive year that Chiyu Bank has won the
award;

- Chiyu Bank was once again honored with the “Award for Excellence in CSR”
for its brand value by the Ming Pao Excellence Finance Awards in
recognition of the Bank's deep commitment to overseas Chinese financial
services and the “Kah Kee spirit”, marking the third consecutive year that
Chiyu Bank has been awarded the prestigious award;

- Chiyu Bank has received the "Best Reward & Recognition Strategy Award"
and "Best Corporate Social Responsibility Award" in the Best HR Awards
2023 organized by CTgoodjobs for the fifth consecutive year;

» Fuzhou Branch was honored with the "2023 China Preferred Employer of
the Year" award by Zealot Recruitment for the third consecutive year;

+ Fuzhou Branch was awarded the "2023 Fujian Employer of the Year";
Xiamen Branch was awarded the "2023 Fujian Employer of the Year"; and
Shenzhen Branch was again awarded the "2023 Guangdong Employer of
the Year";

» Fuzhou Branch has received the highest rating in the monitoring and
evaluation of banks' foreign exchange and cross-border RMB businesses
under the self-regulatory framework, marking the third consecutive year for
Fuzhou Branch to win this honor in Fujian Province;

+ Xiamen Branch has been honored with the “First-Class Award” in the
Foreign-invested Unincorporated Financial Institutions Category in the
financial statistics assessment 2023 in Xiamen, Fujian.
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) of Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are
pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together with the
Bank hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2023 (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in Note 37 to
the Financial Statements.

Business Review

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to the
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” and “Unaudited
Supplementary Financial Information — Risk Management” sections of
this annual report. The above sections are part of this report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 36.

No interim dividend was declared during the year.

The Board has proposed to distribute a final dividend of HK$0.0235 per
share for the year ended December 31, 2023 (“2023 Final Dividend”),
based on 2,218,236,000 shares, that is, the total dividend distribution is
HK$52,128,546, which is equivalent to 29.53% of the Bank’s 2023 after-
tax profit, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Bank at the
upcoming annual general meeting (2023 AGM”).

Shares Issued
No share was issued by the Bank during the year.

Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 31 to the
Financial Statements.

Donations

The Bank spares no effort in organising and sponsoring different
community activities with a view to fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility. Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$2,294,932.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Directors”)
during the year and up to date of this report are:

Chairman Wang Xiaojian #

Vice Chairman Zheng Wei

Yu Kwok Chun *

Zhang Dechun #

Weng Rongbiao #

Tan Wan Chye #

Woo Chia Wei *

Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen *

Chiu Ming Wah *

Wong Siu Man (appointed on 1 January 2023)
He Xiuzhen # (appointed on 23 February 2023)
Chan Kar Lok * (appointed on 11 September 2023)
Chan Yiu Fai (retired on 1 January 2023)

Directors

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank, the
appointment of directors will be approved by ordinary resolution or by
the decision of the Board of Directors. Approval from The Hong Kong
Monetary Authority will also be obtained in accordance with the Banking
Ordinance.

All Directors are subject to retirement and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Bank, and the re-election of retiring directors should be subject to the
recommendation and review from the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board before approval is sought from shareholders
at the AGM.

In accordance with Articles 23(4) and 25 of the Bank’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Kar Lok who was appointed by the Board during
the year shall retire and offer for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with Articles 24(2) and 25 of the Bank’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Xiaojian, Mr. Yu Kwok Chun, Mr. Lee Hoi Yin and
Mr. Chiu Ming Wah shall retire and offer for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save for Mr. Wong Siu Man and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai being also director of
certain subsidiaries of the Bank, other directors of the subsidiaries of
the Bank during the year and up to date of this report are:

Fung Chi Lap Pierre

Cheng Arthur

Kwong Kei Man

Vanessa Gilman

Wong Wai Shan
Lee Yuen Hung Kevin

Liu Xiaoji
Zhao Tingting
Xiao Jingyuan
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall
be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liability incurred by
him/her as Director. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit
of Directors against liability which may lawfully be incurred by the Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This annual report complies with the applicable requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2023 have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will retire and offer themselves for re-
appointment at the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Xiaojian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 April 2024
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Biographical Details of Directors

Board of Directors

Mr. WANG Xiaojian
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Master of Business Administration, Intermediate economist, he was appointed
the Chairman and Non-executive Director of the Bank in November
2021.Currently, Mr Wang serves as the Chairman of Xiamen International Bank
Co., Ltd. (Xiamen International Bank), and also the Chairman of Xiamen
International Investment Limited. Previously, Mr Wang had successively served
as Deputy General Manager of Corporate Business Department of Xiamen
Branch and Deputy General Manager of Lujiang Sub-branch and Director of
Administrative Office of Xiamen Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, Deputy Leader of the Preparatory Working Group of Xiamen Rural
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., and Chairman of Xiamen Rural Commercial Bank
Co., Ltd. Concurrently, Mr Wang served as Vice Chairman of Xiamen Xiangyu
Group Co., Ltd. and Chairman of Xiamen Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd.

Mr. ZHENG Wei
Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from the Xiamen University and is a
senior economist, was appointed the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Bank in March 2017 and was appointed the Chief Executive of the Bank in
June 2017 and is a member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, was awarded the Medal of
Honour by The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
was recognized an Honorary Certified Banker title holder by The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. Mr. Zheng is an Executive Director of Xiamen International
Bank. Mr. Zheng was the Deputy General Manager of Xiamen International Bank
and the General Manager of the Shanghai Branch of Xiamen International Bank
from July 2007 to February 2017. Mr. Zheng had also previously served Xiamen
International Bank as the Deputy Manager of the Credit Department, the Deputy
Manager and Manager of the Credit Management Department, the General
Manager of the Zhuhai Branch and the Assistant General Manager of Xiamen
International Bank.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. YU Kwok Chun
Vice Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the MacQuarie University,
Honorary University Fellow of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the
Hong Kong Baptist University and Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
of the City University of Hong Kong, he was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director of the Bank in April 2002 and appointed as Vice Chairman in
December 2018. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the Strategy and
Corporate Governance Commitee of the Bank. Mr. Yu is Chairman of the Yue
Hwa Group and Chairman of Yue Hwa Chinese Products Emporium Limited.
Mr. Yu is active in various social services in Hong Kong as well as in the PRC.
Mr. Yu is Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese.
He is Member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Founding Chairman and First President of the Federation of Hong
Kong Guangdong Community Organizations Limited, Permanent Honorary
Chairman and Vice Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong Association Limited,
Principal Chairman of The Hong Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese
Associations, Committee Member of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, Permanent Honorary Advisor of the Hong Kong Meizhou Federation,
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Overseas Chinese General Association,
Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Hakka Associations, Permanent Honorary
President and Founding Chairman of the Unified Association of Kowloon West
Limited, and Honorary President of the Hong Kong and Kowloon General
Merchandise Merchants’ Association Limited. Mr. Yu is the Vice President of
Overseas Exchange Association of Guangdong Province, Honorary President of
the Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion Association of
Guangdong Province, Chairman of the Board of the Jinan University,
Guangzhou, Vice President of the Jinan University Education and Foundation
Fund Limited, Guangzhou, Honorary President of the Board of Directors of
Jiaying University, Meizhou, Guangdong Province, Vice Chairman of the Board
of Directors of Beijing Chinese Language and Culture College, and Director of
the First Board of Advisory Directors of Sun Yat Sen University, Guangzhou. Mr.
Yu was awarded the honour of Justice of the Peace, Silver Bauhinia Star, Gold
Bauhinia Star and Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region successively in 1998, 1999, 2006 and 2019.

Mr. ZHANG Dechun
Non-executive Director

Bachelor of economics, senior economist, he was appointed a Non-executive
Director of the Bank in December 2021, and served concurrently as Deputy
Manager of Personnel Affairs Department of Xiamen International Bank, Branch
Director of Luso International Banking, Manager of Huli Business Department of
Xiamen International Bank, Assistant General Manager and Deputy General
Manager of Xiamen International Bank, Vice President and General manager of
domestic institution of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. (Xiamen International
Bank),Executive Director and President of Xiamen International Bank and other
positions. Mr Zhang served as Director of Xiamen International Investment Ltd.
and its four subsidiaries (Chiyu International Financial Holdings Limited, Pretty
Won Co.,Ltd., Fuxing Park Development Ltd. and XIB (Nominees) Ltd.),
Shareholder Director of Luso International Banking Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Ms. HE Xiuzhen

Non-executive Director

Ms.He graduated from the on-the-job graduate Program of the Correspondence
School of the Party School of the CPC Central Committee majoring in Economic
Management with a Bachelor's degree in Philosophy. Ms. He has been
appointed as a non-executive Director since February 2023. Ms. He is now the
Executive Vice Minister of the United Front Work Department of Xiamen
Municipal Committee of Fujian Province and the first level inspector. Ms. He is
also the Director of the Overseas Chinese Affairs Office of Xiamen Municipal
People's Government of Fujian Province. Ms. He served successively as deputy
Secretary-General and director of the General Office of Xiamen CPPCC, Deputy
Secretary-General and deputy director of the General Office of Xiamen Municipal
Committee, member of the 12th and 13th CPC Xiamen Municipal Committee,
Standing Committee of the 11th and 12th CPC Xiamen Municipal Committee,
Standing Committee of the 15th and 16th CPC Xiamen Municipal People's
Congress, etc.

Mr. WENG Rongbiao
Non-executive Director

Mr. Weng holds Diploma in Artillery Command from Zhengzhou Antiaircraft
Artillery College. Mr. Weng was appointed a Non-executive Director of the Bank
in May 2021. Mr. Weng is currently the Vice Director of the Committee of Jimei
Schools and the Curator of Tan Kah Kee Museum. Mr. Weng served as Director
of General Office of the United Front Department of Xiamen Municipal CPC
Committee of Fujian Province from December 2015 to August 2020. Mr. Weng
has served successively as Deputy Director of the office and Principal Staff
Member of the United Front Department of Xiamen Municipal CPC Committee of
Fujian Province.

Mr. TAN Wan Chye

Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree from Manchester College of Science
and Technology, University of Manchester, England and a Post Graduate
Diploma in Industrial Administration, he was appointed a Non-executive Director
of the Bank in June 1982. He is also a member of the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee and the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the
largest individual shareholder of the Bank and is the son of Mr. Tan Kong Piat,
the former Chairman of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the Chairman of Tan Kong Piat (Pte)
Ltd, which is a holding company, Tan Kong Piat & Co Pte Ltd, which is an
investment trading company, Asia Industrial Development (Pte) Ltd and Asia
Property Development (Pte) Ltd, which are both property development
companies. He had previously served as a Director of the following companies
importing Chinese canned food and herb, Chung Nam Company (Pte) Ltd, Bin
Hong Co Pte Ltd, Tiong Wan Pte Ltd and Nam Leong Co Sdn Bhd. He took part
in the design & construction of Central Power Stations in England and Singapore.
He is a Chartered Engineer, a Member of the Institute of Mechanical Engineers,
England, and a Member of Institute of Engineers, Singapore. Mr. Tan is active in
the charitable activities in Singapore. He is a board member of Buddhist Lodge
Education Foundation, a board member of Mee Toh School, a Trustee of Kwan
Im Thong Hood Cho Temple and Mee Toh Foundation, they distribute donations
that amount to millions of Singapore Dollars to schools, hospitals and charitable
organisations.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Prof. WOO Chia Wei
Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Master’s Degree and a PhD in Physics from Washington University in
St. Louis in the United States, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Bank in April 2002. He is also a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management Commitee of the Bank.
Prof. Woo is also the Senior Advisor to Shui On Holdings Limited and the
President Emeritus of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, an
Independent Non-executive Director of each of Shanghai Industrial Holdings
Limited and First Shanghai Investments Limited. Prof. Woo was previously the
President, Provost, Department Head, and a Professor of several prominent
universities in the United States of America. Prof. Woo was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star by the Government of Hong Kong, the Commander of the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire by the United Kingdom, as well as Chevalier
de la Legion d’Honneur by the President of France.

Mr. LEE Hoi Yin, Stephen
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Accountancy from City of London
Polytechnic, a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and an Associate Member of The Institute of Internal Auditors, he was
appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank in November
2013. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Risk
Management Committee of the Bank. Mr. Lee has over 30 years’ experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management, at KPMG in London and Hong
Kong. He was an audit partner of KPMG Hong Kong before becoming the
Partner-in-Charge of the Risk & Compliance Advisory practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, the PRC and the Asia Pacific region. He retired from
KPMG in 2011,and is currently serving as a Governor and Past President of The
Institute of Internal Auditors Hong Kong Limited. He is a Non-executive Director
of the Board of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong,
as well as an Independent Non-executive Director of Prime Property Fund Asia
GP Pte Limited.

Mr. CHIU Ming Wah
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from Lincoln
University, U.S.A and was a Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE) during 2000 to 2014.
Mr. Chiu was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in
February 2019. He is also the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee and
a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Bank. He is at
present a Director of Shanghai Lingang Overseas Development Co. Limited.
During 2001 to 2014, he was the Head of Audit (General Manager) of Bank of
China (HK) Limited as well as a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of Chiyu Bank. He was member of the Shenyang Chinese
National People’s Political Consultative Conference during 2013 to 2017 and
successively been a member of the National People’s Congress Election
Committee of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr Chan Kar Lok
Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a Master of Laws degree from Sydney Technology University. He was
appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in September
2023. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank. Mr Chan has been a practising lawyer for
over 40 years and is currently a senior consultant of Messrs. So, Lung &
Associates, Solicitors. He is also a China Appointed Attesting Officer. Mr
Chan currently is the chairman of The Hong Kong Housing Society and an
Independent Non-executive Director of the MTR Corporation Limited. He was
formerly a convenor-cum-member of the Pensions Appeal Panel under Civil
Service Bureau, a non-executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority, a
member of the Hong Kong Housing Authority for which he served as Chairman
of Home Ownership Committee and Commercial Property Committee
consecutively, a member of the Town Planning Board, the Advisory Committee
on Post-service Employment of Civil Servants, the Harbourfront Commission, the
chairman of Appeal Tribunal (Buildings) and a member of the Board of Advisors
of Radio Television Hong Kong. Mr. Chan was appointed a Justice of the Peace
in 1997, and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star medal and Silver Bauhinia
Star medal in 2000 and 2005 respectively.

Mr. WONG Siu Man
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Wong graduated from University of Newcastle upon Tyne, UK with Bachelor
of Accounting and Financial Analysis. He also obtained the qualification of
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). Mr. Wong has worked
for the Bank since September 1997 and has served various departments
including Audit Department, Accounting Department, Planning and Control
Department and Financial Management Department. He is the Head of Financial
Management Department since 2014 and the Chief Financial Officer of the Bank
since 2019. He was appointed an Executive Director of the Bank in 2023. He is
currently mainly responsible for the Financial Management Department at the
Bank. Mr. Wong served concurrently as the Board Secretary of the Bank from
2014 to June 2023.
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Bank has followed the guidelines as set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by The Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “HKMA”). The Bank is committed to
maintaining the highest corporate governance standards and considers such
commitment essential in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees; and in upholding accountability and transparency.

Board of Directors (“Board”) and the Senior
Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term
strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business. It currently
comprises twelve Directors with a variety of different experience and
professionalism. Among them, two are Executive Directors, remaining ten are
Non-executive Directors. Of the ten Non-executive Directors, five are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to
provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 94%. The
Board authorises the Senior Management to implement the strategies
approved by the Board. The Senior Management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group and reports to the Board. The Senior Management
implements important policies and develops strategies adopted by the Board.
In order to focus on strategic and material issues that have significant impact
on the Group’s financial performance, risk management, long-term
development and matters relating to the remuneration, appointment and
removal, four committees have been established under the Board to oversee
the major areas of the Group. Details of those committees are set out below:
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee
(“SC”)

The SC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of
strategy management and corporate governance of the Group:

- study and formulate recommendations on the Group's development
strategy, business objectives, risk management strategy, capital
management strategy, human resource management strategy,
technology development strategy, organisation and new business
development strategy as well as medium and long-term development
plans;

+ review and evaluate the implementation process of strategies; make
proposal on strategic adjustments in accordance with the changes in
the business environment;

+ exercise decision making and monitoring power on behalf of the Board
during intersessional period;

- offer advice and recommendations on the setup plan proposed by the
Senior Management;

+ monitor corporate governance system, evaluate regularly and make
suggestions to improve the corporate governance of the Group;

+ check the implementation of the Group's annual business plan and
major investment plans, make recommendations on major investment
issues of the Bank, and report to the Board for consideration and
approval; and

+ perform the relevant duties of such other Board Committes as
authorised by the Board when such Board Committees fail to perform
their duties due to conflicts of interest or any other reasons.

The members of SC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Wang Xiaojian (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Kwok Chun

Mr. Tan Wan Chye

Mr. Zheng Wei

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Yu Kwok Chun is
an Independent Non-executive Director. Four SC meetings were held in
the year with an attendance rate of 94%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee (“AC”)

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in
the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;
- internal control systems;

- effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the
General Manager of Audit Department;

- appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,
independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and
regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and

- corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation
thereof.

The members of AC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Tan Wan Chye
Mr. Yu Kwok Chun
Mr. Chan Kar Lok (appointed on 11 September

2023)

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lee
Hoi Yin, Stephen and Mr. Yu Kwok Chun and Mr. Chan Kar Lok are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Five AC meetings were held in the
year with an attendance rate of 94%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC”)

The RC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of the
risk management of the Group:

- formulate the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group;
+ monitor various types of risks faced by the Group;
+ review and monitor the changes in the Group’s risk profile;

+ review and monitor the Group’s compliance with the risk management
policies, system, internal control procedures and regulatory requirements;

- review and approve significant risk-related policies and risk limits of the
Group; and

+ review risk-related information submitted by the Group.

The members of RC during the year and up to date of the Report of the Directors
are:

Mr. Chiu Ming Wah (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen

Mr. Zheng Wei

Mr. Woo Chai Wei

Mr. Zhang Dechun

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Chiu Ming Wah ~ Mr.
Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen and Mr. Woo Chai Wei are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Four RC meetings were held in the year with an attendance rate of
90%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The NRC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group

in the following areas:

- human resources strategy,
framework of the Group;

remuneration strategy and incentive

- group governance and bank culture promotion;

+ selection, and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and
Senior Management;

- qualification (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, geographical location, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and track records,etc) of the members of
the Board and Board Committees;

« remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior

Management and Key Personnel;
- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and

- training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior
Management.

The members of the NRC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr. Yu Kwok Chun (Chairman)

Mr. Chiu Ming Wah

Mr. Woo Chia Wei

Mr. Wang Xiaojian

Mr. Chan Kar Lok (appointed on 11 September 2023)

Of five members, four are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Bank
and one is Non-executive Directors. Four NRC meetings were held during
the year with an attendance rate of 94%.

Major tasks performed during the year (included the approval, review and
proposal to the Board):

- review, amend and formulate the major human
remuneration policies;

resources and

- review proposal on re-election of Directors and the fixing of the
renumeration of the chairpersons and members of the Board and Board
Committees;

- review the performance appraisal result and bonus payment for the year
2022 of the Senior Management and Key Personnel; and the proposal on
the salary adjustment for the year 2023 of the Key Personnel;

- review proposal on the Annual Review of the Four Type of Staff as
delineated in the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” of HKMA;

- review the change of Senior Management/Key Personnel of the Bank and
related remuneration issues;

- review the 2023 KPI framework of Senior Management and Key
Personnel of the Bank;

« review the 2022 Independent Review on Compliance of Guideline on a
Sound Remuneration System; and

- review the corporate culture report of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”.
It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to
encourage staff to enhance their performance and, at the same time, to
strengthen their awareness of risk and compliance so as to achieve sound
remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with
the board principles set out in the HKMA’s “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries
(including the branches and institutions within and outside Hong Kong).

1. Senior Management and Key Personnel

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA'’s “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”:

- “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board
who are responsible for oversight of the bank-wide strategy activities
or those of bank's material business lines, including Executive
Directors, Chief Executive, Alternate Chief Executive, Deputy Chief
Executives, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Assistant Chief
Executive, Chief Information Officer, Chief Operation Officer, Business
Director, Chief Audit Officer and Company Secretary.

+ “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are
materially linked to the risk management, or those who have direct
influence to the profit, including General Managers of material
business lines, General Manager of Financial Markets Department, as
well as General Managers of risk control functions.

2. Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Group Human Resources Department is responsible for proposing
the Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation from the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and
compliance if necessary, in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The
proposed remuneration strategy and planning is submitted to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the
Board for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the Board will seek opinions from other Board Committees (e.g. Risk
Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider
necessary under the circumstances.

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(1) Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism
to formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group,
units and individuals. For individual staff at different levels, annual
targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through the
performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals
will be appraised on their achievement against targets, their
contribution towards performance of their units, fulfiiment of risk
management duties, execution of the bank culture and compliance.
Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk
exposure involved during the course of work and their core value could
also be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal
operation of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

(2) Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk
into practice, based on the risk adjustment method of the Group, the
key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the
performance management mechanism. Credit risk, market risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance
risk (including Anti-money laundry) and reputation risk form the
framework of the risk adjustment method.

(3) Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration”,
“variable remuneration” and “fringe benefits”. The proportion of one to
the other for individual staff members depends on job grades, roles,
responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that
balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion, so as
to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk
management and sound long-term financial stability. Generally
speaking, the higher the grading / responsibility of the individual staff,
the bigger the portion of variable pay will be in his/her total
remuneration.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed
remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will
determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the Group as
well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As
mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include
quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-
financial indicators.

The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Bank is determined
by the Board of the Bank on the basis of its financial performance and
the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets under the
long-term development of the Group. Thorough consideration is also
made to the risk factors in the determination process. The size of the
Variable Remuneration Pool is reached by the Board of the Bank who
makes discretionary adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under
prevailing circumstances. When the Bank’s performance is relatively
weak (e.g. failed to meet the threshold performance level), no variable
remuneration will be paid out that year in principle, however, the Board
of the Bank reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation
of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of the
units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attached to, and the assessment of which should include risk
modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk
control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, which is independent from the business they oversee;
for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and
performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability
of performance-based remuneration. The better the performance of
the Department and the individual staff, the higher will be the variable
remuneration for the individual staff. For behaviour which is positive
and adhering to the Group’s corporate culture, the variable
remuneration should be tilted forward; for misconduct or behaviour
which is negative and not adhering to the Group’s corporate culture,
the variable remuneration should be forfeited or reduced.
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(continued)

(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time
horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon
of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to ascertain the
associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the
variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred in cash if such
amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a
progressive approach towards deferral. The longer the time horizon of
risk in the activities conducted by the staff and the higher amount of
the variable remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral.
Deferral period lasts for 3 years or above.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the
long-term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are
linked to the annual performance (financial and non-financial) of the
Group and the bahavior of the individual staff to the effect that the
variable remuneration could only be vested to such extent as set for
the relevant year subject to the condition that the Group’s performance
has met the threshold requirement in the corresponding year.
However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial
or non-financial factors used in performance measurement or variable
pay determination are later proven to have been manifestly worse than
originally understood in a particular year, or individual
behaviour/management style poses negative impacts to the business
unit and even the Group, including but not limited to improper or
inadequate risk management, significant incident and economic loss
incurred by improper management, etc., part of or full of the unvested
portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff
would be forfeited.

Compared with the previous years, there was no material change in
the nature and type of above mentioned measures during the year, so
it had no significant influence on the remuneration system of the Bank.

4. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

(1) The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review
with reference to changes on external regulatory requirements,
market conditions, organisational structure and risk management
requirements, etc.

@2

~

The review on the “Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Variable
Remuneration Management Policy” of the Bank have been
conducted during the year, so as to demonstrate the important
message of human resources strategy by giving the balance of
“effective incentive” and “prudent remuneration management”, which
is in line with HKMA guidance.

3

=

Based on the latest organization structure and the business strategy
of the Bank, the identification criteria & position lists of the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” and etc., as delineated in the
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”, were also reviewed.

5. External Remuneration Consultant

To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and
incentive mechanism, the Group appointed external remuneration
consultant for independent consultation in areas of pay management and
market remuneration data of the key positions, etc.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

6. Disclosure on Remuneration

According to HKMA Supervisory Policy Manual CG-5 “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System”, Authorised Institutions should have proper disclosures
in relation to their remuneration systems. The Group has fully complied with
the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”
issued by the HKMA to disclose information in relation to our remuneration and

incentive mechanism.

There are 9 (2022: 8) Senior Management members and 12 (2022: 11) Key
Personnel in 2023. The aggregate amount of remuneration of the Senior
Management and Key Personnel during the year, split into fixed and variable

remuneration, is set out below:

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year

Fixed remuneration
Total fixed remuneration
Of which: cash-based

Variable remuneration
Total variable remuneration
Of which: cash-based

Of which: deferred
Of which: shares or other share-linked
instruments

Of which: deferred

Other remuneration’

Total remuneration

(i) Deferred remuneration

Deferred remuneration
Vested
Unvested

At 1 January

Awarded

Paid out

Reduced through performance adjustments
At 31 December
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2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
56,089 46,564
37,969 34,549
24,952 31,405
24,952 31,405
9,637 12,675
. 9,939
81,041 87,908
2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$000
7,313 5,708
23,833 21,509
31,146 27,217
21,509 14,542

9,637 12,675
(7,313) (5,708)
23,833 21,509
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

6. Disclosure on Remuneration (continued)
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Note:

1. One-off cash payment due to termination of the staff good fortune fund (a
long term benefits program).

As the total number of Senior Management and Key Personnel involved is
relatively small, to avoid individual figures being deduced from the
disclosure, aggregate figures are disclosed in this section.

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel are
defined as follows:

Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who
are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy activities or those of
Bank’s material business lines, including Executive Directors, Chief
Executive, Alternate Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Assistant
Chief Executive, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Information
Officer, Chief Operation Officer, Business Director, Chief Audit Officer and
Company Secretary.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve
the assumption of important risk which may have significant impact on risk
exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are importantly linked to the
risk management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including
General Managers of material business lines, General Manager of Financial
Markets Department, as well as the General Managers of risk control
functions.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (the "Bank") and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as "the Group") set out on pages [36] to [193], which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Measurement of expected credit loss ("ECL")

of credit-impaired advances to customers and

investment in securities at fair value through

other comprehensive income ("FVOCI")

classified as stage 3

We identified the measurement of ECL of credit- Our audit procedures in relation to the measurement of ECL of credit-
impaired advances to customers and investment impaired advances to customers and investment in securities at FVOCI
in securities at FVOCI classified as stage 3 at classified as stage 3 included:

the reporting date as a key audit matter due to

the higher degree of management judgement . Understanding and evaluating the Group's policies and methodology
and complexity involved in preparing the for the determination of ECL for credit-impaired assets classified as
estimates. stage 3 under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard ("HKFRS") 9

"Financial Instruments";

As at 31 December 2023, as set out in Note
4.1B(a) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group reported a gross amount of HKD
2,099 million of credit-impaired advances to
customers with HKD 427 million ECL allowance
made; and in Note 4.1B(b), the Group reported
a gross amount of HKD 316 million of credit-
impaired investment in securities at FVOCI with
HKD 113 million ECL allowance made.

. Identifying and evaluating key controls over credit approval, credit
monitoring, impairment assessment and collateral valuation
processes;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss ("ECL")
of credit-impaired advances to customers and
investment in securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income ("FVOCI")
classified as stage 3 (continued)

As detailed in Note 4.1E to the consolidated

financial statements, in determining the lifetime

ECL allowance on stage 3 credit-impaired

assets, the Group measures ECL allowance as

the difference between the gross carrying

amount and the present value of estimated

future cash flows individually. The estimation

of expected future cash flows involves

significant judgment around (i) the Group’s

historical credit loss experience, adjusted for

factors that are specific to the borrower or debtor

which include any significant financial difficulty

of the borrower or debtor, breach of contract or

probability that the borrower or debtor will enter

into bankruptcy and the status and progress of

financial restructuring, (ii) general economic

conditions including forward looking

expectations, (iii) effect of collateral and

guarantee on the expected loss given default,

(iv) expected timeline of recovery; and (v)

probabilities applied on different recovery
scenarios.
Valuation of level 3 unlisted equity

investments

We identified the valuation of level 3 unlisted
equity investments as a key area of audit due to
significant judgement and estimation involved in
the valuation. In determining the fair value of
level 3 unlisted equity investments, the selection
of valuation techniques and significant
unobservable input data requires significant
accounting judgement and estimation by
management.

As at 31 December 2023, as set out in Note 23
to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group reported an amount of HKD 298 million of
level 3 unlisted equity investments. Disclosures
in relation to Level 3 fair value measurement of
these financial assets were made in Note 5.1.

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

On a sample basis, assessing the reasonableness of management's
measurement of the ECL of credit-impaired advances to customers
and investment in securities at FVOCI classified as stage 3 as follows:

- Considering the latest developments of the borrower or debtor
and its guarantor (if any), challenging management’s
assessment of possible recovery scenarios as well as the
probabilities assigned to each of the recovery scenarios,
evaluating the potential impact on the ECL allowance based on
the reasonably possible changes of probabilities assigned to
each of the recovery scenarios applied by the management;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated future cash
flows applied in each of the recovery scenarios and challenging
the key assumptions used in management estimation, including
repayment ability of borrower or debtor and its guarantor (if any),
repayment timeline, progress of financial restructuring, general
economic conditions, effect of collateral and guarantee on the
expected loss given default (if any), etc. through reviewing of
credit files and management analysis, with corroborative
evidence from relevant supporting information;

- For credit-impaired advances to customers with collaterals,
examining relevant supporting evidences provided by
management, challenging the reasonableness of
management's assumptions in determining the estimated fair
value of the collateral upon realization, the cost for obtaining
and selling the collateral and the timing of expected realization;

- Testing the arithmetical accuracy of the calculation of the ECL
allowance; and

Evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures on ECL
allowance of credit-impaired advances to customers and investment in
securities at FVOCI classified as stage 3 meet the requirements as set
out in HKFRS 7.

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of level 3 unlisted equity
investments included:

Understanding and evaluating the Group's policies and methodology
for the determination of the valuation of level 3 unlisted equity
investments under HKFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement”;

Identifying and evaluating key controls over the processing of
valuation, independent verification of valuation results, and valuation
model validation and approval in relation to level 3 unlisted equity
investments;

Assessing the independence, competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external independent valuer engaged by the Group;

On a sample basis, evaluating, with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialist, the appropriateness of the Group’s valuation
techniques and assessing the reasonableness of the significant
unobservable inputs, with corroborative evidence from relevant
supporting information; and

Evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures on valuation of
level 3 unlisted equity investments meet the requirements as set out in
HKFRS 13.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Mr. Zhu Wei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 April 2024
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Consolidated Income Statement

P&t
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2023 2022
AT ATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Interest income 6,951,610 4,052,990
Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method 6,856,470 4,019,941
Other interest income 95,140 33,049
Interest expense (5,374,859) (2,249,889)
Net interest income 6 1,576,751 1,803,101
Fee and commission income 634,505 740,546
Fee and commission expense (29,843) (34,754)
Net fee and commission income 7 604,662 705,792
Net trading gain 8 179,566 82,951
Net (loss) / gain on other financial assets
9 (123,718) 258,366
Other operating income 10 52,768 86,883
Net operating income before impairment
allowances 2,290,029 2,937,093
Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (658,495) (540,008)
Net operating income 1,631,534 2,397,085
Operating expenses 12 (1,380,391) (1,333,625)
Operating profit 251,143 1,063,460
Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 13 (9,767) (7,520)
Net loss from disposal / revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment 14 (1,456) (10,493)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1.459 _
Profit before taxation 241,379 1,045,447
Taxation 15 (64,854) (142,779)
Profit for the year 176,525 902,668
Profit for the year attributable to
Equity holders of the Bank 176,525 902,668
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The notes on pages 42 to 193 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The notes on pages 42 to 193 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FEREWERSE Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BEE
BE12 A 31 HibERE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2023 2022
BT HRTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
SRR Profit for the year 176,525 902,668
HI R AT M s 22 Y Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
HE - to income statement:
G Premises:
BB Revaluation of premises 25 (25,048) (48,949)
IRIEFRTIE Deferred tax 29 10,614 11,319
(14,434) (37,630)
DUAEEEEaT AR 2 EIR Equity instruments at fair value through other
i Rt THE. - comprehensive income:
AN PEEE Change in fair value 23 (88,456) (73,871)
(102,890) (111,501)
Hig o] T E U RN AR Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
H : income statement:
PAAEE et AF A 4TI Debt instruments at fair value through other
BT comprehensive income:
DNPEEE Change in fair value 23 680,061 (480,322)
RNEE > B E T E R Release upon disposal reclassified to
e income statement 9 (88,180) (126,732)
EUEAEMEEEER Change in impairment allowances debited
(&) daa® / (credited) to income statement 39,164 (51,345)
B IEFRIA Deferred tax 29 (103,086) 89,823
527,959 (568,576)
B E Currency translation difference (71,003) (306,015)
R B /N & 2 B e o0 S8 Release upon disposal of a subsidiary
Elrenesy reclassified to income statement 420 -
457,376 (874,591)
R HAmEERRS S Other comprehensive income / (expense)
(1) for the year, net of tax 354,486 (986,092)
EREP2ERE S (ZH) 45 Total comprehensive income / (expense) for
the year 531,011 (83,424)
FE(E2EWES S (ZH) 48458 . Total comprehensive income / (expense)
attributable to:
AR TR R A Equity holders of the Bank 531,011 (83,424)
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FEMBIRIE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(E%1)
(Restated)
BEE
B12H31H As at 31 December Notes 2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HiE ASSETS
[T B e B A7 SR AT R HoAthr <6 il Cash and balances with banks and other
HRSIIAEER financial institutions 19 18,869,175 22,549,748
ESRAT R E R — 2+ = Placements with banks and other
{68 5 N BN EBIFIL financial institutions maturing between
one and twelve months 20 1,946,513 3,503,238
TSR TR Derivative financial instruments 21 192,623 74,407
B PE N E P Advances to customers and trade bills 22 89,933,678 88,190,928
BHE Investment in securities 23 70,251,234 64,098,304
TEYZE Investment properties 24 817,051 146,110
FUE B & Properties, plant and equipment 25 1,993,405 1,947,153
JEUHI TR A E Current tax assets 24,080 -
IERERIHE 7 Deferred tax assets 29 35,830 57,220
Hith& Other assets 26 588,654 1,303,443
BELEE Total assets 184,652,243 181,870,551
=i LIABILITIES
PRAT R EoAthr RS A7 R Deposits and balances from banks and
S other financial institutions 14,744,681 18,373,043
TSR TR Derivative financial instruments 21 93,348 81,675
BT Deposits from customers 27 146,717,601 140,834,824
HARRIE Rt Other accounts and provisions 28 2,890,417 3,020,334
JEATFRIE & Current tax liabilities 45,009 48,945
IEFEMITHE (R Deferred tax liabilities 29 156,369 76,191
T TESEE 5 ATk Debt securities and certificates of deposit
in issue 30 1,735,810 1,572,167
B (EAEE Total liabilities 166,383,235 164,007,179
[-C: EQUITY
EZN Share capital 31 6,577,871 6,577,871
e Reserves 10,133,325 9,727,689
AR TRE R B LA h B Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 16,711,196 16,305,560
HHNEARTE Additional equity instruments 32 1,557,812 1,557,812
BN Total equity 18,269,008 17,863,372
B ARG Total liabilities and equity 184,652,243 181,870,551

% 42 £ 193 HZ B AN B
R ZHRET -

KGN 2024 £ 4 1 26 Hid@
HZAEN LU A REREE

ERERE HIER
HH H5E

The notes on pages 42 to 193 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2024 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

WANG Xiaojian
Director

ZHENG Wei
Director
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SFotERBEIR

# 2023441 H1H

R
Ftremm (G2
W
R
DA EZEREA
FoAt S A U RS 2
Heintss TR

DL (82 EEA
Hofty 2 H 2 2
TR

ARG
B e 5 2 0.

R ER S EE
Wigi 2R

i (CGZH) /Yzas
#
A S a A

Y BINEAR T AR
AEFIR

PRI B L 25 {28
BF AL ST
Wb LR
5

#2023 FE12H 31 H

55 42 7 193 B MR B A T

ZERRERTY -

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRI ARTROR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
e
Reserves
BEEf  APEE
itz = B EERNC S  EEER et BIMNEATE  BAHE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
Capital reserve' reserve? reserve® reserve* _earnings Total _instruments equity
BEWTT  EWTT BN BETT BETT BTt BETT BETIT  EWTT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2023 6,577,871 1,183,937  (725,994) 325433  (109,649) 9,053,962 16,305,560 1,557,812 17,863,372
Profit for the year - - - - - 176,525 176,525 - 176,525
Other comprehensive
(expense) / income :
Premises - (14,434) - - - - (14,434) - (14,434)
Equity instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - (88,456) - - - (88,456) - (88,456)
Debt instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - 527,959 - - - 527,959 - 527,959
Currency translation
difference - - - - (71,003) - (71,003) - (71,003)
Release upon
disposal of a
subsidiary
reclassified to
income statement - - - - 420 - 420 - 420
Total comprehensive
(expense) / income - (14,434) 439,503 - (70,583) 176,525 531,011 - 531,011
Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 52,730 - (52,730) - - -
Distribution to the
holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (125,375) (125,375) - (125,375)
Release upon disposal
of equity instruments
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income - - 18,914 - - (18,914) - - -
At 31 December 2023 6,577,871 1,169,503  (267,577) 378,163 (180,232) 9,033,468 16,711,196 1,557,812 18,269,008

The notes on pages 42 to 193 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

SR AR THE R
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
G
Reserves
BEEM  ATHHE
[N ekt ! G2 BERE S MEIREEY WERA st WHNEATH EARUHE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fairvalue Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve' reserve? reserve® reserve*  earnings Total _ instruments equity
BT BT ABWTOT BWToT BN TOT BETOT BETT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2022 6,577,871 1,221,567  (97,064) 344,870 196,366 8,590,166 16,833,776 1,937,712 18,771,488
Profit for the year - - - - - 902,668 902,668 - 902,668
Other comprehensive
expense:
Premises - (37,630) - - - - (37,630) - (37,630)
Equity instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - (73,871) - - - (73,871) - (73,871)
Debt instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - (568,576) - - - (568,576) - (568,576)
Currency translation
difference - - - - (306,015) - (306,015) - (306,015)
Total comprehensive
(expense) / income - (37,630)  (642,447) - (306,015) 902,668 (83,424) - (83,424)
Transfer to retained
earnings - - - (19,437) - 19,437 - - -
Dividends - - - - - (328,299) (328,299) - (328,299)
Issue of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - - - 1,557,812 1,557,812
Redemption of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (13,675) (13,675)  (1,937,712) (1,951,387)
Distribution to the
holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (102,818) (102,818) - (102,818)
Release upon
disposal of equity
instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income - - 13,517 - - (13,517) - - -
At 31 December 2022 6,577,871 1,183,937 _ (725,994) 325,433  (109,649) 9,053,962 16,305,560 1,557,812 17,863,372

B IERERRHY Rt PEEE ) F

o

3. REEBMHBERERNE O RHE 3
FEERUR(EER SN > FERER
B H TR ERE R
TR Z R (BRERAEK K

HAA A TR -

4. BEGEMHVEILREEERBINE 4
PrEpTR AR R -
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Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for the revaluation of premises.

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of fair value through other
comprehensive income securities held until the securities are derecognised.

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking
risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment
allowances recognised under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9.

Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for foreign currency translation.
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HERERESR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FfsE:
822125 31 HiLERE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
QBEBHESHRE Cash flows from operating activities
[RfEa SRS R/ A O Operating cash inflow / (outflow) before
taxation 33(a) 2,425,933 (7,257,478)
YT EEFER Hong Kong profits tax paid (30,768) (173,688)
SABIMNFIEIR Overseas profits tax paid (55,704) (43,928)
TEYMSFTERT Overseas profits tax refund - 6,937
RBEBZHERA CRE) Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating
FREE activities 2,339,461 (7,468,157)
BEEGIHRENE Cash flows from investing activities
W AWIZE ~ 234 Bk ffs Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment (104,662) (53,596)
&Y Ve E M Initial cost of investment properties (28,533) -
HEYHE - 23t KT SRCE Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 480 -
HEE AT IR A S Net cash inflow from disposal of a
subsidiary 43 2,394 -
BEER RS HIPEE Net cash outflow from investing activities (130,321) (53,596)
REER IRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT 5 MATGE Issue of debt securities and certificates of
deposit 33(d) 160,231 1,558,595
BITEHINEAR TR Issuance of additional equity instruments 32 - 1,557,812
VB[ AHINEAR T A Redemption of additional equity instruments 32 - (1,951,387)
T E S 2 BEAE D Capital element of lease rentals paid 33(d) (113,725) (111,663)
AT E S 2 FEE D Interest element of lease rentals paid 33(d) (8,299) (7,651)
T EB T RAEE RS Interest payment for debt securities and
certificates of deposit 33(d) (90,022) (45,193)
AT SR TR R RIAREE Final dividend paid to the equity holders of
the Bank 16 - (328,299)
TATREINE AR T ERAEEFE Distribution to the holders of the additional
equity instruments 16 (125,375) (102,818)
MEEH RS CRE) /HAPH Net cash (outflow) / inflow from financing
activities (177,190) 569,396
e REERESEEREN, (&) Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 2,031,950 (6,952,357)
W1 A1 HZIRES REERESIEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 24,381,213 31,660,872
PERESEIIRG N EEIR4IEBN  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
oz cash equivalents (56,072) (327,302)
N 12 A 31 HZ2HE REEHSLIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 33(b) 26,357,091 24,381,213
542 £ 193 H [l EA B The notes on pages 42 to 193 are an integral part of these financial statements.
e Z AHRER T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial

services.

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of

its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road Central, Hong Kong.

2. Material accounting policy information

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

KRR SFE B SR IRE &
GRS EEMi Z T E B 2 &
AR AR B - IS (AR
BLEFTA 2 A s
Al TG SR R e - it
FRAESHERD AFEEE(AE
B ZHE -

IRER GBS B T R S A A
B BRE TV ER T AR
e & e 455 H Z E AL E A FES]
I o AERAZ EratLERIEESTAT -

2 BRSBTS
R FRAEFER R -
EHE IR R RAA SRR 2 St
SRIE A BT - &P R
HlET ~ O Ol - SRS TS
RS BERTEZ BERAER

EE#EIEE3

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs issued that are already mandatorily

FHEEEHIM AR B8R effective for the Group's accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2023
&7 RE
New and amendments to
HKFRSs Content
(BHVBHELEN) E1758 (REBEEL

HKFRS 17 (including the October
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

(EABgTEER]) 158K (F
AL EHSHEE 2
FRZAEET

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

(EBEETHER]) 2 8 5285
Amendments to HKAS 8

(EABgETHER]) 512582 &8
Amendments to HKAS 12

(EBEETHER]) F 1258288
Amendments to HKAS 12

BT SCRTliE A - AR REE AR
i R SUERT 2 T A i i e A
REREAETE KB EE LRI IR
MR ARG G B RN
EE RPN 7

Insurance Contracts

T B

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

et

Definition of Accounting Estimates

LB — S Bl pE AR EEN B (B AR RA R IR I P45

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

BAR R 58 — SRR AR

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two Model Rules

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and / or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs issued that are already mandatorily

effective for the Group's accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2023
(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current year.
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace all
instances of the term "significant accounting policies" with "material accounting
policy information". Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may be material
because of the nature of the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy
information, such information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the "Practice
Statement") is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies the "four-step
materiality process" to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group’s accounting policies set out in later sections in this note to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax
Reform- Pillar Two Model Rules

HKAS 12 is amended to add the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities that are related to tax law
enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(the "Pillar Two legislation"). The Group is yet to apply the temporary exception
during the current year because the Group’s entities are operating in
jurisdictions which the Pillar Two legislation has not yet been enacted or
substantially enacted. The Group will disclose known or reasonably estimable
information that helps users of financial statements to understand the Group’s
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements when the Pillar Two legislation is enacted or substantially enacted
and will disclose separately current tax expense or income related to Pillar Two
income taxes when it is in effect.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group in 2023

85T RE REARHEF AR
Applicable for
financial years
Amendments Content beginning on/after
(RBgERD) F152E8] RafEyBRREEGHRE R TS 5 Sty HEREsT 2024 1 1 H
(2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1

(EBGETHER]) 152 B8]
Amendments to HKAS 1

(BB RS 516 952
(E5)
Amendments to HKFRS 16

(EFAVBHEEN) 5510 5iK
% 28 5T
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

(BT B 755k (F
BB BT 5 2
]

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

(EBEEHER]) 521 58288
Amendments to HKAS 21

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

JEmBy A LY

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

HABRGZHEER

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

REFEHEE N F NG BN ZMEE N EE0EA

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

T P R 2 R

Supplier Finance Arrangements

= R
Lack of Exchangeability

45

1 January 2024

20241 H1H
1 January 2024

20241 H1H
1 January 2024

A R

A date to be
determined

20241 H1H
1 January 2024

2025F1H1H
1 January 2025



LN W
3 4%
Chiyu Banking Corporation Led

SeMBERRIFE (8

2. EEEHBORER (8

21 B (8D

(b) EAEARE MR B R AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)Standards and amendments issued that are not yet ma

ndatorily

4 2023 FERATSRA Z BRI RASRT(H)

A TEAERF {53 5 13T B
ZIERETAE AR - E ARV -
PRI ST R € B SR R

SRR
(c) EEtBERE(L

#2022FE12 H 31 H

AR AR DR TR
HIE - MAR L HEI AR R SRR Bk A R
TR IR - AR AR
SPAERAER - RBEHTECR - AHR S
BORAEWE B EraR LR BRIFEE
HEEFTA REER A AR (L&
2.19 Friggs) - ARIR SHETmEly
HIE - et E CE I E i
Ebdedy -

AR R GERERERT
SREAVIH BT - BE AR
FRILA R -

effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2023
(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact to the
consolidated financial statements.

(c) Change in accounting policy

In prior years, the Group recognised repossessed assets and derecognised
the related loans and advances together with the related impairment
allowances at the date of repossession. The Group has reassessed the policy
during the current period. Under the new policy, the related loans and
advances would not be derecognised at the date of repossession; no
repossessed assets would be recognised unless the legal title of the assets
are passed to the Group, as disclosed in Note 2.19. The change in
accounting policy has been applied retrospectively with comparative
amounts restated.

The affected lines in the consolidated statements of financial position and
consolidated cash flow statement are summarised below. There is no impact
to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

At 31 December 2022

BEEERN A DTS
Hitt &

H2022FE1H1H
HPER A DS
Hitt &z

WEHe I RATZEE

AR e

% 2022 12 H 31 [
B 5 )

HAth# 2 528)

YT H Al

Advances to customers and trade bills
Other assets

At 1 January 2022
Advances to customers and trade bills
Other assets

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Change in advances to customers and
trade bills

Change in other assets

46

AT IR ke

As previously

EIESEIRS kS Eegdl

As previously
stated Adjustment As restated
AT AT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
87,488,723 702,205 88,190,928
2,005,648 (702,205) 1,303,443
84,145,534 100,722 84,246,256
673,820 (100,722) 573,098

The affected lines in the operating cash flow are summarised below.

=

stated Adjustment As restated
AT T AT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(3,897,198) (601,483) (4,498,681)
(1,332,385) 601,483 (730,902)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) Change in accounting policy (continued)

RIEAEEGTAATHNEUNES
BENEAEE ( "MPF” ) -RIEIRES
( “LSP” ) HEMHEHIFy SR BN
SR BEREES
WIEE 17 Friges - T BEERD
AEREAE S I T S AR RS
i LSP - [F]fF - AL 230 A TELSSR
MR H B aR  ERR - 2R B
SEEFTRFARYEE » EAE R SR
EHZH - (EAERI) (55 57 ) 7t
#TH LSP K34 B Tt/ Rt
S RRIR IR - 2022 426 [
FRRHTEIEBT TIE (2022 45
S RORAET AR (REAZHE) (183T)
B (TEETIRBY ) - BERR LU F 53
TR e LR A 2R Y R S 2 A 8
AR LSP (TEERR ) - kR
Hit 2025 45 H 1 H (TaEEHHS )
TESAERL - M - ARIBESTIRGY - 108
H 1 milA v (& — {8 A K (R L
e B3 & ARG E BT H 32 Ry
(g PRIy LSP #5 -

2023 ££ 7 7 > BAEETHETAGEMA T
(& HERERR MPF-LSP fR S5t HIRY Era
) IR BRIy et B DU R
ABEEER MPF-LSP R Ssb I ArzE A= rs2
BRft TR | - AEN L ABEEE
WIEAT A A T AT & AT A B
LSP 27515 | DLt HI M R g b

HsZ R S T 5E R A RRRY AN -

FEER R BT R E AR
REMERCERAEMNA - WA R
&2y LSP 18 F] - Biife 2% LSP (Y
(K AT AR EHERE T
HERIEE 19 9555 93(b)Be PV {EEH
ik B E R RGN - (E R
BRI AR EARI A A ek /D> -

Change in accounting policy as a result of application of the HKICPA
guidance on the accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long Service Payment (“LSP”)
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong (continued)

As disclosed in note 17, the Group operating in Hong Kong which are obliged
to pay LSP to employees under certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes mandatory and voluntary MPF contributions to the trustee who
administers the assets held in a trust solely for the retirement benefits of each
individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s accrued
retirement benefits derived from employers’ MPF contributions was allowed
under the Employment Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the Government
of the HKSAR gazetted the Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset severance
payment and LSP (the “Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect on
1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition, under the Amendment
Ordinance, the last month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition Date
(instead of the date of termination of employment) is used to calculate the
portion of LSP in respect of the employment period before the Transition
Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of the abolition
of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides
guidance for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and the impact
arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong.
In light of this, the Group has implemented the guidance published by the
HKICPA in connection with the LSP obligation retrospectively so as to provide
more reliable and more relevant information about the effects of the offsetting
mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from employer MPF
contributions that have been vested with the employee and which could be
used to offset the employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by the
employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group has been applying the
practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 to account for the deemed
employee contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the period in
which the related service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) Change in accounting policy (continued)

2.2
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Change in accounting policy as a result of application of the HKICPA
guidance on the accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long Service Payment (“LSP”)
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong (continued)

Based on the HKICPA’s guidance, as a result of the Abolition, these
contributions are no longer considered “linked solely to the employee’s
service in that period” since the mandatory employer MPF contributions after
the Transition Date can still be used to offset the pre-transition LSP
obligation. Therefore, it would not be appropriate to view the contributions as
“independent of the number of years of service” and the practical expedient
in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead, these
deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of service in the same
manner as the gross LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19.

The Group considered the Group's eligible employees are entitlted to
employers’ voluntary MPF contribution which can continue to be used to
offset LSP, this change in accounting policy did not have any material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial information of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intragroup transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Bank. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, if any.

2.3 Foreign currency translation

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s
functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)
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Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign
currency transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the profit or loss, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income (OCI) and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of a foreign operation.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and
- foreign currency differences are recognised in OCl and accumulated in the

translation reserve, except to the extent that the translation difference is
allocated to non-controlling interest.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Bank are reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and derivative financial instruments are included in gains less losses
from trading securities or financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary items are presented
as gains less losses from foreign exchange and foreign exchange products in
the income statement. Differences arising on translation of equity investments
which an election has been made to present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in fair value reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair
value are recognised immediately in the income statement.

2.5 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.6 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and

expense
(1) Interest income and expense

Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments
are recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts, through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the
amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments, the
Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but not expected credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and
fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The transaction costs include incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial
liability.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at
which the financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.
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2. Material accounting policy information (continued)
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2.6 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and

expense (continued)

(1) Interest income and expense (continued)
Calculation of interest income and expense

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) except for financial asset that have become credit impaired
subsequent to initial recognition.

For financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest
income reverts to the gross basis from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, please refer to
Note 2.13.

(2) Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income and expense that are not an integral part of the
effective Interest rate method are recognised when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied. For administrative fee and custody services fee,
revenue is recognised overtime on an accrual basis ratably over the period
when the related service is provided; Loan syndication fees are recognised
as revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been completed
and the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself or has
retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to other
participants. Insurance and securities brokerage fees are recognised as
revenue at a point in time when the insurance or securities brokerage
services are rendered and the performance obligations are satisfied.
Financial consultancy fee is recognised according to the contract terms and
at a point in time upon the satisfaction of performance obligation. Funds
agency services fees are recognised as revenue at a point in time when the
funds agency services are rendered and the performance obligations are
satisfied.

2.7 Financial assets

(1) Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. A financial asset is
measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

(2) Classification

~

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL);
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

« amortised cost.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets depend
on:

- the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

+ the cash flow characteristics of the assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)
(2) Classification (continued)

(i) Debt instruments
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Debt instruments held by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is calculated using the effective
interest method.

- FVOCI, if the contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss.

- FVTPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI. Changes in the fair value of the investment
(excluding interest) are recognised in profit or loss in the line item "Net
trading gain". Interest income on the investment is recognised in interest
income.

- The Group, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a debt instrument
as measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(sometimes referred to as an accounting mismatch) that would otherwise
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases.

(ii) Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from
the issuer's perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer's net assets.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the Group’s management has elected,
at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at
FVOCI. The Group’s policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI
when those investments are not held for trading. When this election is used,
fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)
(2) Classification (continued)

(ii) Equity instruments (continued)
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Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the
“Net trading gain/(loss)” line in the income statement.

(iii) Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in
which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice. In particular, whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

+ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the
Group’s management;

« the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the
financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

+ how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as
part of an overall assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.

(iv) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of

principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset on initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity
risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash
flows;

+ leverage features;

+ prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money, e.g.
periodical reset of interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)
(2) Classification (continued)

(iv) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of

principal and interest (continued)

The Group holds a portfolio of long-term fixed rate loans for which the
Group has the option to propose to revise the interest rate at periodic
reset dates. These reset rights are limited to the market rate at the time
of revision. The borrowers have an option to either accept the revised
rate or repay the loan at par without penalty. The Group has determined
that the contractual cash flows of these loans are solely payments of
principal and interest because the option varies the interest rate in a way
that is consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic
lending risks and costs associated with the principal amount outstanding.

(v) Reclassification

~

Financial assets are not

model for managing financial assets.

2.8 Financial liabilities and equity

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees

and loan commitments, as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is
held for trading. A financial liability is held for trading in either of the following

circumstances:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the

near term;

+ oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-

term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee

contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual obligation for the Group
to deliver cash or other financial assets or the Group has the sole discretion
to defer payment of distribution and redemption of principal amount

indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Deposits and subordinated liabilities, other than those classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, together with other financial
liabilities are carried at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net
of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities

using the effective interest method.

2.9 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the

terms of a contract between the holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities
and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of (i) the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over the life
of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating

to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.

2.10 Derecognition of financial instruments
(1) Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not

retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised

in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity
investment securities designated as at FVOCI is not recognised in
profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created
or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its statement of financial position, but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or
a portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.10 Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)
(1) Financial assets (continued)
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In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial
asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Group retains the obligation to service the
transferred financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset is
derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability
is recognised for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for performing the
servicing.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash flows
are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
assesses whether the revised terms result in a substantial modification
from original terms taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is
not conclusive, the Group considers the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per
cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial asset , after reducing gross carrying
amount that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do not result
in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial assets
will be calculated at the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial assets' original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount
of the modified financial assets and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

(2) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.11 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in its principal market or the most advantageous market
accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation
techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
techniqgues commonly used by market participants, that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.12 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious
metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are included in net
trading gain / loss.

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following financial
instruments:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost, which are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent solely payment of
principal and interest;

- debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling);

- lease receivables;

« account receivables;

- financial guarantee contracts issued; and
» loan commitments issued.

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including equity and debt
securities measured at FVTPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-
month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

The Group measures loss allowances for 12-month or lifetime ECL using
a 3-stage approach as follows:

421 it PERIER=VS

Stage Description Impairment Loss

1 B 17 LASRAE FH LB I it 0 0 it e 328 (5 FURVE Ry SRl TR 1218 B N THEAE SR
Financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit 12-month ECL
risk since origination or are not credit-impaired

2 B 37 LASRAS A e HH PR B 0 iy <t T EEBARNZ I E &Rk
Financial instruments that have experienced a significant increase in | jfetime ECL
credit risk since origination

3 17515 B R Rl T & EHIEAN TS B RR
Financial instruments that are considered credit-impaired Lifetime ECL

SEERESEX Measurement of ECL
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ECLs are a probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. They are

measured as follows:

- financial assets: at the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition);

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the
commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive; and

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the
holder less any amounts that the Group expects to recover.
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(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

The criteria of "significant increase of credit risk" has taken into
consideration of below key factors:

- The exposure has been overdue for more than 30 days but less than
90 days;

- The rating of the exposure falls out of the pre-determined internal rating
low-credit-risk threshold, and has triggered the pre-set downgrade
notches of internal or external rating as compared with the rating at the
time when the exposure was originated (for non-retail exposures only);

- The exposure has been classified as special mention per regulators'
classification and met certain interal rating criteria.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the Group considers
changes in the risk of a default occurring on the loan to which a loan
commitment relates; for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial

position as follows:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the
gross carrying amount of the assets;

- loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision;

- where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn
component, and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan
commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both
components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from
the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the
loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision; and

- debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognised
in the statement of financial position because the carrying amount of
these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance is
disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve in OCI.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level
and involves management’s jugement on the irrecoverability.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in impairment
losses on financial instruments in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt is credit-

impaired, the Group considers the following factors:

- the market's assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond
yields;

- the rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness;

- the counterparty’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt
issuance;

- the probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering
losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes but not limited
to the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

« a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise;

- itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there is
evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a
loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing
financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the
borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset
should be derecognised (see the accounting policy in respect of
derecognition of financial instruments above) and ECL are measured as
follows:

- If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the
existing asset, then the expected cash flows arising from the modified
financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing asset.

- If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing
asset, then the expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the
final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. The expected fair value is included in calculating the
cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted
from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the
original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

2.14 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are
classified as investment properties. Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. Lease payments were accounted
for as described in Note 2.16.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Once the item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured
at fair value. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises in Note 25, and its fair value at the date of reclassification
becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes
an investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement up to the
amount previously debited.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.15 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening
periods, the directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference
to the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments are made
when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income statement
up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises revaluation
reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released
and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

All plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arising from leases
over leasehold properties where the Group is not the registered owner of
the property interest and leases of underlying plant and equipment (Note
2.16), are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at
cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the
item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis of its
respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

63



4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking Corporation Led

SeMBERRIFE (8

2. EEEHBORER (8

2.15 W% ~ SIM B (8D

ITELIESE R 2 A E B E
B AT ST AR AR S

- THEYEE RGOS
- W FEEUN R AR
- e kil 2154

AREEEESE T ER D EREER
AR - jﬁE?’* HEFIEH G -

Ttﬂ SHEEH HEWNE RIMNLZ
ERHIGHRIESTEISE - 850 Bk s
xE%§Hji%J&ﬁ§23EF§E WIZBEEAE
RIS A 2 AR IEHEE - e fE & it
SUT R Rl (B R 2 B DS 3 R
TW@EEAziﬂﬁE%TWm%W
2 (BfECE F A T ES IR - T
ﬁﬁﬁ%ixﬂﬂﬂ HEZENE
B > BESFRARANE EEE (5 RUE - mTulm]
fE{E TS % & Z A P EIRR SR A
Rz ew  BLEEREEZ SRS 5
EIRFR G IR o e Al (2
e[ E et

2 W s SRS TR L AT AR I S B
Mz &R EAR A E IR EZ 2
MR E > W8 H AU RN i
o (M ARHE (S A bR & i A B
R RN N EER I EN

2.16 fHE

RN ET I AL R AR &4
ERERHESEETEE - HEEEY
Ry HUAC T T 46 T £ RE B R ] P 3 )
A E (I RPN - ARz S 4@
THE s e tH 8 - F SR RS~
A - WA T E R e
RERSTHIEOBE 2T Z A EIRIBATE Ry
ST EHIRE -

H‘Eﬁ;@ﬁﬁ;u\%mﬁiﬂ)\ﬁ%@%*ﬁ}é’]
HEEATN HIHEHIE > BRELUT I

© AISRAEFH A A H O HEE G 1T
FERE > ARZSRFRME B AHANR 5 F0

© ASRAFH A H O HEE S TR
FERE > PR A BRI
e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.15 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost
or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Leased properties over the lease terms

« Properties over the life of government land leases

- Plant and equipment 2 to 15 years
The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication that
properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is
treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is
reversed through the premises revaluation reserve or the income statement
as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and
expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income
statement.

2.16 Leases

At inception of a contract, the group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

The lease term is considered as the non-cancellable period for which a
lessee has the right to use an underlying asset, together with both:

- periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

- periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the lessee is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

64



CEXEX:

Chiyu Banking Corporation Led

SeMBERRIFE (8

2. EEEHBORER (8

2.16 fHE (8
(1) fERABEA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.16 Leases (continued)

(1) As a lessee
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The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
lease commencement date, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Bank accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right
to use one or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Bank remeasures the lease liability, less any lease incentives
receivable, based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Bank accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.16 Leases (continued)

(1) As a lessee (continued)
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The right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. When a right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property, it is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies.

The Bank presents right-of-use assets in "properties, plant and
equipment", the same line item within which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned and lease liabilities in
"other accounts and provisions".

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the
lease liability and decreased by lease payment made. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as appropriate, changes
in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option is
reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably
certain not to be exercised. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal options. The
assessment of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise such
options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.16 Leases (continued)

(2) As a lessor

As a lessor, the Group leases out its investment properties as the lessor
of operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant leases.

2.17 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under
either recognised Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (ORSO)
schemes or Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) schemes that are available
to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for
the ORSO schemes and in accordance with the MPF rules for MPF
schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged to the income
statement as incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those
employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their
entitlement to the contributions are used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed
of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds
separate from those of the Group.

The employees of the Group’s branches which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by local municipal government. These branches are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
retirement benefits scheme.

2.18 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In these cases, the relevant
amounts of tax is recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income,
is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in which profits
arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of
certain assets including financial instruments at FVOCI and premises.
However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax credits and
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of financial
instruments at FVOCI and revaluation of premises which are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred
income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive income and
is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.

The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale, except for freehold land, which
is always presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Material accounting policy information (continued)

2.19 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised at the date of repossession and are carried in the statement
of financial position with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances
made. In the case of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been
foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangement
or court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed to
the Group, or the disposal proceeds having been used to settle the
outstanding amount of loans, such loans are derecognised. For detail
information on the repossessed assets held by the Group, please refer to
Note 4.1D.

2.20 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that
result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and
other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are
excluded from these financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities and certificates of deposit. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 2.13.
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accounting policies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management has made
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 4.1E and Note 5 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to impairment and fair values of financial instruments.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

The Group's accounting policy for the impairment of financial
instruments is included in Note 4.1E. The impairment of financial
instruments involves judegement in determining inputs into the ECL
measurement model, including the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk, incorporation of forward-looking information and estimation
of the amount and timing of future cashflows.

(ii) Valuation of financial instruments

The Group’s accounting policy for valuation of financial instruments is
included in Note 5. Certain financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are measured at fair value with fair value being
determined based on significant unobservable inputs using valuation
techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used
to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by
qualified personnel independent of the department that created them to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices.

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies
Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies are described below:

(i) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and impairment allowances
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of
available tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax
assets recognised.
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Note 4.1E provide details that the Group made significant judgement on
establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,
determining methodology for incorporating forward-looking information
into measurement of ECL and selection of models used to measure
ECL.

(iii) Determination on lease term of contracts with renewal options

In determining the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favorable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset
to the Group’s operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance that is within the
Group’s control. Any increase or decrease in the lease term would affect
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in
future years.
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The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the
Group’s exposures to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk management
governance structure, policies and processes for managing and the methods used
to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
business processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise.
These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of
risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee (RC), a standing committee established by the
Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks,
approving significant risk management policies and monitoring their
implementation, and approving significant or high risk exposures or transactions.
The Credit Risk Committee is responsible for approving credit applications within
its authority delegated by the CEO Executive Meeting (Credit Approval) . The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control
system.

The CE is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks, and material
risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the Board of
Directors. The Deputy Chief Executive (DCE) and Assistant Chief Executive (ACE)
(business units) are responsible for the day-to-day management of various types
of risk, and are responsible for approving material risk exposures or transactions
within their authorities delegated by the CEO Executive Meeting. The Chief Risk
Officer (CRO) assists the CE in managing the Group’s various types of risks, and
approving material risk exposures or transactions within his authority. With the
support from Risk Management Department (RMD) and Financial Management
Department (FMD), the CRO assists the CE in fulfilling his responsibilities for the
day-to-day management of risks and initiating new risk management strategies,
projects and measures that will enable the Group to better monitor and manage
new risk issues or areas that may arise from time to time from new businesses,
products and changes in the operating environment. He will also take appropriate
initiatives in response to regulatory changes. The CRO and the General Manager
of RMD are also responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or transactions
within their delegated authority. In accordance with the principle of setting the
hierarchy of risk management policies approved by the Board, the senior
management is also responsible for approving the detailed risk management
policies of their responsible areas.
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Financial risk management framework (continued)

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence
processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and
product development plans, and proceeding to specific product development
activities. Various risk management units are responsible to conduct independent
risk assessment in the product development process.

Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due diligence
process to the satisfaction of all risk management units and approval from
designated unit heads/the management.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss caused by customers or counterparties who are
unable to or unwilling to meet their contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in
the trading book and banking book, as well as on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes well-defined authorities and
responsibilities for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
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EERREEES (8) Credit risk management framework (continued)
T\ 2 0 R b i HE A& S R Risk Assessment Department (RAD) and RMD are responsible for credit risk
B T E - ANEENAR B BEALENA HARE management. Various units of the Group have their respective credit risk
SRS (T SR EA SR management responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence.
TR — AR T R S 2 i s Both RAD and RMD, which are independent from the business units, is
FHEL RIS SR A B (S SRR responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and has the
HsAsE S SRR - SR B primary responsibility for providing an independent due diligence through
gfﬂ?%%ﬂfﬁi%ﬁﬂ@ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ’E%%E’?‘QE’\] identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure an
SILIBLTE AT » DL B ~ fff;é%u?i%ﬁ%% effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating
E&kﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ}? 0 - ) credit risk management policies and procedures.
AN E T ERESR T O HERNEE The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CEO
FHETREIGNE T AH R TR B - A EE Executive Meeting. The CEO Executive Meeting can further delegate to the
A (5 B S TS ~ 54~ A8 B SR B A e subordinates authorised by the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits
EERBEEA/N LB (S e RSN of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature, rating,
FEFE - the level of transaction risk, and the extent of the credit exposure.
(EEE TS KB Credit risk measurement and control
RV LAY TS IS AR E TR In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
AR BRI > W BV SRR RS continuously revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews
IS EER - on the concerned portfolios.
EEESRKE S EE Advances to customers and trade bills
AEE P X 5E T 5 g w b Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
R AR EN G EEA( N BT T - (5 the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
ESFEEEGHEEME MR EFH The Credit Risk Assessment Committee, comprising experts from credit and
B AEHE SSRGS S EEEG other functions, is responsible for making an independent assessment of
WY ER S T R - JE R E R R IE(S material credit applications or applications with higher credit risk. Credit
5 B 5 R s B A T B S & applications for non-retail exposures are independently reviewed and
WAL HEEER ST (R RELty objectively assessed by risk assessment units. Obligor ratings (in terms of
WL ) TS H G (BB e =R probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default) are
) Dl R e B 5 AT assigned to these portfolios to support credit approval. Retail internal rating
T RS R B Y systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
%’X%ﬁéﬂliéW%B%?%Ji%%\i’%ﬁ%%}ii including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans and
Fﬁ?ﬁﬂgglg@ﬁﬂéé%%ﬁﬁz&g” :% personal loans. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss
?%D\%?%Ji . %é{%%éﬁ%ﬂ?éiﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬂ%ﬁ% (iffl estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.

B PFHEER -

KRBT e SR TR fE AT The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
RFIIRAL TGS S (A N FHEE applicable) to support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk
LT (SEERE S K ofT o BHINIERE information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
JEBE RS » AR E ar S B I E F iR closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
B AR BRI S A B e e B R U G425 5 exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for
AR R ERIER eSS EEERS credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is
B I N SRR R R TR B 1T required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

BRg2 W Ry ERRAH IR - Sk tT

H iR -
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances to customers and trade bills (continued)

RMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc
reports to the RC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous
monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to
counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five
categories with reference to the HKMA'’s guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable
weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group
expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the
net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal
proceedings) have been exhausted.
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit ratings,
assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer or
security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage the
credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control processes as
applied for loan and advances. Ongoing monitoring and stop-loss procedures
are established.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. In the personal
sector, the main types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits
and securities. In the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of
collateral are real estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and
machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s
financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2022:
Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

A. Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the
Group without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to
credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group
could be required to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan
commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum exposure to

credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as

follows:

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature
of the counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”)
transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a termination
event. In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will
be included to form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement.
Under a CSA, collateral is passed from one counterparty to another, as

appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances to customers and trade bills, contingent

liabilities and

commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 76. Advances to
customers and trade bills are collateralised to the extent considered
appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of individual
exposures. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 34. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a
borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 20.77%

(2022: 19.33%) is covered by collateral as at 31 December 2023.
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e EERNE: (44) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
4. Financial risk management (continued)

4. ERERER (8

41 8RR (8
B. EEERLT

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis

() EFEFREARBNE
gEEX

THIRA & PRI 5
REBRZEEERITREL

(a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills

The following tables set out information about the credit quality of advances to
customers and trade bills. The amounts in the table represent gross carrying amount.

REEESIR ©
2023
12 & A W 7EsH EEERENSS GERENSS
e s T P st
FHEFRCARYE P Advances to customers at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
T T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
&k Pass 83,635,603 1,271,453 - 84,907,056
R Special Mention 43,642 3,616,430 - 3,660,072
Rk Substandard - - 330,379 330,379
A Doubtful - - 1,459,971 1,459,971
AR Loss . . 308,366 308,366
e Gross amount 83,679,245 4,887,883 2,098,716 90,665,844
TREAE Loss allowance (200,054) (133,842) (426,658) (760,554)
AR Carrying amount 83,479,191 4,754,041 1,672,058 89,905,290
(%)
(Restated)
2022
12 {8 H #I7EA IHMEERENLES FEERENSS
s e EEEEE THAAES1E THAESTE 4t
FBESHRCA B P B0 Advances to customers at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
HEEETIT BT HEMETTT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
et Pass 84,934,287 1,139,080 . 86,073,367
%?EEE/E Speaal Mention 8,491 624,569 _ 633,060
g Substandard - - 1,317,840 1,317,840
A Doubtful . . 225,238 225,238
A Loss - - 369,088 369,088
e Gross amount 84,042,778 1,763,649 1,912,166 88,618,593
A Loss allowance (351,625) (24,511) (95,244) (471,380)
AR Carrying amount 84,591,153 1,739,138 1,816,922 88,147,213
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SRS A SRR M Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(48) (continued)
4. SREREHE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 88k (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. FEE&EOHT (8) B. Credit quality analysis (continued)
() EFERKESEBNGE (a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills (continued)
g5 (8
2023

122EANTES  FFEERENKE SERENSS
EEEHE TR pLt] =i &=t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
P AR A E 52 Trade bills at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EFg Pass N . .
Az Gross amount . - -
B Loss allowance . i ] ]
ARIANE Carrying amount . - - -

2022

12 {iE H HIEEA FEEERMERIE S EERERNA S
EEkHE TEIFESR TEIHETR Hat

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
IS ERCAY L 522 Trade bills at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
et Pass 44,677 - - 44,677
Z}?@E Gross amount 44,677 - _ 44,677
ﬁaﬁqﬁ_{% Loss allowance (962) - _ (962)
WEMAE Carrying amount 43,715 - - 43,715
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SFE SRR Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)

4. ERERER (8

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 8RR (8
B. EEERMT (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

() EFEFREARBNE

(a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills (continued)

gEE (8
2023

12 {iE 3 #97EEH FEERENKE GEERENKS
e ) ) EEEE TERSE TEHHESE “ast

DIAHESEEEAEA  Discounted bills at FVOCI Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
EaIlempatEi 151 12-month ECL credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
&t Pass 28,388 - 28,388
HRTA{E Carrying amount 28,388 _ 28,388
JEIE R Loss allowance 721 - 721

2022

12 (i 5 YA JHEERENSE EERENSS
o ) ) EHER THIFETE TEIAETE Hat

DIAHESEEEAEA  Discounted bills at FVOCI Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
EaIlempatEi 151 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EH& Pass _ _ _ _
NRmE Carrying amount ) ) i i
I(EE Loss allowance ) ) i i
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S BERRITE

(%)

4. RUEREE (&)

4.1 FERE (8
B. EEERSN (&)

(b) REFERXREHRE

IMNNEEEEER bills

THIRAAE RT R HAt
BRI AS R R AR
ZEEERIEUIE
HESR -

T - 8817 R EAth Balances and placements with
S RIRE4SE% K 172K central banks, banks and other

G

R
TRIEAE

HRHIfE

financial institutions

Pass

Gross amount
Loss allowance

Carrying amount

T - 8817 R EAth Balances and placements with
S RIRE4SE% K 172k central banks, banks and other

G

R
TRIEAE

HRHIfE

financial institutions

Pass

Gross amount
Loss allowance

Carrying amount

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions. The amounts in the table
represent gross carrying amount.

2023

12EANTES  FFEERENKE SERENSS
E8EH TR HHlEH {8t

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20,628,095 - - 20,628,095
20,628,095 - - 20,628,095
(14,066) - - (14,066)
20,614,029 - - 20,614,029

2022

12 (& H #YTHHA JEEERIENIE S EERIERE S
EEHE THHEARSE THEARSE Hazt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT I AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
25,757,273 - - 25,757,273
25,757,273 - - 25,757,273
(8,049) - - (8,049)
25,749,224 - - 25,749,224
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(#)

4. RUEREE (&)

4.1 FERE (8

B. EEERSN (&)

(b) BREFERRESTR
SIMVEERRER (&)

ERAIH BRI
ER(EET ARV ES
HAENEHER - E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

BATRIREIESN I

G E T N R
s,
SR LA A 8 Financial assets
{BET A= & mandatorily
RiEE measured at

S LA P E
Zibst AR
ZERlEE

FVTPL

Financial assets
mandatorily
measured at
FVTPL

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

The following tables present the credit quality of debt securities mandatorily measured
at FVTPL. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers
are reported.

2023
Aal & Baal & Baa3
Aaa Aa3 A1 ZE A3 Baa3 AT FERTER 4T
Lower
Baa1 to than
Aaa AaltoAa3 A1toA3 Baa3 Baa3 Unrated Total
BT BT B¥TT BETT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
39,595 2,578,012 381,757 463,944 16,190 53,290 3,532,788
2022
Aal & Baal & Baa3
Aaa Aa3 Al % A3 Baa3 PUF TR 45T
Lower
Baa1 to than
Aaa Aalto Aad A1to A3 Baa3 Baa3 Unrated Total
BETTC OBMTT BT BT OBMTT BETT OBETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
545,551 1,202,791 7,857 18,498 16,860 162,317 1,953,874
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(%)

FEBE RN Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
€)) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4. GRIEREE

41 8RR (8

B.

(b)

EEERIT (8

REFERXRESRR
SINTREEEEER (8

B R 5
HIEERBREHTE
SRS R P A3 S8R
TTEERI T E— B R
Gl N Eh
BT IREFAVE T -

P s E - R
BATRFR I 2
7R IFAEEHIEEE R
SIFTAIT

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the Group manages
its corporate and bank lending risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties
with individual counterparty limits set.

At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of investment in debt securities
analysed by designation of external credit assessment institution, Moody’s Investor
Services, or equivalent, is as follows:

HEBSA S RIS
AR

Aaa

Aal % Aa3
A1 £ A3
Baa1 & Baa3
Baa3 LI
|
TR
HRIAIE

HESS PR AR
A R

Aaa

Aal # Aa3
A1 £ A3
Baa1 & Baa3
Baa3 LT
Y
TR
HRIAIE

2023

12 {i& B R TEEH JHERRENGKS EERMENES
- - et o iato] kgl gt

Debt securities and certificate of Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aaa 1,909,897 - - 1,909,897
Aa1ltoAa3 1,494,841 - - 1,494,841
ATto A3 3,906,713 - - 3,906,713
Baa1 to Baa3 636,738 - - 636,738
Lower than Baa3 - - - -
Unrated 39,475 - - 39,475
Gross amount 7,987,664 - - 7,987,664
Loss allowance (4,125) . . (4,125)
Carrying amount 7,983,539 - - 7,983,539

2022

12 {i A Y 7EHA IEEERERE S EERERE S
- - (EEEE A TEHGE gzt

Debt securities and certificate of Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
R BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aaa 2,873,981 - - 2,873,981
Aa1toAa3 5,069,047 - - 5,069,047
A1toA3 3,560,152 - - 3,560,152
Baa1 to Baa3 734,105 - - 734,105
Lower than Baa3 - - - -
Unrated 502,788 - - 502,788
Gross amount 12,740,073 - - 12,740,073
Loss allowance (9,487) R - (9,487)
Carrying amount 12,730,586 - - 12,730,586
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SR BRI

(%)

4. RUEREE (&)

(continued)

4.1 FERE (8
B. EEERSN (&)

(b) REFERXEESE
SIMVEERRER (&)

DL ESR(LE+ AHAth Debt securities and certificate of
EHWES 2 B84 K deposits at FVOCI

Aaa

Aal £ Aa3
A1 £ A3
Baal & Baa3
Baa3 LI

AR (E
TRIEAE

DA ES Bt A A Debt securities and certificate of
EHWES 2 B84 K deposits at FVOCI

s

Aaa

Aal £ Aa3
A1 £ A3
Baal & Baa3
Baa3 LI

AR (E
TRIEAE

Aaa

Aa1 to Aa3
A1t0 A3

Baa1 to Baa3
Lower than Baa3
Unrated

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

Aaa

Aa1 to Aa3
A1t0 A3

Baa1 to Baa3
Lower than Baa3
Unrated

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

72023 £ 12 31 H -
{ERIRIE N 5 TAHRG 1H
RIS itk Loty WANE o ]
o e Y 755 65 2 e A7t
SAHFR R 315,769,000
jb (2022 £ - W
321,560,000 7¢.) °

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

2023

12 {& B By 7EEA FHERRENKE EERENES
EREE AR TaiAEE gt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3,419,805 - - 3,419,805
19,751,205 - - 19,751,205
25,916,485 - - 25,916,485
5,537,386 - - 5,537,386
- 29,111 - 29,111
2,576,696 - 154,777 2,731,473
57,201,577 29,111 154,777 57,385,465
(35,991) (40) (113,267) (149,298)

2022

2EANEL  FEERENRE  (SERENAE
B8R THEAESR TEIHETR HEEt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AHTIT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,214,121 - - 1,214,121
9,807,230 - - 9,807,230
25,970,341 - - 25,970,341
6,441,841 - - 6,441,841
706,766 - - 706,766
3,343,991 - 136,156 3,480,147
47,484,290 - 136,156 47,620,446
(40,693) - (69,536) (110,229)

As at 31 December 2023, the gross amount of credit- impaired debt securities and
ceritifcate of deposits at FVOCI is HK$315,769,000 (2022: HK$321,560,000).
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EEMBEHRFNTEE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
4. SREREHE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 =850k (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. EEERMT (&)

(b) BREFENKE SRR
WEEEERER (8

HAth Rt & ZE Other financial assets
&tk Pass

R Special Mention

KR Substandard

e Doubtful

R Loss

| Gross amount
TR Loss allowance

NRmE Carrying amount

HoAth SR RE Other financial assets
&tk Pass

R Special Mention

KR Substandard

e Doubtful

R Loss

| Gross amount
B Loss allowance
HRII{E Carrying amount

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

2023
12EANTES  HERRENKE SREENSS
EEIGE TR pLt] =i &=t
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
462,826 - - 462,826
- - 728 728
- - 16,851 16,851
462,826 - 17,579 480,405
(333) - (7,244) (7,577)
462,493 - 10,335 472,828
(E51)
(Restated)
2022
12 {8 2 HY TR JEEERIERIE S EERIERE S
EEEHR TSR THEARSE Hat
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
592,684 - - 592,684
- - 5,472 5,472
- - 9,710 9,710
592,684 - 15,182 607,866
(163) - (5,253) (5,416)
592,521 - 9,929 602,450
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ST EENEE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. ERERER (8

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 8RR (8
B. EEERMT (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) BREFENKE SRR
WEEEERER (8

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

2023
12 {& A AT IHEERENSY fEREBENSKS
o , - fE e e e Yt
ERURH K IEUTFA R Loan commitments and financial Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
A guarantee contracts issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
et Pass 13,498,236 186,600 . 13,684,836
AR Special Mention 4,440 729,960 - 734,400
KR Substandard . . . )
S Doubtful - - 8,597 8,597
[ Loss . R i i
BRI Contractual amount 13,502,676 916,560 8,597 14,427,833
JEK(EZER Loss allowance (13,088) (1,594) - (14,682)
2022
12 {[# B A9 FEEH EEERENSS EEBENSS
_— , - s TSI TR it
ERURH K IEUTFA % Loan commitments and financial Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
A guarantee contracts issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT HEMETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
et Pass 17,321,738 52,666 . 17,374,404
?’%@Eﬁ& Special Mention - 52,900 - 52,900
KéR Substandard R R R )
i Doubful - - 8,597 8,597
[l Loss R . i i
BRI Contractual amount 17,321,738 105,566 8,597 17,435,901
JEER Loss allowance (40,743) (87) _ (40,830)

HUIRERIHIH 2 &30 &
HAR A B B s ATy
RIEE > AIFIEEIERL -
R BT IR R R
o H 2y R
W R ARG > RIS
WipE e - ARIIE R §
LCEMLIN T ON=S = 3814
A BEERARIZE R
B RE BB
RN I8 8 1 2 HE A BRI
o IS m R -

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.
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(a) AR RREAEA
BUERTHY B 1

BRA&R & M BRI R AN
WY& 2 Y A = 15 F R 40
T

FRIBCRAT ~ $RAT R HA 22
TRAEAYASER

TESRAT B HAth Bl A A —
E+ZEHANEHZE
JfFIR

PrEEfM TR

st LA S EB A
R L B A

BIATPER (L3t A St %
T3 2 A e 8

ez

DL# B pR A5 B 2 730G
BRI A

E S

BRASR & M EIR R SN
By B Y A% = 5 R A
T

EEEEEAHE

B AR B E

HATE S AT BB

B 7R S S i R SE R
e R T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before considering collateral held or other
credit enhancement

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to assets in the consolidated statements
of financial position are as follows:

(&%)

(Restated)

2023 2022
BT T AT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000

Balances with central banks, banks

and other financial institutions 18,667,516 22,245,986
Placements with banks and other

financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months 1,946,513 3,503,238
Derivative financial instruments 192,623 74,407
Investment in debt securities

mandatorily measured at fair value

through profit or loss 3,532,788 1,953,874
Investment in debt securities and

certificates of deposit at fair value

through other comprehensive

income 57,385,465 47,620,446
Investment in debt securities and

certificates of deposit at amortised

cost 7,983,539 12,730,586

Advances to customers and trade
bills 89,933,678 88,190,928
179,642,122 176,319,465

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to items unrecorded in the consolidated
statements of financial position are as follows:

2023 2022

BT T AETT

HK$°000 HK$'000

Direct credit substitutes 1,913 601

Transaction-related contingencies 12,726 22,916

Trade-related contingencies 41,614 312,586
Commitments excluding those that

are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 3,071,739 3,828,357
3,127,992 4,164,460
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4. ERERER (8

41 8RR (8
C. Eip&dE (8

(b) TR H B FERE
#

LUNBHI % P &K E 2
TR HATES M
Ti2 A SRR BRZ
B8 5 AR IR R

| N

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk (continued)
(b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is

based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of loans and advances.

L
2023
BASREAE CEREEFER FERBERZ FRECREER
EREFGEE HEEZEST 4E4R X B R
Gross carrying
amount of
Gross % covered by credit-impaired Stage 3 Stage 1 & 2
advances to collateral or advances to impairment impairment
customers _ other security customers allowances allowances
BT % BT AT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T S0 Loans for use in Hong Kong
TRemE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VRt - Property development 3,594,120 53.82 - - 32,464
- VP - Property investment 3,560,967 54.72 700,959 120,286 10,240
- Rk - Financial concerns 5,786,822 32.09 - - 5,648
- - Stockbrokers 1,346,101 0.00 - - 343
- JtE e - Wholesale and retail trade 4,969,015 60.48 78,788 20,440 16,983
- e - Manufacturing 151,782 11.27 - - 480
- e R - Transport and transport - -
equipment 435,988 0.61 104
- NI - Recreational activities 156,927 79.17 - - 183
- ERREY - Information technology 1,523,515 21.93 - - 3,806
- - Others 6,093,582 73.53 10,739 6,612 8,358
{EA Individuals
- EEEEHHEE - Loans for the purchase of
[N T flats in Home Ownership
B )i At Scheme, Private Sector
;ﬁﬁ?zgfkﬂ - Participation Scheme
P and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 41,406 99.22 - - 8
- EEEM YR & - Loans for purchase of
= other residential
properties 8,046,258 99.81 1,048 - 1,607
- Hith, - Others 15,606,464 99.77 7,109 3,027 12,015
AEA A 2 ERRAas Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 51,312,947 72.78 798,643 150,365 92,239
H R Trade finance 210,783 50.00 97,073 41,356 513
FEBLIIMER > B5K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 39,142,114 42.59 1,203,000 234,937 241,144
Gross advances to customers 90,665,844 59.70 2,098,716 426,658 333,896
TR A S Trade bills at amortised cost - . . . .
DIATE S (bsT A4 Discounted bills at FVOCI
AR SEBHGER 28,388 0.00 - - 721
B R S Advances to customers and
trade bills 90,694,232 59.68 2,098,716 426,658 334,617
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(continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

C. Bt E (&) C. Concentration risk (continued)
(b) BATESFEHZ ZRER (b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
& (|
(&%)
(Restated)
2022
A EARA  CRERFERK BEREY B RETREE
BEZEST fE | B A ZRAEAE
Gross carrying
amount of
Gross % covered by credit-impaired Stage 3 Stage 1 & 2
advances collateral advances to impairment impairment
to customers or other security customers allowances allowances
BT % BT T BT T R T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BB Z &R Loans for use in Hong Kong
T E<eRsE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VEEE - Property development 4,835,758 55.43 - - 52,796
- VPR - Property investment 3,193,088 42.04 646,555 - 32,167
- BRE - Financial concerns 7,764,700 37.55 - - 10,566
- RS - Stockbrokers 2,413,020 6.88 - - 239
- SR EEE - Wholesale and retail - -
trade 3,851,131 72.10 5,696
- BpEE - Manufacturing 386,690 29.10 - - 3,380
- R R - Transport and transport - R
equipment 435,275 0.66 121
- (RS - Recreational activities 33,880 100.00 - - 1
- EERHE - Information technology 965,706 0.36 - - 1,401
- FHth - Others 3,186,146 49.25 6,479 6,463 14,135
fEA Individuals
- MR EE AR - Loans for the purchase of
N T e flats in Home
Fl)rgisenenzn=rar| Ownership Scheme,
e e Private Sector
LEEe S Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 42,899 98.83 - - 3
- WEEHMEEYEE - Loans for purchase of
j=¢ other residential
properties 8,215,840 99.99 - - 980
- HAth - Others 14,033,168 99.62 4,869 2,239 62,090
AEA (I 2 SRR Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 49,357,301 68.56 657,903 8,702 183,575
E oA Trade finance 178,731 64.43 55,649 - 56
EBEADINERZE51 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 39,082,561 31.27 1,198,614 86,542 192,505
HE B Gross advances to
customers 88,618,593 52.11 1,912,166 95,244 376,136
TR 22 Trade bills at amortised cost 44,677 0.00 R R 962
B AR E S Advances to customers and
trade bills 88,663,270 52.08 1,912,166 95,244 377,098
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752,042,000 #50) o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk (continued)

(c) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the

locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an

advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the

customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

2023

B—RE=
EERE $F=EEe (24
EEEREEE ALK SRR BAEZE BEZEHE
Gross amount of credit- Stage 3 Stage1 &2
Total advances Overdue impaired advances to impairment impairment
to customers advances customers allowances allowances
AT AT AT AT BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
53,118,639 682,382 1,144,833 172,218 138,548
31,527,951 658,298 541,613 121,784 174,609
6,019,254 373,275 412,270 132,656 20,739
90,665,844 1,713,955 2,098,716 426,658 333,896

2.31%

2,173,190

As at 31 December 2023, HK$249,563,000 of the classified loans are fully
collaterised with no ECL was recognised (2022:HK$752,042,000).
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SR BRI Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(&) (continued)

4. &EiEBEHE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
C. Fks&hrE (8) C. Concentration risk (continued)
(c) EHMEERIEZER (c) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
SRR (8D
(EEF)
(Restated)
2022
B
EERE $=MEE PR
B EEEE AHAERK YRS R TRAELERS TRAEZER
Gross amount of credit- Stage 3 Stage 1&2
Total advances Overdue impaired advances to  impairment  impairment
to customers advances customers allowances allowances
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T Hong Kong 51,801,385 2,390,938 1,445,474 66,587 208,121
HRE A Mainland China 30,940,184 1,315,928 360,774 17,217 154,592
Hotr Others 5,877,024 395,491 105,918 11,440 13,423
88,618,593 4,102,357 1,912,166 95,244 376,136
(5% PSR AREH T % of classified
i3tk advances to total
advances to
customers 2.16%
BB BRI i Market value of
mE collateral held
against impaired
advances to
customers 2,468,495
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements

The Group has established guidelines on the acceptability of various classes of
collateral and determined the corresponding valuation parameters. The guidelines and
collateral valuation parameters are subject to regular reviews to ensure their
effectiveness over credit risk management.

The extent of collateral coverage over the Group’s loans and advances to customer
depends on the type of customers and the product offered. Types of collateral include
residential properties (in the form of mortgages over property), other properties, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits, standby letters of credit and
guarantees. Collateral generally is not held over balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions, and loans and advances to banks, except when
securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity.

The repossessed assets represent properties in respect of which the Group has
acquired control for the discharge in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
The repossessed assets will not be recognised unless the legal title of the assets are
passed to the Group. The fair value of the properties held as repossessed assets
and the respective amounts of loans to customers at the respective reporting dates
are summarised as follows:

2023 2022

BT AT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fair value of the properties 755,774 968,421
Respective loans to customers 755,949 702,626

The Group's policy promotes the orderly and timely realisation of collateral. The
Group does not generally use non-cash collateral for its own operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is
determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible
bills are generally unsecured with the exception of asset-based securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by pools of financial assets. However, the credit risk
may be implicit in the terms or reflected in the fair value of the corresponding
instruments.

The Group’s preferred agreement for documenting derivatives activity is the ISDA
Master Agreement which covers the contractual framework within which dealing
activity across a full range of OTC products is conducted and contractually binds both
parties to apply close-out netting across all outstanding transactions covered by an
agreement, if either party defaults or following other pre-agreed termination events. It
is also common for the Group to execute a CSA in conjunction with the ISDA Master
Agreement with the counterparty under which collateral is passed between the parties
to mitigate the market contingent counterparty risk inherent in the outstanding
position.

For contingent liabilities and commitments that are unconditionally cancellable (Note
34), the Group will assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line when there is a
concern over the credit quality of the customers. Accordingly, the exposure to
significant credit risk is considered as minimal. For commitments that are not
unconditionally cancellable, the Group assesses the necessity of collateral depending
on the type of customer and the product offered.
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(&) (continued)

4. SREREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. FEHi(SSIELWIZE E. Amounts arising from ECL

STEOREEHI2E Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
(Cadesd
SRR 213 Iy EstiE See accounting policy in Note 2.13.
%o
(EEREEERI Significant increase in credit risk
R THE R T B When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
ETEIE R i B g significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
NOiE o ANEEE e B information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
FEHEEASEER » % both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
S A R e AR R historical experience and expert credit assessment.
UN Q%N AR 2

Y - B EEEENEN:
BRI > RN
I ) JEE S BRI B 5 Y

EEEHE -
FHGHY B RV s b The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit
ARt S S B 2 risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:
AT
© EEEE HAVRER T - the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with
S E &R
(PD); X
o (EFAETESE E AT + the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial
STHVRZ IS BRI BR 1T recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment
4 PDOETET#ATE expectations).
1A 5% T B RO A BE AR
#)o
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4. RUEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FERE (8
E. FAESIRAHEINE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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TR AL B 22 5/ N
ERERSESH 2/ 3
A AR 22 5 -

R R AR EE
g S AR A A ERUA
AREINER - 21k
R R b
HeET B M5 B R
G o BEPEEE IS RIT
BRI -

Credit risk grades

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data
that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit
judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that
are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the nature of the
exposure and the type of borrower.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring
increases exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference
in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller than the difference
between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition based on available
information about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which
may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring
typically involves use of the following data.

95



4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking Corporation Led

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

S BERRITE
(#)

4. RUEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FERE (8

E. FAESIRAHEINE
(&
EEREGE (8
13EH

Corporate exposures

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Credit risk grades (continued)

BEWO

Retail exposures

=il

All exposures

- ERIEEE PAORERNER o b
Fatis - BHEEE - BB - B
BEEEIFITA0 « BAIA  MATSALAT AR 15
BEER M TEPEY - EHEEE
S

+ Information obtained during periodic
review of customer files - e.g. audited
financial management

budgets and projections.

statements,
accounts,
Examples of areas of particular focus
are: gross profit margins, financial
leverage ratios, debt service coverage,
compliance with covenants, quality of
management, management

changes

- SRR  FREE - SN
EESTAI (L

senior

- Data from credit reference agencies,
press articles, changes in external
credit ratings

o fE R A JE Y (5 25 (S 52 40
(CDS) f&@fg (ARA)

+ Quoted bond and credit default swap
(CDS) prices for the borrower where
available

* ERAFTERAYBUS » BB IR R B
HER SRR EEAITHIA E AL

» Actual and expected significant
changes in the political, regulatory and
technological

borrower or in its business activities

environment of the

- External

* PEEERYE ST RENE - BI{E A -RE

FERIE AR

- Internally collected data on customer

behaviour — e.g. utilisation of credit card
facilities

- A RIEMERR

- Affordability metrics

- [EESFHMEAINTEDS - ISR

fEETs

data from credit reference
agencies, including industry-standard

credit scores
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+ Payment record - this

+ Requests for

- (IRGEER - EREEIHREE LK — £

SIERHS (Ih Ry

includes
overdue status as well as a range of
variables about payment ratios

- T IREAIER

- Utilisation of the granted limit

o TSR A A

and granting of
forbearance

 JEWS WIS TIEORIR R IR K

T

- Existing and forecast changes in

business, financial and economic
conditions
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FERE (8
E. FAESIRAHEINE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD
for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information about its credit
risk exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region and by type of product and borrower
as well as by credit risk grading. For some portfolios, information purchased from
external credit reference agencies is also used.

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate
estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to
change as a result of the passage of time.

This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between
changes in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors as well as in-
depth analysis of the impact of certain other factors (e.g. forbearance experience) on
the risk of default. For most exposures, key macro-economic indicators include: GDP
growth, benchmark interest rates and unemployment. For exposures to specific
industries and/or regions, the analysis may extend to relevant real estate prices.

The Group formulates a “base case” view of the future direction of relevant economic
variables as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios (see
discussion below on incorporation of forward-looking information). The Group then
uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of PDs.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FERE (8
E. FAESIRAHEINE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by
portfolio and include quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors, including a
backstop based on delinquency.

The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since
initial recognition if, based on the Group’s quantitative modelling, the remaining lifetime
PD is determined to have increased by more than a predetermined range.

Using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience,
the Group may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in
credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of
such and whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis
on a timely basis.

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs
when an asset is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by
counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which
full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without considering any
grace period that might be available to the borrower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly (continued)

The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant
increases in credit risk by regular reviews to confirm that:

- the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an
exposure is in default;

- the criteria align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;
and

- there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month
PD (stage 1) and lifetime PD (stage 2).

Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including
changing market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a
current or potential credit deterioration of the customer.

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result
in derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased
significantly reflects comparison of:

- its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with

- the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the
original contractual terms.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FERE (8
E. FAESIRAHEINE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Modified financial assets (continued)

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as
forbearance activities) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of
default. Under the Group’s forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a
selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk
of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under
the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the
revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of
interest payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and
corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy.

For financial assets modified as part of the Group’s forbearance policy, the estimate
of PD reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the Group’s ability
to collect interest and principal and the Group’s previous experience of similar
forbearance action. As part of this process, the Group evaluates the borrower’s
payment performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various
behavioural indicators.

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk
and an expectation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is
credit-impaired / in default. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good
payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer
considered to be credit-impaired / in default or the PD is considered to have
decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL.
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4. SREREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. FEERESEEAWIEE E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)

BNTESR Definition of default

I DU o A The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

EER HZCMEEE

4

- EAREEGERIUE - the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
FEHE R B IRAIT By recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
T CAEERHECR) -
FERRAAN K ATRE 22
TATHEAERENE
HEE S =

- EER N EEE T HAT - the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
A E A EEE(TEE Group. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has
90 Ko —HEFIEN breached an advised limit or been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount
AR AT AV S 8 outstanding.
FES RIS A 2H
JE/ DR ER I 8RR
Ry iE e -

FEaHEER A SR EL In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group considers indicators that are:

W REEEHELT

fEfR

 EME - FlaERE - qualitative — e.g. breaches of covenant;
[

- EE - flandEik + quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the
HE R AN AT [El—28 1T same issuer to the Group; and
NEAEEN S —H
BT &

O SN R EAPREATIN - based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

EESHIER. -

SR T B 2R ELY Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their
e FEEE M A AT g significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

W 2 15 [ 09 $ 7% i 8%

1k DUSIE D AL -

REBERHZ BLES The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Group for regulatory
RAREFE FHEEEA capital purposes.

FH 222 P 78 FH B 8 35—

e
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FERE (8
E. FAESIRAHEINE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of
whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and its measurement of ECL. The Group formulates a ‘base case’ view of
the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing two or more
additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each
outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the countries where the Group
operates, supranational organisations such as the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development (OECD) and the International Monetary Fund, and
selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The “base case” represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used
by the Group for other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other
scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. Periodically, the
Group carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination
of these other representative scenarios.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses
for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit
losses.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

The economic scenarios included the forecast of the following key indicators.

FEIEATTEMN -
2023 2022
iy i AmMB I Ei=t i) Hong Kong Import deflator -3.9% to 1.2% -1.5% to 1.2%

0.3% to 4.4% -0.9% to 4.0%

AR - AEEEEE L
LI A ERE

Hong Kong Price, producer index

Hong Kong Nominal GDP 4.2% to 8.2% -0.1% to 7.9%

THRESEHEE - FHEE - X HKMA Hong Kong Loans & Advances -4.0% to 8.0% 4.0% t0 5.3%

TEAFER > 3 (] H B ESIGER Hong Kong Interest rate, 3-month government 2.1% to 4.9% 1.9% to 4.5%
bond yields
SETEHEERR Measurement of ECL
SHETEHI(E S8 LAY The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following
Flm ALl TR variables:

 RENR
© BOEAR S K
© ELIEBEAAYE -

BB HORT KA
A2 ST R A AL A
JEE SRS - iR S
Lo 2B R LA
BEMEEE -

BENERENR E H M
HIERAE - HERGET
SRR AR
BB Z TR
Wi Rk T BT
B o B LA AT AYEL
IS ERIERE S¢S
BEBNEERRE - 1£
ATAHEES T - T
D) S i3 IPNIRE
ERX G TR
e WMRRLSE TR
b R B AE R R 2 ]
&% > QSR EEER
BRI RTS8
b - BHMFZRER
bR BRI &4 E
i & B9 2 A 1 R A

Hoe

« probability of default (PD);
+ loss given default (LGD); and
+ exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models
and other historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as
described above.

PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical
rating models, and assessed using rating tools tailored to the various categories of
counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are based on internally
compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. Where it is
available, market data may also be used to derive the PD for large corporate
counterparties. If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, then
this will lead to a change in the estimate of the associated PD. PDs are estimated
considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FERE (8
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted
counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the
claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the
financial asset. For loans secured by retail property, LTV ratios are a key parameter in
determining LGD. LGD estimates are recalibrated for different economic scenarios
and, for real estate lending, to reflect possible changes in property prices.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives
the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a
financial asset is its gross carrying amount. For lending commitments and financial
guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as well as potential future amounts
that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical
observations and forward-looking forecasts. For some financial assets, EAD is
determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in
time using scenario and statistical techniques.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 FERE (8
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for financial
assets for which credit risk has not significantly increased, the Group measures ECL
considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any
borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for risk
management purposes, the Group considers a longer period. The maximum
contractual period extends to the date at which the Group has the right to require
repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for retail overdrafts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment
component, the Group measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum
contractual period if the Group’s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel
the undrawn commitment does not limit the Group’s exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment
structure and are managed on a collective basis. The Group can cancel them with
immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day
management, but only when the Group becomes aware of an increase in credit risk at
the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk
management actions that the Group expects to take and mitigate ECL. These include
a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/or turning the outstanding balance
into a loan with fixed repayment terms.
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4. ERERER (8

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 8RR (8
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

- instrument type;
- credit risk grading;
- collateral type;

- LTV ratio for retail mortgages;

- date of initial recognition;
- remaining term to maturity;
- industry; and

- geographic location of the borrower.

The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a
particular group remain appropriately homogeneous.

For portfolios in respect of which the Group has limited historical data, external
benchmark information is used to supplement the internally available data.

The Group incorporates additional post-model adjustments to address model
ineffectiveness prospectively when necessary.

In determining the lifetime ECL allowance on stage 3 credit-impaired assets, the
Group measures ECL allowance as the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows individually. The
estimation of expected future cash flows involves significant judgment around (i)
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the borrower or debtor which include any significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or debtor, breach of contract or probability that the borrower or debtor will
enter into bankruptcy and the status and progress of financial restructuring, (ii)
general economic conditions, (iii) effect of collateral and guarantee on the
expected loss given default, (iv) expected timeline of recovery; and (v) probabilities
applied on different recovery scenarios.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the
impairment allowance by class of financial instrument. The reconciliation is prepared by
comparing the position of impairment allowance between 1 January and 31 December

IE - LR R IR G 8 at transaction level.
M1 H1HE12H

31 HEYIEM -

2023

12 {8 5 BFEHT JHERRAEN EERER

(Easl sl K ETHIEHE K ST E 8t
X . Lifetime ECL

TR P Bk Advances to customers at not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL  credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
R1A1TH Balance at 1 January 351,625 24,511 95,244 471,380
25 12 (EHATESE%51E  Transfer to 12-month ECL 457 (457) R R
I HEERENE S TERESHE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (3,927) 3,927 - -
HEEEREN TS Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired (457) (19,709) 20,166 -
AR New financial assets originated 8,353 4,409 41,354 54,116

AR EREE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (88,646) (24) (5,522) (94,192)
S Write-offs - - (357,314) (357,314)
SR oy i
NS Ky H A Foreign exchange and other movements 7.411 (590) (2,030) 4,791
JEEHTE TR Net remeasurement of loss allowance (74,762) 121,775 634,760 681,773
P12 331 H Balance at 31 December 200,054 133,842 426,658 760,554
2022

12 { A Y 7EHA FE(E ERAE Y EER(ERY

E8kEHE K TRIEGR K TRIESR Hazt
X . Lifetime ECL

AR P S Advances to customers at not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
P1ATH Balance at 1 January 297,665 2,154 206,174 505,993
2 12 ([ 3 HFEA S St Transfer to 12-month ECL 2 2 - -
I HEERENESTEEHE Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (200) 200 - -
R (SEREEETEER  Transfer to lifetime ECL creditimpaired (919) (677) 1,596 )
T AR R New financial assets originated 71,175 19,039 92 90,306

A EREE Financial assets that have been

derecognised (142,760) (135) (10,827) (153,722)
Fas] Write-offs - - (575,476) (575,476)
SRS K A Foreign exchange and other movements (16,978) (88) (22,635) (39,701)
BB TE Net remeasurement of loss allowance 143,640 4,020 496,320 643,980
B12 731 H Balance at 31 December 351,625 24,511 95,244 471,380
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

The following table shows the gross amount of advances to customers of certain items

Hp LT H 19 PR in the loss allowance reconciliation.
2023
12M@HMTE  IMERRERN EERER
(Easl sl K ETHIEHE K ETHIEHE 8t
X . Lifetime ECL
AR P S Advances to customers at not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL  credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
iz 12 ERATHIEEM5R  Transfer to 12-month ECL 85,170 (85,170) - -
R HEERENE S TERESHE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (2,428,581) 2,428,581 - -
HEFEOREFASTEHEHS  Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired (254,720) (235,331) 490,051 -
EilIN: s vz New financial assets originated 37,116,211 2,310,469 41,356 39,468,036
EA I EHE R Financial assets that have been
derecognised (33,000,148) (1,079,251) (127,917) (34,207,316)
S Write-offs - - (357,314) (357,314)
(E51)
(Restated)
2022
12 {i A Y 7EHA IHEER(ED S ERER
EEEE  COTEER  KoTENEE Yzt
. ‘ o Lifetime ECL
e 5D N == /Y Advances to customers at not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
iz 12 EAATHIEEH5R  Transfer to 12-month ECL 6,240 (6,240) - -
RIS ERENE S TERESHE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (202,232) 202,232 - -
HE(SERENIRESTENEHE  Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired (2,216,684) (2,087,794) 4,304,478 -
FilGIN: vz New financial assets originated 44,376,750 1,455,526 134,595 45,966,871
4% MR Financial assets that have been
derecognised (35,047,956) (20,211) (2,011,710) (37,079,877)
S Write-offs - - (575,476) (575,476)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Discounted bills at FVOCI

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Discounted bills at FVOCI

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2023
12[EANTER FHERRENKE ERERENSS
EEIGE TR pLt] =i #Et
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
841 - 841
1 - 1
(121) - (121)
721 - 721
2022
12 EAMEE  IMEERENSS EERENSS
EEkHE THHEARSE THEARSE Hst
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Trade bills at amortised cost

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Trade bills at amortised cost

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2023

12[EANTER FHERRENKE ERERENSS
EEIGE TR pLt] =i #Et

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
962 - 962
(962) - (962)

2022

12 EAMEE  IMEERENSS EERENSS
EEkHE THHEARSE THEARSE Hst

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
23,512 - - 23,512
297 - - 297
(23,513) - - (23,513)
(2,026) - - (2,026)
2,692 - - 2,692
962 - - 962
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at amortised cost

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at amortised cost

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2023

12EANTES  FMEERENSLE EERENKS
E8EH TR HHEH Bt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
9,487 - - 9,487
1,477 - - 1,477
(3,064) - - (3,064)
15 - - 15
(3,790) - - (3,790)
4,125 - - 4,125

2022

12 EATEY  FMEERENSS EERENSS
EEkHE THHEARSE THEARSE “st

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3,516 - - 3,516
2,418 - - 2,418
(162) - - (162)
(33) - - (33)
3,748 - - 3,748
9,487 - - 9,487
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at FVOCI

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Debt securities and Certificate
of deposits at FVOCI

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2023

12EANTES  FMEERENSLE EERENKS
E8EH TR HHEH Bt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
40,693 - 69,536 110,229
(2) 2 - -
26,000 - - 26,000
(20,537) - - (20,537)
(38) - (53) (91)
(10,125) 38 43,784 33,697
35,991 40 113,267 149,298

2022

12 EATEY  FMEERENSS EERENSS
EEkHE THHEARSE THEARSE “st

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
57,090 6,690 99,199 162,979
11,158 - - 11,158
(27,982) (6,691) - (34,673)
(1,264) 38 43 (1,183)
1,691 (37) (29,706) (28,052)
40,693 - 69,536 110,229
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

DI ES BT AE A2 Debt securities and Certificate of

T Z S 25 B A7

iz 12 {8 F A S SR
] 5 SR BV B TS
T EEREN RS TR

EilIN: s vz

[ A R

DLAPAEE LA ATA 2 AU
i Z RIS 25 BT

i 12 {E BRI S BsR
] 5 SR BNV B TS
T EEREA A B THRESR

i AR

S R R =V

deposits at FVOCI

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired
New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been

derecognised
Write-offs

Debt securities and Certificate of
deposits at FVOCI

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs
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E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

The following table shows the gross amount of debt securities and certificate of deposits
of certain items in the loss allowance reconciliation.

2023

12 {8 5 BFEHT JHERRAEN EEREN

(Easl sl K ETHIEHE K ST E 8t
Lifetime ECL

not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL  credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(33,678) 33,678 - -
66,626,936 - - 66,626,936
(57,638,874) - - (57,638,874)

2022

12 {8 3 HYFEHA FE(E ERAE Y EER(ERY

EEEHR KB THIEE KB THIEE Hat
Lifetime ECL

not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
67,363,322 - - 67,363,322
(77,119,289) (339,947) - (77,459,236)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Balances and placements with
central banks, banks and other
financial institutions

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Balances and placements with
central banks, banks and other
financial institutions

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2023

12EANTES  FMEERENSLE EERENKS
E8EH TR HHEH Bt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
8,049 - - 8,049
15,382 - - 15,382
(8,037) - - (8,037)
135 - - 135
(1,463) - - (1,463)
14,066 - - 14,066

2022

12 EATEY  FMEERENSS EERENSS
EEkHE THHEARSE THEARSE “st

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2,009 - - 2,009
2,354 - - 2,354
(1,978) - - (1,978)
(57) - - (57)
5,721 - - 5,721
8,049 - - 8,049
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Other financial assets

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2023
12EANTES  FMEERENSLE EERENKS
E8EH TR HHEH Bt
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
163 - 5,253 5,416
- - 1,093 1,093
(4) - - (4)
- - (507) (507)
4 - (2,380) (2,376)
170 - 3,785 3,955
333 - 7,244 7,577
2022
12 EATEY  FMEERENSS EERENSS
EEkHE THHEARSE THEARSE “st
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
276 - 4,584 4,860
8 - 91 99
- - 471) 471)
(293) - (110) (403)
172 - 1,159 1,331
163 - 5,253 5,416
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts
issued

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

Loan commitment/guarantee
originated

Loan commitment/guarantee
derecognized

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

Loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts
issued

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-
impaired

Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

Loan commitment/guarantee
originated

Loan commitment/guarantee
derecognized

Write-offs

Foreign exchange and other
movements

Net remeasurement of loss
allowance

Balance at 31 December

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2023

12EANTES  FMEERENSLE EERENKS
E8EH TR HHEH Bt

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired _ credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
40,743 87 - 40,830
87 (87) - -
399 1,594 - 1,993
(17,301) - - (17,301)
675 (2) - 673
(11,515) 2 - (11,513)
13,088 1,594 - 14,682

2022

12 EATEY  FMEERENSS EERENSS
EEkHE THHEARSE THEARSE Hst

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
16,863 601 - 17,464
941 10 - 951
(3,926) (601) - (4,527)
(1,091) (48) - (1,139)
27,956 125 - 28,081
40,743 87 - 40,830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

SeMBERRIFE (8

4. RUEREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TR 4.2 Market risk
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Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a
balance between risk and return. The Group's objective in managing market risk is to
secure healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective management of potential
market risk in the Group's business, according to the Group's overall risk appetite and
strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well-established risk management
regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s
market risk. RMD is mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior
management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market
risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the Group, and
ensuring that the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable levels.

The Bank sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by the RC, CEO Executive Meeting and the General
Manager of RMD respectively. Business units are required to conduct their business
within approved market risk indicators and limits.
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HEVBEHENE: () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
4. SREREHE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 HEEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
A. ERE A. Value at risk (“VAR”)
AERAT R o P 2 F — The Bank uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
T E\Bgs » 17 HA e JR e i FER senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
ZE OGNSR EHE S A calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
EEHFAHSE—EEEST = market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with
R > 3 FERE SRR R 0 DU a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

EWERE LT HRIE 2R
TR 99% EEAKFTR1RK
FrA RIS A R E -
7S A S B e (L PR A5 -

TR AR T — A TSR The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure’ of the
bR s " - Bank.

i xS xS Eos
Y 12A31E  BERE BERE 2 B9RE

Minimum Maximum
At 31 for for Average for
Year December the year the year the year
BETIT BETRT B¥TRT AETR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

0TS e JE b (E VAR for all market risk 2023 1,342 688 3,121 1,811
2022 870 171 2,149 883
PR i\ b {E VAR for foreign exchange risk 2023 676 263 2,345 966
2022 812 97 812 324
IR e = JeR e L VAR for interest rate risk 2023 1,128 316 2,436 1,279
2022 344 56 2,018 802
Fa Note:
1. R B HE B 47 4 N 45 1 1 ik 1. Part of structural FX positions have been excluded.
CIAY R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

A. VAR (continued)

Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events
may not encompass all potential events, particularly those which are
extreme in nature;

the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be
liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk
arising at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may
be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into
account losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of
business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Bank recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators
and limits to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The
stress testing programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario
analysis on historical events including the 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.
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EBEERNE: (44) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5% (2022 4E : 5%) TFTA
HAh SR IRRRE > AR
WY BR TR 12 165 8 3% ek
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(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

B. Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly
the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure
of the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit)
are used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the
gap between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange
contracts (e.g. FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with
foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities.

The Group had the following net structural positions which were not less than 10%
of the total net structural foreign currency position at the end of the reporting period:

2023
AT
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
Ert ARY Mg
Total

us foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies

Net structural position 1,551,125 2,458,984 4,010,109

2022
AT T SR
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
Ex ARE S
Total

us foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies

Net structural position 1,549,243 2,268,137 3,817,380

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% (2022: 5%)
against HK$ and all other variables were held constant, the Bank's profit after
taxation would increase/decrease by HK$122,949,000 (2022: HK$113,407,000).
Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact in exchange
fluctuation between HK$ and USD is considered to be immaterial and therefore no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural positions
are:

- gap risk: gap risk is the risk arising from the changes in the interest rates
on instruments of different maturities. The extent of gap risk depends on
whether changes to the term structure of interest rates occur consistently
across the yield curve (parallel risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel
risk);

- basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the
yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period; and

- option risk: option risk arises from interest rate option derivatives or from
optional elements embedded in an authorised institution’s assets, liabilities
and / or off-balance sheet instruments, where the authorised institutions or
its customer can alter the level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk
can be further characterised into automatic option risk and behavioural
option risk.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with the “Banking
Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by the Board. FMD is
responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of
Financial Markets Department, FMD assists the ALCO to perform day-to-day
interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the
formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of
risk indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk
management reports to the senior management and the RC, etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, price value of a basis point
(PVBP), net interest income sensitivity ratio (NII), economic value sensitivity
ratio (EV), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into different levels,
which are approved by the RC, CEO Executive Meeting and the General
Manager of RMD accordingly. Risk-taking business units are required to
conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits.
Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of
the adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on
interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted
to the RC for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net
interest income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the
year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
value (i.e. the net present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a percentage
to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two indicators to
monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income and economic value arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
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2023
—& =
—EAR =@R +EA —FHE #HEML FEtR x5t
Non-
Upto1 1t0 3 3to12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
BT BWTOT  BETIT BT B¥TT  B¥TRT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 12,164,127 - - - - 6,705,048 18,869,175
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months - 1,119,366 827,147 - - - 1,946,513
Derivative financial
instruments - 1,253 - - - 191,370 192,623
Advances to customers and
trade bills 61,052,669 13,097,236 11,973,057 3,618,830 191,886 - 89,933,678
Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL 1,191,235 1,903,956 334,342 83,974 19,281 589,777 4,122,565
— securities at FVOCI
7,482,006 10,933,013 18,874,708 17,166,588 2,929,150 759,665 58,145,130
— securities at amortised
cost 792,333 627,203 4,288,478 2,275,525 - - 7,983,539
Investment properties - - - - - 817,051 817,051
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1,993,405 1,993,405
Other assets (including
current and deferred tax
assets) 13,633 - - - - 634,931 648,564
Total assets 82,696,003 27,682,027 36,297,732 23,144,917 3,140,317 11,691,247 184,652,243
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (6,726,003) (3,188,638)  (743,100) - - (4,086,940) (14,744,681)
Derivative financial
instruments - (1,263) - - - (92,085) (93,348)
Deposits from customers (54,797,998) (49,903,249) (35,583,214) (3,413,664) - (3,019,476) (146,717,601)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (89,184) (10,001) (49,086)  (166,546) (19,120) (2,757,858) (3,091,795)
Debt securities and
certificates of deposit in
issue - - (161,026) - (1,574,784) - (1,735,810)
Total liabilities (61,613,185) (53,103,151) (36,536,426) (3,580,210) (1,593,904) (9,956,359) (166,383,235)
Interest sensitivity gap 21,082,818 (25,421,124)  (238,694) 19,564,707 1,546,413 1,734,888 18,269,008
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets

Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Derivative financial
instruments

Advances to customers and
trade bills

Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily

measured at FVTPL

— securities at FVOCI

— securities at amortised
cost

Investment properties

Properties, plant and
equipment

Other assets (including
current and deferred tax
assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Debt securities and
certificates of deposit in
issue

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

(E%1)
(Restated)
2022
—& =7

—{EHR =@EH +ZEA —EAF AFERE FatE Hast

Non-

Upto1 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
BRTT BTt BT BT BT BTt ER T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000
15,672,774 - - - - 6,876,974 22,549,748
- 1,351,400 2,151,838 - - - 3,503,238
911 2,895 - - - 70,601 74,407
56,235,092 15,682,153 11,128,756 4,765,123 379,804 - 88,190,928
854,039 115,649 790,536 26,036 167,614 766,006 2,719,880
2,609,669 4,421,192 19,424,821 18,225,166 2,939,598 1,027,392 48,647,838
741,064 597,198 4,212,054 7,180,270 - - 12,730,586
- - - - - 146,110 146,110
- - - - - 1,947,153 1,947,153
5,563 - - - - 1,355,100 1,360,663
76,119,112 22,170,487 37,708,005 30,196,595 3,487,016 12,189,336 181,870,551
(9,835,271)  (3,150,920) (844,349) - - (4,542,503) (18,373,043)
(913) (2,890) - - - (77,872) (81,675)
(45,793,267) (38,458,427) (45,376,378) (3,213,599) - (7,993,153)(140,834,824)
(107,311) (9,451) (35,431) (90,456) (22,782) (2,880,039) (3,145,470)
- - (20,927) - (1,551,240) - (1,572,167)
(55,736,762) (41,621,688) (46,277,085) (3,304,055) (1,574,022) (15,493,567)(164,007,179)
20,382,350 (19,451,201) (8,569,080) 26,892,540 1,912,994 (3,304,231) 17,863,372
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

D. Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group

The Group is principally exposed to HK dollar, US dollar, and Renminbi in terms
of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2023, if HK dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi market interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward /
downward shift of the yield curve in relevant currency with other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been HK$55,900,000 higher
/ lower (2022: HK$15,700,000 lower / higher) . The impact on reserves would
be insignificant. The sensitivity analysis set out above is for illustration only.

Interest rate exposures in banking book

The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks
on the interest rate exposure for major currencies in banking book.
Subsidiaries are excluded from the analysis below:

K12 H 31 e
Impact on positions
at 31 December

(E%1)

(Restated)

2023 2022

EFAE Earnings perspective BT T

HRER Scenarios HK$’000 HK$'000
ATTEE R AR Up / down 100 basis points parallel shift in

SEAT RS TS 100 HLEE HK dollar yield curves 119,000 / (119,000) 176,000 /(176,000)
ETTEE S 4 Up / down 100 basis points parallel shift in

AT 15,/ T 100 5B US dollar yield curves (31,500) / 31,500  (65,500)/ 65,500
NERHEZE S Hh4R Up / down 100 basis points parallel shift in

AT LR T 100 235

U S R AR AR
P EECERRR ) T AR
AAERA S S ORI G -
MFRPATREE)  Rat B Ryl EA]
FR LB T RE BRI R R LR 1T
¥ FREREMEHERNA L
1 ERETE HEGLIERTE
HA 2RO FEIH H 2 E
B (R - LAl 7K 2 Ry
ARG R AR AR Ay — B

Renminbi yield curves (31,600) / 31,600

(94,800) / 94,800

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several
assumptions, including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation
between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest
rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural
assumptions of products in which actual repricing date differs from contractual
repricing date or products without contractual maturity. The above exposures
form only a part of the Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The
Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to
act as the Contingent Term Facility.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the
liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability.
Deposits from customers are the Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure
stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the Group actively attracts
new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary funding
from the interbank market. According to different term maturities and the
results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group
adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank
placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate
funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds
at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The
Group is committed to diversify the use of funds and sources and tenors of
funding to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent
triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem
occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has established
intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage the liquidity
funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance
of funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity
risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments,
derivatives, options and other complex structured products. The Group has
an overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover the liquidity
management of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-day
liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and
has formulated corresponding contingency plan. Where necessary, in order
to mitigate liquidity risk, the Group could take different mitigation actions
which include, but are not limited to sales of bonds in the secondary market,
funding from interbank market or repo in the money market, attracting new
deposits and keeping the core deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and
assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RC, ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures
the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk appetite and
policies as set by the Board. FMD is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial Markets Department to assist the
ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These
indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage ratio
(LCR), net stable funding ratio (NSFR), loan-to-deposit ratio, maximum
cumulative cash outflow (MCO) and liquidity cushion. The Group applies cash
flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal
conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution
specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) and other methods at
least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various
severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant management information systems such
as Assets and Liabilities Management System and Basel Liquidity Ratio
Management System are developed to provide data and the preparation for
regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2
“Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the
HKMA, the Group has implemented behaviour model and assumptions of
cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis
under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under
normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-balance
sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future
cash flow based on contractual maturity date and the assumptions of
customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group establishes
MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum cumulative net
cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to assess
if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in
order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December
2023, before taking the cash inflow through the sale of outstanding
marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day cumulative cash
flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$10,858,581,000 (2022:
HK$14,003,319,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined
crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of
institution specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of retail,
wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-
related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer loans;
and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities. As at 31 December
2023, the Group was able to maintain a net cash inflow under the three stressed
scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing needs under
stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable
securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector
entities or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued by non-financial corporate with a corresponding
external credit rating of A- or above to ensure funding needs even under stressed
scenarios. As at 31 December 2023, the liquidity cushion (before haircut) was
HK$21,921,341,000 (2022: HK$27,745,986,000). A contingency plan is being
established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test
results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant procedures and
responsibility of various departments.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis.
During the year of 2023, the Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than
100%.

The NSFRis calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2018, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate NSFR on consolidated basis. The
Group is required to maintain a NSFR not less than 100%.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.
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Assets

Cash and balances with
banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions maturing
between one and twelve
months

Derivative financial
instruments

Advances to customers
and trade bills

Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily

measured at FVTPL

— securities at FVOCI

— securities at amortised
cost

Investment properties

Properties, plant and
equipment

Other assets (including
current and deferred tax
assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances
from banks and other
financial institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Debt securities and
certificates of deposit in
issue

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. Maturity analysis

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting
date to the contractual maturity date.

2023
THEE —FE =&
B B# —EAR =R +=EA —=E6f #FNE &t
Up to 1t0 3 3to12 1to 5 Over 5
On demand  Indefinite 1 month months months years years Total
BETRT BT B%WTRT EB%TR BT BETT BT BET T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
7,921,282 1,330,481 9,617,412 - - - - 18,869,175
- - - 1,119,366 827,147 - - 1,946,513
22,200 - 91,378 54,107 24,938 - - 192,623
28,834,521 - 1,882,380 3,555,032 15,182,319 29,831,605 10,647,821 89,933,678
2,010 589,777 1,189,225 1,903,955 334,603 83,943 19,052 4,122,565
154,777 759,665 6,097,264 7,456,955 19,566,813 21,226,555 2,883,101 58,145,130
- - 806,452 637,115 4,284,481 2,255,491 - 7,983,539
- 817,051 - - - - - 817,051
- 1,993,405 - - - - - 1,993,405
222,491 35,830 366,543 536 16,913 3,298 2,953 648,564
37,157,281 5,526,209 20,050,654 14,727,066 40,237,214 53,400,892 13,552,927 184,652,243
(720,791) -(10,092,152) (3,188,638) (743,100) - - (14,744,681)
(7,458) - (36,369) (32,465) (17,056) - - (93,348)
(26,698,101) - (31,119,373) (49,903,249) (35,583,214) (3,413,664) - (146,717,601)
(446,252)  (187,983) (1,995,986) (38,889) (236,578) (166,928) (19,179) (3,091,795)
- - - - (181,979) -(1,553,831) (1,735,810)

(27,872,602)

(187,983) (43,243,880) (53,163,241) (36,761,927) (3,580,592) (1,573,010) (166,383,235)

9,284,679

5,338,226 (23,193,226) (38,436,175)

3,475,287 49,820,300 11,979,917

18,269,008
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(E51)
(Restated)
2022
NHETE —& =7
BEA HER  —EAN =fEA + @A —ZEHE AFLDE Hast
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over
On demand Indefinite 1 month months months years 5 years Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 7,820,709 1,493,613 13,235,426 - - - - 22,549,748
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one
and twelve months - - - 1,351,400 2,151,838 - - 3,503,238
Derivative financial
instruments 30,848 - 8,095 13,805 18,764 2,895 - 74,407
Advances to customers and
trade bills 31,168,997 - 1,199,660 4,876,192 13,893,767 28,251,045 8,801,267 88,190,928
Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL 5236 766,006 848903 115984 792,436 25445 165870 2,719,880
— securities at FVOCI
136,156 1,027,392 980,143 2,608,815 20,891,324 20,093,963 2,910,045 48,647,838
— securities at amortised
cost - - 754,301 614,187 4,223,446 7,138,652 - 12,730,586
Investment properties - 146,110 - - - - - 146,110
Properties, plant and
equipment - 1,947,153 - - - - - 1,947,153
Other assets (including
current and deferred tax
assets) 786,663 61,966 432,448 231 14,304 63,774 1,277 1,360,663
Total assets 39,948,609 5,442,240 17,458,976 9,580,614 41,985,879 55,575,774 11,878,459 181,870,551
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (1,209,097) -(13,168,677) (3,150,920)  (844,349) - - (18,373,043)
Derivative financial
instruments (9,470) - (23,544) (20,425) (25,346) (2,890) - (81,675)
Deposits from customers ~ (33,041,284) - (20,745,136) (38,458,427) (45,376,378) (3,213,599) - (140,834,824)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (664,945)  (161,710) (1,843,115) (63,180)  (287,481)  (102,256) (22,783)  (3,145,470)
Debt securities and
certificates of deposit in
issue - - - - (20,927) - (1,551,240) (1,572,167)
Total liabilities (34,924,796)  (161,710) (35,780,472) (41,692,952) (46,554,481) (3,318,745) (1,574,023) (164,007,179)

Net liquidity gap 5,023,813

5,280,530 (18,321,496) (32,112,338) (4,568,602)

52,257,029

10,304,436 17,863,372

AREE BRI Ry TR
W, B - BNEAE
TRE O R 2 B
7 A E TR
A2 B oy W (R
3 o EAARFHIAZ B 5y
A7y 282 AR 5 9 e T TR
T BAYIR B
T B {0 A o 48 A
(arg) -

The Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities which have
been overdue as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is
reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to
the residual maturity. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if

any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. Maturity analysis (continued)

Maturity analysis for off-balance sheet items are disclosed in Note 4.3B(c).

B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the undiscounted cash flows of the Group as at
31 December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual

FELARIgR & 4TEI F 51T maturity.
ZHLE o
2023
—& =z
—EAN =fER +=@EA —ZHE HEME 4t
Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
AT T AT T BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EREEM Financial liabilities
$R1T R HAth 4 mif% Deposits and balances
W2 15 R 4B 60 from banks and other
financial institutions (10,818,296) (3,203,739) (750,685) - - (14,772,720)
&P Deposits from customers (57,878,282) (50,255,076) (36,261,356) (3,671,043) -(148,065,757)
HAth & fH Other financial liabilities (2,397,452) (14,817) (171,122) (176,301) (21,042) (2,780,734)
BT E% %5 & Debt securities and
Faes certificates of deposit in
issue (250,823) (359,189) (1,875,980) (2,485,992)
SRR Total financial liabilities (71,094,030) (53,473,632) (37,433,986) (4,206,533) (1,897,022) (168,105,203)
2022
—& =5
—EAXN =EH +={@H —FHF AFEME “st
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT BETC BRTT BTt BN BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEER Financial liabilities
$R1T R HAth 4 Rit% Deposits and balances
W Fe Rk4tes from banks and other
financial institutions (14,385,813)  (3,162,419) (850,342) - - (18,398,574)
B FK Deposits from customers (53,815,750) (38,712,319) (46,201,047) (3,424,125) -(142,153,241)
FAt e & Other financial liabilities (2,465,052) (21,894) (127,810) (91,509) (22,783) (2,729,048)
O T{E7%:5 % ) Debt securities and
T certificates of deposit in
issue - - (89,688) (358,753)  (1,954,837) (2,403,278)
SRS R Total financial liabilities (70,666,615) (41,896,632) (47,268,887) (3,874,387) (1,977,620) (165,684,141)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an
asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are
disclosed at fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and
currency swaps.

2023
—F =7
—EERN =@EE +=@EB —ZEHF AHEMUE x5t
Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to 5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT EBETIT BT BT B¥TT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R AL RS L Derivative financial
e =Yt liabilities settled on a
net basis (7,453) (556) (710) (8,719)
R ELEE >~ Derivative financial
PrEEmIT A instruments settled on a
gross basis
A Total inflow 3,426,170 2,111,141 3,631,187 9,168,498
et Total outflow (3,367,868) (2,139,433) (3,582,274) - (9,089,575)
2022
—F =%
—{EHARA =EAH +MEH —EAF AL, Yt
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t0 5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BETT  BBTT  BWTT BT BRTIT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FORHEARELEE > Derivative financial
B4R liabilities settled on a
net basis (9,668) (1,150) (2,624) (906) - (14,348)
PreEaEEE4EE > Derivative financial
SR T A instruments settled on a
gross basis
A Total inflow 4,365,401 4,921,042 4,318,180 - - 13,604,623
HERH Total outflow (4,379,504)  (4,927,668)  (4,323,289) - - (13,630,461)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(c) Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments as at 31 December 2023 that the Group commits to extend credit
to customers and other facilities amounted to HK$14,371,580,000 (2022:
HK$17,099,798,000). An outflow of this amount could in principle occur in
the earliest time band in the above tables. ECL relating to loan commitments
is recognized in “other accounts and provisions” under note 28.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
December 2023 amounting to HK$56,253,000 (2022: HK$336,103,000) are
maturing no later than one year. An outflow of this amount could in principle
occur in the earliest time band in the above tables. ECL relating to financial
guarantees and other financial facilities is recognized in “other accounts and
provisions” under note 28.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the
Group’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Group’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio requirement. The ALCO
monitors the Group’s capital adequacy requirement. The Group has complied with
all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in
respect of banking operation as further elaborated below:

The Group continues to adopt the standardised (credit risk) (“STC”) approach to
calculate all the credit risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt the
standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the capital
charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty.

The Group continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to
calculate all the market risk capital charge and exclude part of our Group’s
Renminbi structural FX positions in the calculation of the market risk capital charge.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (STO) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (ICAAP) to comply with the HKMA’s requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2022. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed
to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under Pillar |,
and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges
for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the
flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group
considers this ICAAP as an ongoing process for capital management and
periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation
to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted
to the Board of Directors for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is
built up by assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well
as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is determined
and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the Group maintains
adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its business
development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk, return and
capital adequacy.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
methods and based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt
securities and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors. It
also includes properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to
ensure that fair values are either determined or validated by control units
independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all other
significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include verification of
observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models and changes to
models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed market
transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;
review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant
valuation issues are reported to senior management, RC and AC.

The Group uses valuation techniques with involvement of the external independent
valuer engaged by the Group or broker / dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in
active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held
by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity
and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are
mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

136



LN W
3 4%
Chiyu Banking Corporation Led

SeMBERRIFE (8

5. KEMGENAHE (8D

5.1 DIAPEEBNSR TR

JHEAREE AN i TR AP EVE
Pape i

BT RAF T

PR T RHINPEHRZ ST ~ R s
HNEE LA E RS R fe AR T 5
i (2 (o P OGRS e A A A o AT i 2R
JE - MEBRE SR SRR — A FEE TR
AR BT » PA—{i AT R 85 AR
Bz B T 2L 75 15 5 8 2 2 REER AR B
IR A R T B E R E R - 2
Le S BRI b AT R B T R L
FATRER I T B -

LIETH

BN GO TR ELYEIEINE - F
o P et ~ B RS
49 o PTAE T B ELIRERS EH IR
< A R SR S (B B S i (Rl
FE - A A2 BRI 22 SR T
EHISENE - ATEENSBERENER
B i B R SRAEAS ~ P {ERS B
Wi - N TR R BT R e el
(EREZFGREIS 7 Tl
—EERIIOTAE TREY) ) AFERE
AL Lo BE R AR

REBMBHINZHOLTETAEERT
(e AR R E R - SR
BN THISNREL - KO TER
FEEASEEEENIY - ARFEE
FEBIEF ST DRAKTEI
Wt SEIUEE S v

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market
prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using
discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation
technique that measures present value using estimated expected future cash
flows from the instruments and then discounts these flows using a discount rate
or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market for
instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these contracts
are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models. The inputs can be observable or
unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest rate, foreign
exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs may be used for less commonly traded option products
which are embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative
contracts, the fair values are determined based on broker / dealer price
quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are
applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market
factors movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each
counterparty and are dependent on expected future values of exposures, default
probabilities and recovery rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A. Fair value hierarchy

2023
TR F_EH% F=ER dEst
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT BEToT AT B¥ET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
Financial assets
Discounted bills at FVOCI

(Note 22) - - 28,388 28,388
Investment in securities

mandatorily measured at

fair value through profit

or loss (Note 23)

- Debt securities 39,594 2,653,696 - 2,693,290

- Certificates of deposit - 839,498 - 839,498

- Equity securities 512,773 20,158 19,751 552,682

- Fund - - 37,095 37,095
Derivative financial

instruments (Note 21) - 192,623 - 192,623

Investment in securities
measured at FVOCI

(Note 23)

- Debt securities 663,423 45,826,928 - 46,490,351

- Certificates of deposit - 10,895,114 - 10,895,114

- Equity securities - 481,581 278,084 759,665
Other assets

- Share receivables - - 33,293 33,293

1,215,790 60,909,598 396,611 62,521,999

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21) - (93,348) - (93,348)
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A. Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Financial assets
Investment in securities
mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss (Note 23)
- Debt securities
- Equity securities
- Fund
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Investment in securities
measured at FVOCI
(Note 23)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Equity securities
Other assets
- Share receivables

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)

2022

FEs ETESR FEESR “HEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
545,551 1,408,323 - 1,953,874
680,316 25,682 15,568 721,566
- - 44,440 44,440

- 74,407 - 74,407
384,852 40,724,956 - 41,109,808
- 6,510,638 - 6,510,638

18,604 616,658 392,130 1,027,392
17,127 - 34,492 51,619

1,646,450 49,360,664

486,630 51,493,744

- (81,675)

- (81,675)

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 for the Group during the year (2022: Nil).
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(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2023
Losses
— Income statement
— Net trading loss
— Other comprehensive
expense
— Change in fair value
Additions / Purchases
Maturity

At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022
Gains
— Income statement
— Net trading gain
— Other comprehensive
income
— Change in fair value
Additions / Purchases

At 31 December 2022

EREE

Financial assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEMMAPES R DAPEB AR S
it [l

B EE
Mandatorily Other
measured at FVTPL At FVOCI assets
ety etz =& KrEs L i3 FEBRGEE &Eat
Equity Equity Discounted Share
securities Fund securities bills receivables Total
BETT BT BT AT AT BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
15,568 44,440 392,130 - 34,492 486,630
(20) (7,428) - - (1,199) (8,647)
- - (114,046) - - (114,046)
4,203 10,969 - 28,388 - 43,560
- (10,886) - - - (10,886)
19,751 37,095 278,084 28,388 33,293 396,611
EBRIERE
Financial assets
SRAEIMELLAFEEBET DA HEE BET AH A 2
i Iz HAth &
Mandatorily measured Other
at FVTPL At FVOCI assets
Ry s8 o5 Ee KOs SEAR AR [ RESE HaEt
Equity Equity  Discounted Share
securities Fund securities bills receivables Total
BT BT BT AT ABETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
15,568 - 21,143 - - 36,711
- 190 - - - 190
- - 919 - - 919
- 44,250 370,068 - 34,492 448,810
15,568 44,440 392,130 - 34,492 486,630

BRI 2023 4212 H 31 HEF
B 2B EEM U AL
EAMEZ IE iR AR & 2 R
SEF S TEEE 114,046,000 T

(2022 4 : Y2434 919,000
TC) R AEA AL

AR 2023 £ 12 7 31 Hf
B BRI HEANRY
JE M EEIE - Riniss
TEE Wiz Pt 5% 2 R 8 B g 1R i
8,360,000 ¢ (2022 4 : Yz
Al 190,000 7T) 5FAEAR

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of unrealised losses of
HK$114,046,000 (2022: gains of HK$919,000) related to unlisted equity
securities at FVOCI held as at 31 December 2023 and is reported as " Change
in fair value of equity instruments at FVOCI".

Included in profit or loss is an amount of unrealised losses of HK$8,360,000
(2022: gains of HK$190,000) related to unlisted fund, unlisted equity securities
and share receivables at FVTPL held as at 31 December 2023. Fair value
gains or assets mandatorily as at FVTPL are
included in "Net trading gain”.

losses on financial
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B. F=B&AIHEEE (8

Ik LR AERY A PER A FLER
P TSRS B L R e
Fo (R IR SR A B
HEFEEE - A VEESEF
{EFEIE B - BTG
B (% - BRI 2 B
FEE R 5% AIASERE
LAt = T WSz BT 53 )
/DA 13,150,000 T 2022
4 ¢ 55 18,690,000 JT) K AEAN
/R D2 988,000 TT( 2022 4F::
Al 778,000 T ) - F5RERERLEHY
ST ETF Tk 5% Al
AERE L FLA s T UL R
/b /AN 599,000 JT (2022
Wy 754,000 JT) SRS
662,000 jT (2022 4 @ i
833,000 jt) °

JE EM SR A P EAEE R
HEEFEIGT R 5 B
JE o BRI AN 3 2 B
R 5% AIASER ZH
ERRE s A 1,855,000
JT(2022 4 ik 2,220,000 7T )°

JEUT R SR % N P OTARHEST. -
WAL P EETE - EYRSE
HY AR AR B & T
FISERB IR DU A 4R (I
IR SRR AEE - AR
AR ST IR R 4R
AR

DI PAEE bEt AR 2 S
B EAE R R E A5
TR AE IR0 A AR B e A
T Lz o e B R PR AR A B AR
TERZR R AT - RS
AT NE ARz E TSR T R
PrREEFIFRTEE - HHH IR AEIRAY
GHEIMFEE N > AR
RS IR SRR AR ]
B B A ER -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are estimated using the
discounted cash flow model, on the basis of an analysis of the investee’s
financial position and results, or net asset value, if appropriate
comparables are not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the
net asset values and negatively correlated to the discount rate. For those
unlisted equity shares whose fair value is estimated using net asset value,
had the net asset value of the underlying equity investments increased /
decreased by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive income and profit
after tax would have increased / decreased by HK$13,150,000 (2022:
HK$18,690,000) and HK$988,000 (2022:HK$778,000), respectively. For
those unlisted equity shares whose fair value is estimated using
discounted cash flow model, had the discount rate of the underlying equity
investments increased / decreased by 5%, the Group’s other
comprehensive income would have decreased / increased by HK$599,000
(2022: HK$754,000) or HK$662,000 (2022: HK$833,000) respectively.

The fair values of unlisted fund are estimated using net asset value, or
recent transaction price, adjusted for differences (if any) in the condition of
the underlying investment under review. Had the net asset value of the
underlying equity investments increased / decreased by 5%, the Group’s
profit after tax would have increased / decreased by HK$1,855,000 (2022:
HK$2,220,000).

The share receivables are recognised at fair value upon initiation, and
measured subsequently at fair value. The fair values of share receivables
are estimated using the discounted cash flow model, on the basis of an
analysis of the investee’s financial position and results. The Group
considers the impact of changes to the discount rate of the underlying
share receivables on its profit or loss is immaterial.

The fair values of discounted bills at FVOCI are estimated using the
discounted cash flow model with significant unobservable input of the risk-
adjusted discount rate. The discount rate is determined with reference to
the credit spreads of the issuer plus the market interbank lending rate. As
the contractual maturity date of discounted bills is usually less than one
year, the Group considers the impact of changes to the discount rate of
the discounted bills on its profit or loss is immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

MR TR

Unlisted equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

I bt LA EE ST
Azl TE

Unlisted equity instruments
mandatorily measured at
FVTPL

IO e APPSR (s
ABwmEE

Unlisted fund mandatorily
measured at FVTPL

Net asset value

BT
Discounted cash flow model

A

Net asset value

A

Net asset value

HTEENGRZ TS
DT O N T W
("DLOM")

Net asset value
("NAV") and

discount on lack of
marketability
("DLOM") for certain
assets

P
Discount rate

HEEFE

Net asset value

HEEFE

Net asset value

DLOM: 29.23%

NAV:
Not applicable
DLOM: 29.23%

19.80%
(2022: 15.82%)

A3

Not applicable

A3

Not applicable

fli{E R HYSEAHZE 2 R ME AT T
Valuation technique Significant Range / value HK$'000
unobservable Input(s)
FEEMBIA T EE (bt AR | EEFE EEEFHE(NAV") FI%f | NAV: R 263,008

(2022: 373,802)

15,076
(2022: 18,328)

19,751

(2022: 15,568)

37,095

(2022: 44,440)

5.2 JEDIAHEENSRTH

ON PR S DA — R E R % A R
GERMAREM TR ZE
fiti o BUN ZJ57A R B EAZ EIEE I
JERIRRFG SR TR Z I PE -

I 18 R SRAT R LA 5 AR

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

i e

i

KRG Z S REEE R AR NG
H & —ENEH > EIRm{EENPE

A

HEEERK

Kby 2 &P B FEIER  farh
SRR HAREEE A THE

GERS

LU ERpCAGT B (R T A

R DABRLIE S 3R 40 3 TR
PR 2 MR Ry B pE B 3R R A

RIEHE -

EHFEFK

KRG 2 FFEARRER %R —
FNEIH] - FHARANE LA FEEE -

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and information about various financial instruments. The
following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value
of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with / from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

Advances to customers

approximates fair value.

Debt securities at amortised cost

Deposits from customers

142

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from
the end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the
end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial
instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying
values being approximation of fair values.

2023
KRTEME ANFE
Carrying value Fair value
BT R
HK$’000 HK$°000
SREE Financial assets
e AT 20955 Investment in securities measured at
(B 23) amortised cost (Note 23) 7,983,539 7,856,611
2022
HRHEE ANFHE
Carrying value Fair value
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
DU eRA A B 5 Investment in securities measured at
(FfFEE 23) amortised cost (Note 23) 12,730,586 12,450,735

TRIRES TR H AP EAIER
THRZAPEER -

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with
fair values disclosed.

2023
$—B% F_ER $=B% &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AT BRTxT  BRTT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

SRIEE Financial assets
DU eRAA S 2R Investment in securities
measured at amortised cost 1,876,010 5,980,601 - 7,856,611
2022
E—EH Bk E=EH Hazt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets
DU eRAA S B2 Investment in securities
measured at amortised cost 2,387,965 10,062,770 - 12,450,735
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market
to determine the fair value of non-financial assets.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises.
All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year
end. This year, the valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their staff
Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and Shenzhen
Guoce Real Estate Land Valuation Co., Ltd., who is a reputable national real
estate appraisal agency and holds Grade-1 qualification as a national real estate
appraisal agency. Both surveyors are with recent experience in the locations and
categories of properties being valued. The Group’s Management had discussions
with the surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date. There has been no change in valuation methods during the year
and the methods used are consistent with last year.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as

PR E A R ERA T follows:

i {E 774 BRI W AN AR R BN EEAY R
Valuation method Significant Range Relationship of unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs to fair value.
ke or e A W VE sk Bl E7/E R =] 2023: R APERE -
WAEARE bZiE (HrE) -5.0% to 3.3% The higher the premium,
Market comparison Premium / (discount) on the higher the fair value.

approach or income features of the property (2022:
capitalisation compared to comparable | -39.5% to 10.6%) Prigie > APEBRE -
approach properties The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.

Ve AT bR SRR E |
Zfd/ (Hrfd) Jy2 B E AR
WHISEAEAFINER EAER
BIAIRRA & < T2 ) ~ L
(R ~ # SIR - #4E) ~ T
T~ MR EmEE -

Premium / (discount) on features of the property is determined after taken into
account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc., with
reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

A. Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 24)
Properties, plant and
equipment
(Note 25)
— Premises

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 24)
Properties, plant and
equipment
(Note 25)
— Premises

2023
$—B% F_ER $=B% T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- - 817,051 817,051
- - 1,559,265 1,559,265
- - 2,376,316 2,376,316

2022
E—lEik gk E=IER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT HRTT T T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- - 146,110 146,110
- - 1,633,970 1,633,970
- - 1,780,080 1,780,080

There were no non-financial asset transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the Group

during the year (2022: Nil).
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5. EENMABIAYEE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DIAHESTEAIESRIEE (8) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. E£=J84MTEE &) B. Reconciliation of level 3 items
2023
JeERIERE
Non-financial assets
T - BHE
Bt
Properties,
plant and
equipment
g ~C/ES BE
Investment
properties Premises
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
H2023FE1H1H At 1 January 2023 146,110 1,633,970
o= Losses
- Ygsgz — Income statement
— BV N EH — Net loss from fair value adjustments on
iRESIR investment properties (9,767) -
- EfiEEIFEE — Net loss from revaluation of premises (1,700)
— HitremEH — Other comprehensive expense
- FEEHEG — Revaluation of premises - (25,048)
e Depreciation - (23,922)
W Additions 655,408 1,265
NG Transfer into Level 3 - .
Etipay | Reclassification 25,300 (25,300)
PEE 57 724K Exchange difference - -
HR20234E12 531 H At 31 December 2023 817,051 1,559,265
W 202345!5‘ 12 H 31 HFFAW Total unrealised losses for the year included in
%Féﬁﬁ—é\éﬁéfﬁgfkw income statement for non-financial assets
pa Sl N 1
R EIRUG AT held as at 31 December 2023
- WEYEN\EERAE — Net loss from fair value adjustments on
FEE investment properties (9,767) -
- EfiEEIFEE — Net loss from revaluation of premises - (1,700)
(9,767) (1,700)
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5. EEMAENAEE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DIANHESTEBAIESREE (&) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. £=gAEEEE) (&) B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
2022
JERbEE
Non-financial assets
T - B
i
Properties,
plant and
equipment
"EYE P
Investment
properties Premises
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
»w2022F1H1H At 1 January 2022 153,630 1,708,115
Jagti= Losses
- Wk — Income statement
- WEWENVEMNE — Net loss from fair value adjustments on
e G| investment properties (7,520) -
— H Al 2 ST — Net loss from revaluation of premises
- (10,493)
- HremSH — Other comprehensive expense
— JREEEL — Revaluation of premises - (48,949)
Jree Depreciation - (24,287)
HE Additions - 9,584
A = Transfer into Level 3 - -
BT Reclassification - -
PEE 52 7558 Exchange difference - ;
#2022 F12 5 31 H At 31 December 2022 146,110 1,633,970
12022 512 [ 31 HEFAHY Total unrealised losses for the year included in
PAN=TIEZ =
iFﬁWE E‘Eﬁé\%gf}\q& income statement for non-financial assets
SRR R held as at 31 December 2022
- BEYENFERE — Net loss from fair value adjustments on
TR investment properties (7,520) -
- HitEEZIFEE — Net loss from revaluation of premises - (10,493)
(7,520) (10,493)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. JFEFIRUWA

&) (continued)

FIRWA
TR [ 38 B HLAh 5 Rl AR A Y
I

=PI S
AR

$t

FIBEHH

(7 378 Joo L At < R AR A 1 TR T 0
H

BEEEN

CEI TR 75 B AFkee

THE A
HAth

FRIRBA

FELLA PEBERT AR 2 &
L 7 L < 2 {3 P A O
U RS oy 7 Ry e
6,856,470,000 7T (2022 4 : 3
## 4,019,941,000 7T) i
5,374,859,000 7T (2022 £ :
% 2,249,889,000 7T.) -

6. Net interest income

Interest income
Due from banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers and trade bills
Investment in securities
Others

Interest expense
Due to banks and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Lease liabilities

Others

Net interest income

2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
514,226 233,412

4,371,761 2,781,066
2,061,829 1,035,468
3,794 3,044
6,951,610 4,052,990
(298,454) (330,310)
(4,971,274) (1,843,991)
(91,552) (66,454)
(8,299) (7,651)
(5,280) (1,483)
(5,374,859) (2,249,889)
1,576,751 1,803,101

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$6,856,470,000 (2022:
HK$4,019,941,000) and HK$5,374,859,000 (2022: HK$2,249,889,000) for financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
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7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Insurance brokerage
Securities brokerage

Loan commissions

Payment services

Bills commissions

Safe deposit box services
Funds agency

Financial consultancy services
Information technology services
Others

Fee and commission expense
Securities brokerage
Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Financial assets or financial liabilities not at

fair value through profit or loss
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

Trust and other fiduciary activities

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

149

2023
F—REEL RS R &Eat
At a point in
time Over time Total
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
174,769 - 174,769
60,553 - 60,553
283,876 3,759 287,635
35,333 - 35,333
5,081 - 5,081
- 20,713 20,713
11,095 - 11,095
4,640 - 4,640
- 4,476 4,476
30,210 - 30,210
605,557 28,948 634,505
(11,191)
(18,652)
(29,843)
604,662
292,717
447
292,270
6,627
(1,360)
5,267
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7. FEEEN;ASUCA 7. Net fee and commission income (continued)
(&)
2022
H—RGEG FERF “ast
At a pointin
time Over time Total
AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
%8 R HESRA Fee and commission income
e Insurance brokerage 147,330 - 147,330
Eogs e o Securities brokerage 75,219 - 75,219
Sk Loan commissions 376,562 3,089 379,651
E TS Payment services 35,096 - 35,096
MEZE( 4 Bills commissions 7,657 - 7,657
REFEIRTS Safe deposit box services - 20,606 20,606
FaCH Funds agency 25,580 - 25,580
WA SR TS Financial consultancy services 14,489 - 14,489
{5 BT HR 7% Information technology services - 10,982 10,982
HAth Others 23,936 - 23,936
705,869 34,677 740,546
BEE RS H Fee and commission expense
AL Securities brokerage (13,666)
HAth Others (21,088)
(34,754)
TR ERASERA Net fee and commission income 705,792
HEH : Of which arise from:
JELAANHEE LET AR Z Financial assets or financial liabilities not at
SREESNERAE fair value through profit or loss
- RHEE B aU A - Fee and commission income 387,308
- eBsERAeZH - Fee and commission expense (686)
386,622
{Eat M HAth 250 EE) Trust and other fiduciary activities
- AR BRI A - Fee and commission income 6,730
- &R E T - Fee and commission expense (1,355)
5375
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8. FX G MR 8. Net trading gain
2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
il () FE - Net gain / (loss) from:
YNHEAZ 5 KL HNERS S JEE b Foreign exchange and foreign exchange products 156,676 140,654
S MEDLA S E S EET AIE Net gain / (loss) on investment in securities
2 Ee g (518D mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
or loss 22,851 (57,780)
FIERT R Interest rate instruments (19) 30
P Commodities 58 47
179,566 82,951
9. HitE@MEEF 9. Net (loss) / gain on other financial assets
(1R) s
2023 2022
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
IDR: i D N - e e Net gain on investment in securities measured at
amortised cost 23,364 -
FUE BN EESE{EST AJE2E Net loss on financial instruments designated at FVTPL
Z AR T R - (599)
SEEIMEDLAEES (L AJEZ Net (loss) / gain on investment in securities
e rF (1R s (B mandatorily measured at FVTPL (other than those
ERFEE TGRS included in net trading gain) (235,262) 132,233
DU ES EsT A E M &L Net gain on disposal of on investment in securities
157 SRR E RIS measured at FVOCI 88,180 126,732
(123,718) 258,366
SERHIE LA T EE bEt A B Investment in securities mandatorily measured at FVTPL (other than those included in net
R RO aRE trading gain) mainly refers to the listed equity securities acquired by the Group for settlement
RGN ) FEEIEAEHE of loans and advances. Investment in securities mandatorily measures at FVTPL included in

Ry LAGE B % P ST BT net trading gain refers to debt securities and funds held by the Group for trading purposes.

HE - B3 PGS RS
BUATAER (L3t AtH 2%
UG RAA BN 5
T AT S S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. Other operating income

Dividend income from investment in securities
- Listed investments
- Unlisted investments
Rental income from investment properties
Other income in respect of investment properties
Others

(E51)

(Restated)

2023 2022
AT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
41,123 71,973
1,479 1,717
2,478 2,112
456 418
7,232 10,663
52,768 86,883

There are no direct operating expenses included in the other income in respect of investment

properties during 2023 (2022: Nil).

11. Net charge of impairment allowances

Advances to customers and trade bills

Investment in securities

Balances and placements with central banks, banks
and other financial institutions

Other financial assets

Financial guarantees and credit commitments
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2023 2022
BT HRTT
HK$’000 HK$'000

640,607 554,010
33,783 (45,563)

5,882 6,097

5,044 959
(26,821) 24,505

658,495 540,008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. Operating expenses

13.

2023 2022
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs 678,687 784,407
- Pension cost 91,069 58,264
769,756 842,671
Premises and equipment expenses
(excluding depreciation)
- Rental of premises 449 355
- Information technology 24,640 14,336
- Others 26,612 22,082
51,701 36,773
Depreciation (Note 25) 164,269 163,152
- Owned properties, plant and equipment 49,176 51,205
- Right-of-use assets 115,093 111,947
Auditors’ remuneration 5,578 3,862
- Audit services 5,513 3,862
- Non-audit services 65 -
Other operating expenses 389,087 287,167
1,380,391 1,333,625
Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment properties
2023 2022
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment
properties (Note 24) (9,767) (7,520)
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equipment

14. Net loss from disposal / revaluation of properties, plant and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Net gain from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings
Net loss on revaluation of premises (Note 25)

. Taxation

Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation
- Under / (over)-provision in prior year

Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Note 29)

2023 2022
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

244 -
(1,700) (10,493)
(1,456) (10,493)

2023 2022

BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

188 94,083
22,268 (3,759)
22,456 90,324
36,001 44,494
58,457 134,818

6,397 7,961
64,854 142,779

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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15. Taxation (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2023 2022
ARTT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Profit before taxation 241,379 1,045,447
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%)
39,828 172,499
Effect of different taxation rates in another
jurisdiction 8,795 34,253
Income not subject to taxation (38,274) (101,261)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 41,805 32,370
Under / (over)-provision in prior year 22,268 (3,759)
Additional tier 1 capital instruments dividend
payment (20,687) (16,965)
Foreign withholding tax 11,119 25,642
Taxation charge 64,854 142,779
Effective tax rate 26.87% 13.66%
16. Dividends and Distributions
(i) Dividends payable to equity holders attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year
2023 2022
=704 kG (5754 AR
Per share Total Per share Total
A E¥TT s AT
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$'000
Final dividend in respect of
the previous financial
year, approved and paid
during the year - - 0.148 328,299

1 capital instruments is HK$125,375,000 (2022: HK$102,818,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

17. BARTEF A
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Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of
employment after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of
service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from
30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions are subjected to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-
Prudential Manager.

Staring from 2022, the Group’s eligible employees are entitled to Employer Voluntory
Contributions. Employer makes monthly Voluntory Contributions to both ORSO and
MPF schemes, equal to 12% of eligible employees’ basic salary and bonus.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$60,060,000 (2022: approximately
HK$39,794,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$3,730,000 (2022: approximately HK$968,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$73,570,000 (2022: approximately HK$37,882,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2023, after a deduction of forfeited contributions of
approximately HK$8,610,000 (2022: Nil).

The employees of the Group in the Mainland China are members of a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local municipal government. The Group
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs as determined by
respective local government authority to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions under the scheme. Total contributions
made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$12,547,000 (2022:
HK$13,908,000).
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(continued)
18. EEHE 18. Directors’ emoluments
WH)‘& (EBLEIRE]) (56228) The emoluments of the Directors of the Bank disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
383 A H (HBEEFLE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) and the Companies (Disclosure of
B KRB AT AR AR T Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation. Details of the emoluments paid
HRE AT REHN B A TR to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect of their services rendered for
AT A R R W <2 the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as
SEFEAT ¢ follows:
2023 2022
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEE Directors’ fees 3,761 3,280
HoAth < Other emoluments
- HAHTE FORAL - basic salaries and allowances 5,672 5,827
- FYE S ACAL - discretionary bonuses 5,949 10,750
- HAth (BFEERREERE) - others (including pension contributions) 3,571 8,644
18,953 28,501
RSN TR ER T EE 25 2 Fees of HK$2,101,000 (2022: HK$1,960,000) were paid to the Independent Non-
S HEEH Ry 552,101,000 (2022 executive Directors during the year.

1 #51,960,0005T ) -
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19. EEFERESEERERTT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

B A SRR &S
i3
2023 2022
BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFRE Cash 201,659 303,762
IR LR TRV B Balances with central banks 7,248,054 7,158,721
TFIUERAT B Hoth < Rl i 1 Balances with banks and other financial
HY4SER institutions 1,803,823 1,851,850
TESRTT R HoAth < Rl AR — Placements with banks and other financial
@ B NEIHA > R institutions maturing within one month 9,624,240 13,236,002
18,877,776 22,550,335
TRAE A Impairment allowances
- RS - Stage 1 (8,601) (587)
- RSEL - Stage 2 - -
- HEZRSE - Stage 3 - -
18,869,175 22,549,748
2022 4} 2023 4212 A 31 As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the balance with banks are carried at market interest
H o $RT&EeR 2RI TS rate.
FlIZE o

20. FERfTRHEHANSRI% 20. Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing

#E—2+_{HARE between one and twelve months
Bz e HREEIR
2023 2022
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIERAT B HoAth 5 b A S Placements with banks and other financial
—Z @A RN institutions maturing between one to twelve
TEHAFEI months 1,951,978 3,510,700
B Impairment allowances
- TR - Stage 1 (5,465) (7,462)
- R TIEEE - Stage 2 - -
- HECISE - Stage 3 - -
1,946,513 3,503,238
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21. Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into exchange rate and interest rate related derivative financial
instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these. Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller
(writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy
(a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a
specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated OTC
between the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange
(for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract / notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract / notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the end of the reporting dates and certain of them provide a basis for comparison
with fair values of instruments recognised on the statement of financial position.
However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates or market interest rates relative to their
terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the
notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the
maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and
control.
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract / notional amounts and fair values of each class
of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

FEEH RN TR
2023
B/ LRBEE AE
Contract / Fair values
notional BiE =1
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRG] Exchange rate contracts
BITHA Kz Spot and forwards 679,742 26,615 (10,424)
KR Swaps 9,403,743 164,721 (81,625)
SINEERZ Z it Foreign currency options
- B AR - Options purchased 1,502 34 -
- HHHRE - Options written 1,502 - (36)
10,086,489 191,370 (92,085)
FREL) Interest rate contracts
sy Swaps 141,058 1,253 (1,263)
10,227,547 192,623 (93,348)
2022
ERVEE it A
Contract / Fair values
notional f{z3 aff
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRG] Exchange rate contracts
BIVHA R A Spot and forwards 890,986 36,399 (14,342)
f5L Swaps 13,087,446 34,195 (63,515)
SINEERR Z it Foreign currency options
- EHOARE - Options purchased 1,946 7 -
- HHHRE - Options written 1,946 - (15)
13,982,324 70,601 (77,872)
FREL) Interest rate contracts
sy Swaps 493,894 3,806 (3,803)
14,476,218 74,407 (81,675)
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(continued)
22. XEEHEYEEE 22. Advances to customers and trade bills
(E51)
(Restated)
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
{EVNEE Personal loans and advances 24,086,627 22,792,685
NEIERK Corporate loans and advances 66,579,217 65,825,908
BPEH Advances to customers 90,665,844 88,618,593
B P ERORE A Advances to customers impairment allowances
- P - Stage 1 (200,054) (351,625)
- HE TSR - Stage 2 (133,842) (24,511)
- RIS - Stage 3 (426,658) (95,244)
89,905,290 88,147,213
(% SNt Trade bills at amortised cost - 44,677
B 5 SR R Trade bills impairment allowances
- RS - Stage 1 - (962)
- RSEL - Stage 2 - -
- HEZRSE - Stage 3 - -
- 43,715
DL SEE S bat A H A 2k Discounted bills at FVOCI
T TP AL 28,388 -
89,933,678 88,190,928

2023412 {31 H » & EE0E
TEIE T F S 6 16492,734,000 7T
(2022 4 : ¥ 349,122,000
JL)°

4B EE Ry A5 357,314,000 7T
(2022 4 : ##575,476,000
TC) HIE SRS N X
2 > H: o 3 2 342,676,000 T
(2022 4 : ##203,797,000
TC) ANEEWEREETIBE -

As at 31 December 2023, advances to customers included accrued interest of

HK$492,734,000 (2022: HK$349,122,000).

A contractual amount of HK$357,314,000 (2022: HK$575,476,000) was written off during
the reporting period of which HK$342,676,000 (2022: HK$203,797,000) is still subject to

enforcement activity.
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22. ZEEHNE5ER () 22. Advances to customers and trade bills (continued)
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Transfers of financial assets

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers
recognised financial assets to third parties. In some cases where these transferred
financial assets qualify for derecognition, the transfers may give rise to full or partial
derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred
assets do not qualify for derecognition as the Group has retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
assets.

During the year, the Group transfers credit assets to third parties for disposal of non-
performing loans. The Group would determine whether or not to derecognise the
associated credit assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards
of the assets. With respect to the credit assets that qualified for derecognition, the Group
derecognises the transferred credit assets in their entirety. The corresponding total
carrying amount of derecognised credit assets during the year was HK$149 million as at
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: HK$1,676 million).
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(continued)

23. Investment in securities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2023
TREIED AT EE A FESB(EEFAR VL5577
bt ARz B  MREBREZER ErEZER #Et
Investment in Investment in
securities securities at fair
mandatorily value through
measured at fair other Investment in
value through comprehensive securities at
profit or loss income amortised cost Total
BT BT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Certificates of deposit:
- Listed in Hong Kong - - - -
- Listed outside Hong Kong - - - -
- Unlisted 839,498 10,895,114 235,758 11,970,370
839,498 10,895,114 235,758 11,970,370
Debt securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 30,613 8,088,728 3,102,432 11,221,773
- Listed outside Hong Kong 62,570 11,276,002 4,126,883 15,465,455
- Unlisted 2,600,107 27,125,621 522,591 30,248,319
2,693,290 46,490,351 7,751,906 56,935,547
3,532,788 57,385,465 7,987,664 68,905,917
Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 (4,125) (4,125)
- Stage 2 - -
- Stage 3 - -
(4,125) (4,125)
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 3,532,788 57,385,465 7,983,539 68,901,792
Equity securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 487,039 481,581 - 968,620
- Listed outside Hong Kong 45,892 - - 45,892
- Unlisted 19,751 278,084 - 297,835
Total equity securities 552,682 759,665 - 1,312,347
Fund
- Unlisted 37,095 - - 37,095
4,122,565 58,145,130 7,983,539 70,251,234
Analysed by type of issuer
as follows :
Sovereigns 2,617,607 13,949,887 2,516,447 19,083,941
Public sector entities - 4,178,272 473,547 4,651,819
Banks and other financial
institutions 1,271,768 37,908,102 3,510,832 42,690,702
Corporate entities 233,190 2,108,869 1,482,713 3,824,772
4,122,565 58,145,130 7,983,539 70,251,234
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23. Investment in securities (continued)

2022

FRAEIMELLA S
{LET AfR 2 5855
Investment in
securities
mandatorily
measured at fair

ARG Certificates of deposit:
- REBLEN - Listed in Hong Kong
- BB R - Listed outside Hong Kong
- JEEH - Unlisted
EES Debt securities:
- WEE RN - Listed in Hong Kong
- INEABLSN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong
- JEETW - Unlisted
TRAE AR Impairment allowances
- B TEER - Stage 1
%%# P EL - Stage 2
- B IR - Stage 3

ke e RS R 27

Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit

Belagss Equity securities:
- WEE RN - Listed in Hong Kong
- INEABLSN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong
- JEETW - Unlisted
B (s 4RE Total equity securities
E& Fund
- JEEH - Unlisted
YT > Y I8 Analysed by type of issuer
mr as follows :
BITER Sovereigns
NEERAL Public sector entities
RTT R Banks and other financial
HoAth eFn s institutions
NEREE Corporate entities

DA HEZEEET AR
MR s 2 B R

Investment in
securities at fair
value through other

LLeRmiA
R

Investment in

Y5t

value through profit comprehensive securities at
or loss income amortised cost Total
AT AT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- 6,510,638 1,338,910 7,849,548
- 6,510,638 1,338,910 7,849,548
28,168 12,697,667 3,472,047 16,197,882
570,701 7,552,301 3,335,844 11,458,846
1,355,005 20,859,840 4,593,272 26,808,117
1,953,874 41,109,808 11,401,163 54,464,845
1,953,874 47,620,446 12,740,073 62,314,393
(9,487) (9,487)
(9,487) (9,487)
1,953,874 47,620,446 12,730,586 62,304,906
693,617 635,262 - 1,328,879
12,381 - - 12,381
15,568 392,130 - 407,698
721,566 1,027,392 - 1,748,958
44,440 - - 44,440
2,719,880 48,647,838 12,730,586 64,098,304
1,157,770 15,001,676 5,134,137 21,293,583
590,572 1,906,855 473,128 2,970,555
801,367 28,360,561 5,462,909 34,624,837
170,171 3,378,746 1,660,412 5,209,329
2,719,880 48,647,838 12,730,586 64,098,304
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Sre MR Rt
24. EYIE
W1H1H
i
AT R
(i 13)

HIsE ~ 250 RE B EE T Y
8 (BffEE25)

12731 H

HY R BT (24O
ERHIRITA T

TEEERA
RIITHEY (ki 50 £)
HIFELY (10 4E2 50 4F)

HEFHBIINTH
RIITHEY (i 50 £)
HIFELY (10 422 50 42)
FIITHEY (Vi 10 £2)

2023412 A 31 H » 51
P BRI RN Z &)
S IR TR IR AN
Heos R ETT AR A F R
2023 /£ 12 A 31 HUAF
1B Ry AR AR P e 1T 2 AL
B - A PHEEEEE B
TR TR SRS N [
B2 BN EE—IHIEY
SEMEHUSHIHS -

FEALERE - EEDFER ST
AW EE BICEY)
¥ %Ay 606,794,000 &
7T (2022 48+ 4%) - L5 - i
IEBERRIRR A =
EELIER S AT
BEEYR > @R
20,081,000 ;#&7t (2022 4F-

i)

24. Investment properties

2023 2022
BT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1 January 146,110 153,630
Additions 655,408 -

Net loss from fair value adjustments (Note 13)
(9,767) (7,520)

Reclassification from properties, plant and

equipment (Note 25) 25,300 -
At 31 December 817,051 146,110

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of
the leases as follows:

2023 2022
BT T AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 66,200 138,410
On medium-term lease (10 - 50 years) 93,200 -

Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 20,081 -
On medium-term lease (10 - 50 years) 629,570 -
On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 8,000 7,700
817,051 146,110

As at 31 December 2023, investment properties, including investment properties under
constructions,were included in the statement of financial position at valuation carried out
at 31 December 2023 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
surveyors as disclosed in Note 5.3. The fair value represents the price that would be
received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with market participants
at the measurement date. The investment properties are mainly leased out for commercial
use or held for selling purpose.

During the year, the Group had a non-cash transfer from property to be received of
HK$606,794,000 (2022: Nil) to investment properties. Additionally, non-cash additions of
investment properties under construction were acquired through the settlement of loans
and advances, amounting to HK$20,081,000 (2022: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25. Properties, plant and equipment

R EEEFIE e~ EE
i BE SRR gt
Right-of-use Equipment,
assets of fixtures and
premises Premises fittings Total
AETIT  BETT BETIT A¥TT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
Net book value at
1 January 2023 191,264 1,633,970 121,919 1,947,153
Additions 172,518 1,265 103,397 277,180
Disposals (4,518) - (7,606) (12,124)
Revaluation - (26,748) - (26,748)
Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (115,093) (23,922) (25,254) (164,269)
Reclassification to Investment
properties - (25,300) - (25,300)
Exchange difference (1,576) - (911) (2,487)
Net book value at
31 December 2023 242,595 1,559,265 191,545 1,993,405
At 31 December 2023
At cost 403,455 - 351,739 755,194
At valuation - 1,559,265 - 1,559,265
403,455 1,559,265 351,739 2,314,459
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (160,860) - (160,194) (321,054)
Net book value at
31 December 2023 242,595 1,559,265 191,545 1,993,405
J i (5 P St~ [EE
I {z3 BE B dast
Right-of-use Equipment,
assets of fixtures and
premises Premises fittings Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Net book value at
1 January 2022 241,753 1,708,115 109,362 2,059,230
Additions 99,575 9,584 44,012 153,171
Disposals (27,275) - - (27,275)
Revaluation - (59,442) - (59,442)
Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (111,947) (24,287) (26,918) (163,152)
Exchange difference (10,842) - (4,537)  (15,379)
Net book value at
31 December 2022 191,264 1,633,970 121,919 1,947,153
At 31 December 2022
At cost 384,386 - 262,102 646,488
At valuation - 1,633,970 - 1,633,970
384,386 1,633,970 262,102 2,280,458
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (193,122) - (140,183) (333,305)
Net book value at
31 December 2022 191,264 1,633,970 121,919 1,947,153
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25, Y - B EEHE 25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
(&)

B E 2 FRIAMEAZAH SRR I The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
FROPHTATR follows:
2023 2022
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EFEENE Held in Hong Kong
RIHATHEY (&8 50 1) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,004,459 1,066,900
HHIATHEY (10 424 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 520,506 532,270
EEEDINTE Held outside Hong Kong
HHRATHAY (10 424 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 29,400 30,000
HHIHATELY (/D38 10 4F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 4,900 4,800
1,559,265 1,633,970
2023 /£ 12 § 31 H » %1 As at 31 December 2023, premises were included in the statement of financial position at
AR Z FE > T valuation carried out at 31 December 2023 on the basis of their fair value by an
I8 M8 T R R R B S M independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
HHITTARAER 2023 & represents the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction
12 H 31 HEPLAHE iRt with market participants at the measurement date.

FTET 2 B2 E - A PE
TR E A B AR
SCHYIE ST 1 T 52 B Y
B —THEERERSAHE

&
g Bl B4R - RE As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
{EEZEN N E recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and income statement as follows:
BB T
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
(&t BEEE LR - BRTAT Charged premises revaluation reserve, gross of
= tax (25,048) (48,949)
B FEEFEE Net loss on revaluation of premises
(B3 14) (Note 14) (1,700) (10,493)
(26,748) (59,442)
2023 412 4 31 H » & As at 31 December 2023, the net book value of premises that would have been included
B E A B BT in the Group’s statement of financial position had the premises been carried at cost less
BE R ABIRRYER - AEE accumulated depreciation and impairment losses was HK$500,843,000 (2022:

BRI R 2 R M HK$508,272,000).
HOOR H E R B W

500,843,000 7t (2022 4. :

Hsils 508,272,000 7)) ©

167



4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking Corporation Led

SEE BRI

W

25.
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% 2023 4212 A 31 Hil-
R HHE B ER N AEE
% W 122,024,000 T
( 2022 4 &g
121,250,000 7T ) ©

AEERE A ST A = ROy
TTHIRNEE - HEGLIE W
FEAFAENEEHSET
7 MERTREELE T OSLATHLRY
CETHIEERE o RS RIE
iy - HEESERE R
BRI = PRI T
i N eI IR - 4G
JEFI &R ERIEE &L
ATSRHIATTHIRAMR - A& H
TRA % AT 4R ST B
i - HRIREA I ATRER
AR ET A E
Hy e o BTRFAVAETE
PP ] AR T
E AP AT - AR
B SRR H A S
7 & B GE 1T (F SR TH e 4
- IAEEAN R G
T B R R
ARATH AT KA VB AE JE
HLATR

Ol 2 A A
LA B AE

Rt AHE A FEIEEARK
FHETRC CRAEERD
AL AR A%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
HK$122,024,000 (2022: HK$121,250,000)

The Group leases various offices and branches for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of two years to five years, but may have extension options for
offices as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable. The Group has extension options in a
number of leases. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
the assets used in the Group’s operations. The extension options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessors. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options.
The potential exposures to these future lease payments for extension options in which the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise are summarised below:

2023 2022
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Lease liabilities recognised
Offices at Hong Kong 52,495 45,550
Potential future lease payments not included in
lease liabilities (undiscounted)
Offices at Hong Kong 97,337 63,405
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26. HAn&E 26. Other assets
(E51)
(Restated)
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
H5EE Precious metals 58,232 66,314
TEHETE K, FE 2 Accounts receivable and prepayments 537,999 635,751
FEWZE Property to be received - 606,794
596,231 1,308,859
TEUL BE TR R B Impairment allowances of accounts receivable
- FREPEER - Stage 1 (333) (163)
- P PR - Stage 2 i |
- BE=IEE - Stage 3 (7,244) (5,253)
588,654 1,303,443
27. R 27. Deposits from customers
2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BN AL SRR Demand deposits and current accounts 6,489,599 8,419,879
FEETER Savings deposits 19,952,419 24,269,403
TERH ~ JEHHROBAITER Time, call and notice deposits 120,275,583 108,145,542
146,717,601 140,834,824
28. EMMARIE R EH 28. Other accounts and provisions
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
HoAh (T HRIE Other accounts payable 2,611,806 2,769,347
HEAE Lease liabilities 250,986 198,860
HEffE Provisions 12,943 11,297
2,875,735 2,979,504
EEROREE B EEE H ORek 2 Impairment allowances of loan commitments
TAEEER and financial guarantees contracts issued
- PR - Stage 1 13,088 40,743
- R TIEEE - Stage 2 1,594 87
- R =S - Stage 3 - -
2,890,417 3,020,334
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29. RIERIH

BIERAE IR T &G
HANFE29E TSR 5
o EERM PSR

SLELAE 5 R N R 1
W T P R R

FATRIRIE R (R PEE -

WA SRR N Z I AERIIH
"/ (BE) F2EES -
DUR EAE N 2 B0

T
W 2023 At 1 January 2023
1H1H
fEe,/ (&x) Wis  Charged / (credited) to
Z% (MffsE15) income statement
(Note 15)
(&) fEsc H A (Credited) / charged to
LS other comprehensive
income
Ve S0 A2 Exchange difference
A 2023 4 At 31 December 2023
12431 d
i 2022 4 At 1 January 2022
1H1H
Eee (E30) W Charged / (credited) to
%= ([fzE15) income statement
(Note 15)
I= il iallien Credited to other
comprehensive income
PEE 7 A28 Exchange difference
2022 £ At 31 December 2022
12431 d

29. Deferred taxation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12, “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax liabilities / (assets) recorded in the statement of
financial position, and the movements during the year are as follows:

2023

DUARA SR

Abst A AL

i1 7y 2HEEZ
SRR FEEN i X Ezes HAt st

Investment

Accelerated in

tax Premises Impairment  securities
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance at FVOCI Others Total
BT BT BETT AETT  ERTT BETT EB¥TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
35,799 211,256  (33,853) (63,319) (129,280) (1,632) 18,971
14,061 (1,589) 8,932 4,848 (19,855) 6,397
- (10,614) - 103,086 - 92,472
- - 623 1,504 543 29 2,699
49,860 199,053  (24,298) (56,967) (25,651) (21,458) 120,539

2022

LIRS

{BEt A A

DT EHWEEZ
RiE  FEEM e B Fees HAth dEst

Accelerated Investment

tax Premises Impairment in securities
depreciation _revaluation Losses allowance at FVOCI Others Total
BHTT BIFTOT OBMTT  BWTOT  BIFTOT BIFTOT BIFTT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
32,122 223,032 (30,884) (59,300) (39,239) (24,886) 100,845
3,677 (457) (5,269) (13,244) - 23,254 7,961
- (11,319) - - (89,823) - (101,142)
- - 2,300 9,225 (218) - 11,307
35,799 211,256 (33,853) (63,319) (129,280) (1,632) 18,971
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29. Deferred taxation (continued)

29. RIERIE (8)

EARERAN TR AR
HEHERABIHA AR
AR ARSI R [R]— P s
B > BUFTRHIE HE A AYIEIE
RITA A B R A L TR S (R
A - NIHEA BRI
WIIIRZ %0 CEt ABE
S -

IRIER I A
IRERITA AR

#20234E12 5 31H » A4
RIS IR LR A 2 2 L%
165 18 B H% % 37,556,000 7T

(20224F © AEEAHEL IR
IERTEE B MR Fe s
#430,168,0007T. ) - HHRBHANE
IR IETR TH A 7 Ry By B W
6,197,00077 (20224 : 4R
B AR ARG T A 7 Ry o o
14,978,000 ) - # IRAR[E
Bl% / HER TG - A

R -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same taxable entity by the same authority. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position:

2023 2022

AT AT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Deferred tax assets (35,830) (57,220)
Deferred tax liabilities 156,369 76,191
120,539 18,971

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses amounting to HK$37,556,000 (2022: the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$30,168,000) as it is uncertain whether
sufficient future taxable profits will be available in the future to offset the amount, and the
relevant unrecognized deferred tax assets are amounting to HK$6,197,000 (2022: the
relevant unrecognized deferred tax assets were amounting to HK$4,978,000). All of the
amount for the Group has no expiry date under the current tax legislation in different
countries/regions.
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30. ERTEBSSR 30. Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
ek

2023 2022
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BHESHRAT IR 2 T7kGE Certificate of deposit at amortised cost 161,026 -
PN AT RERS 2032 4F US$200 million fixed rate subordinated notes issued
#I[HH >~ 200,000,000 ZE7T due 2032 at amortised cost (Note i)
TEEBEDZRE (i) 1,574,784 1,572,167
1,735,810 1,572,167
FFEE Note
i) LETARERITIN 2022424 H7 i) This represents US$200,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year subordinated notes
H #1{72200,000,000 3 qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank issued on 7 April 2022 in accordance with the
TCAEE B ST L B Banking (Capital) Rules (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
& (EZEME =) Mt Exchange. The Notes will mature on 7 April 2032 with an optional redemption date
TE Ry HE AR 10 1% falling on 7 April 2027 and any interest payment date thereafter. Interest at 5.75% p.a.
fEEE (T ) (HERE is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the first optional redemption date.
ERIT2E (A R 2 Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes
{BRR) - PEEF S5 142032 will bear interest at the prevailing 5-year U.S Treasury Rate plus a fixed initial spread.
FARTHERRA - BRI The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of HKMA, redeem the Notes at
BHR2027TF477H RH the option of the Bank in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption
RAVEEFETIRE - H date or for tax or regulatory reasons at any time prior to maturity of the Notes.
BT H 2 E (AR
H » FEB5.75% » G44E
fE— - Hig o B
TEBE R I H ] - 1%
BIFI S FEET HENFS
M 55 B B R 2 R R0 )
WHHETHZE - BEESE
[ETEAAE - ASRIT A
R M IR H B
B S TR G A 2R E
AR AT H - DASE i
EEERTA (GEE ) =
.
31. A 31. Share capital
LIBREFE A N REAR L The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
EE SRS - WA time and have the right to vote at meetings of the Bank's residual net assets.
TRIeR P A E g LR -
2023 2022
et g E BT EahE =l AT
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$'000
N1TH1EE12H31H At 1 January and 31
December 2,218,236,000 6,577,871 2,218,236,000 6,577,871
TRBE M CAEIRDGI) 55135 In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary
T8 » ASERATHY R 188 ARG fi B shares of the Bank do not have a par value. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
A - T REA A receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
FARIFE A IRSEAIELA] - 2 meetings of the Bank’s members. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
AREEHATI B i —R Bank’s residual assets.

—SI ARG - A
RS TR & T
PEAE% -
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32. BHNEA TR

%Er’zé‘ﬂ)a‘ R

2 [BFRITAATERFH TR
BN AR

AIRTTH 202241026 H
BT T EEE(EET (30
PRAQRH ST AR T H
#15.58(870) AUAAIER
RSN — AR
("BYMEARTR ) - ok
ABINEAR T AR 20274
10 26 H & (B2 A1 R H
Wim > 5 AR A R E R
8.00% - Rl A A1 THIE
[E]E > SR AR AR T AR
4B I LA ) 5% R R e A
I B ARAV A0 L)
GEATHIZEE R -

RERFFERN—R A
RITH MR ZEINEA
T H AR E HUH F S
WO MECHIIFA ST & R
T o

B E =B ARITR
B SHETT N A A4
R EYNER AR
A G e R 7
TR HAR S T HETH

J+20274-10 H 26 H 5 fE:A7
HERREH - RETHER
i o O [ P S R B (S Y
HYNEATER BAZES]
i R B AR PR -

20234FE4H24H K10H20
HES AR HINEAR T
ELF B 3% 162,794,000 7
K #1262,581,0007T -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32. Additional equity instruments

2023 2022
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
US$200 million perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital instruments 1,557,812 1,557,812

On 26 October 2022, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier
1 capital instruments (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$200 million
(equivalent to HK$1,558 million net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 8.00% coupon until the first call date on 26 October
2027. The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional equity instruments are not
redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a
fixed initial spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (in accordance with the terms and conditions of the additional equity instruments)
and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed by or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would
become non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
26 October 2027 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as set
out in the terms and conditions.

During the year, the coupons of this additional equity instruments were paid with the amount
of HK$62,794,000 and HK$62,581,000 on 24 April 2023 and 20 October 2023 respectively.
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(a) BRASTATEEFIELERTSEAT

KBRS RAY
R

[ESNEpnTl

BN ERR
R

HE BT - B
BRSPS 1R

A= e

KB ELTFIES

FEAES 2 FIEZH

(B8 75 RAT S 2 ]
B

reg

B R

FEIHIHE®E 3 EA >
FEIBERAT R LA < il
TGS aR 2 )

FEIHIHE®E 3 EA >
TESRAT R EL A <2 Rl
2 R )

PR T E > 58,

ERERME SRR
g

SRIE B

HAnEwE > sE)

PRAT R HoAth S isRE
T?m&”ﬁ%z )

EEFRZ

EMF%&E%Z“

EFR R,

FRIEATECEIRE A
/Ot

BT YRR
ot -

- BRI

- EHAFE

- EHRE

Profit before taxation

Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

Net loss from disposal / revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Net gain from termination of leases

Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Interest expenses on debt securities and
certificates of deposit

Depreciation

Net charge of impairment allowances

Change in balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
over three months

Change in placements with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
over three months

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in advances to customers and trade
bills

Change in investment in securities

Change in other assets

Change in deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Change in deposits from customers

Change in other accounts and provisions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Operating cash inflow / (outflow) before
taxation

Cash flows from operating activities included:
— Interest received

— Interest paid
— Dividend received
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to operating cash inflow
before taxation

(E71)

(Restated)

2023 2022
AT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
241,379 1,045,447
9,767 7,520
1,456 10,493
(1,459) -

- (1,936)

8,299 7,651
91,552 66,454
164,269 163,152
658,495 540,008
(134,001) (151,257)
1,114,580 (2,444,086)
(106,543) 52,078
(2,403,438) (4,498,681)
582,591 (5,419,222)
100,581 (730,902)
(3,628,362) (10,190,204)
5,882,777 14,128,408
(143,687) 128,559
(12,323) 29,040
2,425,933 (7,257,478)
6,427,314 3,806,684
(4,879,136) (1,641,264)
42,602 73,690
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(b) HERFFRBREHE S
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(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
BRI AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Cash and balances with banks and other

financial institutions with original maturity

within three months 17,136,277 20.950.851
Placements with banks and other financial

institutions with original maturity within

three months 401,278 837,541
Debt securities with original maturity within
three months 5,881,450 2,592,821
Certificates of deposit with original maturity
within three months 2,938,086 -
26,357,091 24,381,213

(c) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of financial position

2023 2022
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions (Note 19)
18,869,175 22,549,748

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months (Note 20) 1,946,513 3,503,238
Investment in securities
Of which: securities mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss
securities 3,532,788 1,953,874
Of which: securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

57,385,465 47,620,446
Of which: securities at amortised cost 7,983,539 12,730,586
Amount shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position 89,717,480 88,357,892
Less: Amounts with an original maturity of
beyond three months (62,029,908) (62,483,066)
Less: Cash balance with central bank subject
to regulatory restriction (1,330,481) (1,493,613)
Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated cash flow statement 26,357,091 24,381,213
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SEE M SRR EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 (continued)

33. LroRMEMERITE

33. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(&
(d) BE EEEANEEE (d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
R
2023 2022
BETT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HE&a& Lease liabilities
W1E1H At 1 January 198,860 251,001
DB A4E Exchange difference (1,576) (10,842)
| Additions 172,518 99,575
$ Disposal (5,091) (29,211)
F B S H Interest expense 8,299 7,651
SN Payment (122,024) (119,314)
®12H31H At 31 December 250,986 198,860
TERTRS B R B Dividends and distributions payable
B1A1H At 1 January ) )
AAEFEHEAE Approved during the year 125,375 431,117
KRR Paid during the year (125,375) (431,117)
12 H331H At 31 December - -
BB TEREE 5 M AT Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue
B1A1H At 1 January 1,572,167 -
KREEEAT Issuance during the year 160,231 1,558,595
F B S H Interest expense 91,552 66,454
& fF Payment (90,022) (45,193)
DB AE Exchange difference 1,882 (7,689)
12331 H At 31 December 1,735,810 1,572,167
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&) (continued)
34. SREEREE 34. Contingent liabilities and commitments
AR FORIE 2 IRAE The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
KFE R LR &E R IFRIE contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and
e rmdRed - HAgTHEE is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
Al EEI B R RS SRR adequacy ratio:
MESERRE AT
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HiFEERIEE Direct credit substitutes 1,913 601
HAZZ DA R SR A S Transaction-related contingencies 12,726 22,916
B DA BARA S Trade-related contingencies 41,614 312,586
REEIBMOEGE IR > Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
K without prior notice 11,299,841 13,271,441
HAhRYE - HEHIH Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 ESDUT - up to one year 107,502 81,945
-1ED R - over one year 2,964,237 3,746,412
14,427,833 17,435,901
(S &R InrE S Credit risk-weighted amount 1,058,043 1,563,720
(EE R IIEEEERE (] The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
173 CEA) A 518 - IhE Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
FEHURIA R G F 2 50 M & characteristics of each type of contract.
JEGE IR -
35. BEAKLE 35. Capital commitments
G B R P e R The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the
ZEREESEAOT financial statements:
2023 2022
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
A RS E AR Authorised and contracted for but not provided
for 128,601 35,377
A EAREL Authorised but not contracted for - -
128,601 35,377
DU BB ARIERES 53 Ry A The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
Z BRSO R DU equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.

B2 e TR R -

177



4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking Corporation Led

S BERIE ()

36. TR

AL E L AR I AR PR
ER R - ZERE R R EEARE
FRIEEEREEAR -

HNERR B AR TR AEHA
TIOR3 F RS AV BET

Ko

BOEARB B ERE R REEHE

KA -

37. S

(a)

HREY

REEEER AL B = EEEH 8
EM AR AR TR ~ R
TIPSR B3 - SERSARAVST
TEZERNANE% P B A R

EASRIT IR IRITREBRITE
LR HIIRITIR - AESEHE
A BT B B SR
s R EME GRS - R e PRl
bh o ANRCERS BT - (EASR
THRBREEERBEAZS >
ERITHRBREEERBAF
EF - ERMEEBSR RTEE
EE% HATEHERIREE

<~ FISSFOSNERL I - T Hofth, 2B —
ﬁ%ﬁ FEREEAERRA BHE -
KRBV MR A -

FETFERAVERE ~ AfH -~ IOA > S
OB PR A AN B R
E & BoRE TR - 2BERa
ECREREIEI N E ST NINE VY
W] DAy 22 2 SR R B3 -
PSR ERAEM - RN
B ERE G E - FERED
TG R - A AR AR
HIRFE -

2R A AR B FLE UL
A 3 B g E e £ EHOF S
W ASRAEEEZERS - RILFTA 2850y
BRI S A RS USRI -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

36. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various
independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the
normal commercial activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims
because the directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against
the claimants or the amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be
material.

37. Segmental reporting

(a) Operating segments information

The Group divides its businesses into three operating segments. They are
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
foreign currency and derivative products. Personal Banking mainly serves
retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate
customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and the interest rate
and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises,
investment properties and equity investments.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and
capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior
management relies primarily on net interest income in managing the
business, interest income and expense for all reportable segments are
presented on a net basis.
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- External
- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income
Net trading gain / (loss)

Net gain / (loss) on other
financial assets

Other operating income /
(expenses)

Net operating income /
(expense) before
impairment allowances

Net (charge) / reversal of
impairment allowances

Net operating income /
(expense)

Operating (expenses) / income

Operating profit / (loss)

Net loss from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties

Net loss from disposal /
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of a
subsidiary

Profit / (loss) before
taxation

Assets
Segment assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Amortisation of securities

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2023

EASMT ST ¢ S0 /et Hin  SHHESS srE

Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Subtotal Others Eliminations Consolidated
AT AT AT BRETT BT AT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(2,279,481) 1,053,491 2,802,741 1,576,751 - - 1,576,751
3,000,191 510,139  (3,510,330) - - - -
720,710 1,563,630 (707,589) 1,576,751 - - 1,576,751
275,896 314,332 908 591,136 13,526 - 604,662
16,957 29,969 (282,358) (235,432) 414,998 - 179,566
- 16,912 94,632 111,544  (235,262) - (123,718)
- 6,597 698 7,295 101,489 (56,016) 52,768
1,013,563 1,931,440 (893,709) 2,051,294 294,751 (56,016) 2,290,029
(28,689)  (398,009) (33,783) (460,481)  (198,014) - (658,495)
984,874 1,533,431 (927,492) 1,590,813 96,737 (56,016) 1,631,534
(529,115)  (451,575) (58,052) (1,038,742)  (397,665) 56,016  (1,380,391)
455,759 1,081,856 (985,544) 552,071  (300,928) - 251,143
. - - - (9,767) - (9,767)
- - - - (1,456) - (1,456)
- - - - 1,459 - 1,459
455,759 1,081,856 (985,544) 552,071  (310,692) - 241,379
24,630,737 73,384,909 82,930,168 180,945,814 3,706,429 - 184,652,243
92,164,353 67,848,473 5,870,257 165,883,083 500,152 - 166,383,235
(9,736) (4,644) (857) (15,237)  (261,943) - (277,180)
(7,738) (59,421) (1,105) (68,264) (96,005) - (164,269)
- - 645,074 645,074 86 - 645,160
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Net interest (expense) / income
- External

- Inter-segment

Net fee and commission
income
Net trading gain / (loss)

Net gain on other financial
assets

Other operating income /
(expenses)

Net operating income /
(expense) before
impairment allowances

Net (charge) / reversal of
impairment allowances

Net operating income /
(expense)

Operating (expenses) / income

Operating profit / (loss)

Net loss from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties

Net loss from disposal /
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment

Profit / (loss) before
taxation

Assets
Segment assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Other information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Amortisation of securities

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2022

AT ST AT et At EPHEH Gre

Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Subtotal Others _Eliminations  Consolidated
BT BT BT BHTT BT BETOT SHETIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(626,770) 1,037,451 1,392,420 1,803,101 - - 1,803,101
1,140,550 319,599  (1,460,149) - - - -
513,780 1,357,050 (67,729) 1,803,101 - - 1,803,101
266,783 438,022 987 705,792 - - 705,792
21,984 13,003 52,813 87,800 (4,849) - 82,951
- 97,687 28,446 126,133 132,233 - 258,366
- 9,176 658 9,834 129,496 (52,447) 86,883
802,547 1,914,938 15,175 2,732,660 256,880 (52,447) 2,937,093
(68,619)  (574,584) 45,563 (597,640) 57,632 - (540,008)
733,928 1,340,354 60,738 2,135,020 314,512 (52,447) 2,397,085
(426,144)  (413,444) (37,247) (876,835)  (509,237) 52,447 (1,333,625)
307,784 926,910 23,491 1,258,185  (194,725) - 1,063,460
- - - - (7,520) - (7,520)
- - - - (10,493) - (10,493)
307,784 926,910 23,491 1,258,185  (212,738) - 1,045,447
23,929,947 71,654,329 83,452,769 179,037,045 2,833,506 - 181,870,551
89,504,487 67,938,632 5,997,961 163,441,080 566,099 - 164,007,179
(3,668) (7,278) (305) (11,251)  (141,920) - (153,171)
(5,837) (73,621) (111) (79,569) (83,583) - (163,152)
- - 34,580 34,580 (1,785) - 32,795
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations:

2023 2022
BRI SRECRIE o
EEFRTZ BRARAT R 5/\@%?
SEBIA MR REBMA A F
Net operating Net operating )
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT BT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 1,691,471 90,968 2,166,786 722,385
Mainland China 598,558 150,411 770,307 323,062
2,290,029 241,379 2,937,093 1,045,447
2023 2022
WEE G
Total assets Total assets
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 149,458,438 145,729,048
Mainland China 35,193,805 36,141,503
184,652,243 181,870,551

38. Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2023, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$27,223,779 (2022:
HK$44,723,688) included in "Deposits and balances from banks and other financial
institutions" were secured by bills. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure
these liabilities was HK$ 27,295,843 (2022: HK$44,676,658) included in “Discounted bills”.

As at 31 December 2023, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$8,037,979,681
(2022: HK$10,177,919,789) included in "Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions" were secured by debt securities. The amount of assets pledged by
the Group to secure these liabilities was HK$8,539,908,974 (2022: HK$10,523,291,273)
included in “investment in securities”.
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W

39. &R T H K 39. Offsetting financial instruments
TRIURAEE TS 2 The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
BT M A AE AR R A enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:
HoA AT SR 4 SR A < i
THEHE

2023

FERM BRI PIEH
GiEl e
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
financial position

RMBRIART RYBRILERS

CHEREM A Ol FIRNEMEE B [Slie:) v i
BEGR =it Pz L SRTH B B
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised  Net amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
assets financial position financial position instruments received amount
AT AT AT AT AETT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BE Assets
74 4 b Derivative financial
TE instruments 112,962 - 112,962 (61,433) - 51,529
HAfth&ZE Other assets 503,384 (186,329) 317,055 - - 317,055
616,346 (186,329) 430,017 (61,433) - 368,584
2023
FERM BRI PEH
GiEl k|
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
. . financial position
_ RMBRAERT REBRRRT
CHEREH fEH DR SRS A S 3 Bz
==t BEGEH B SMTHE B FR
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross recognised financial
amounts of financial assets liabilities
recognised set offin the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities financial position financial position instruments pledged amount
AT AT AT AT AETTT BB
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
=0 Liabilities
£74E 4B Derivative financial
TH instruments 61,433 - 61,433 (61,433) - -
Hfth& & Other liabilities 190,787 (186,329) 4,458 - - 4,458
252,220 (186,329) 65,891 (61,433) - 4,458
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39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(&)
2022
FENMBIRRFR ST
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
o o position
o PMEBRRERT RMEBR RS
CHERER 1554 CHZER SRS B E Bz )
R =t et e SRMTH  HEmE 4
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Net amounts of
amounts of  financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral
assets  financial position  financial position  instruments received Net amount
AT BT AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
£74E 4B Derivative financial
TH instruments 23,688 - 23,688 (23,688) - -
HAEZE Other assets 611,306 (325,970) 285,336 - - 285,336
634,994 (325,970) 309,024 (23,688) - 285,336
2022
FENMBIRRFRFIESE
PH<e4H
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
N N position
o PMEBRRERT RMEBAR RS
CHERER R CRERER TR0y & f & [ it B
B fHAEH H A P BRELTH T R
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial liabilities
recognised financial assets set  presented in the Cash
financial off in the statement statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities of financial position  financial position  instruments pledged amount
AT AT AT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=0 Liabilities
744 Fh Derivative financial
TE instruments 43,193 - 43,193 (23,688) - 19,505
HAr&E Other liabilities 361,655 (325,970) 35,685 - - 35,685
404,848 (325,970) 78,878 (23,688) - 55,190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

40.

For master netting agreements for OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Group
related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
predetermined events occur.

Loans to directors

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2023 2022
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

Aggregate amount of relevant transactions

outstanding at year end -

Maximum aggregate amount of relevant

transactions outstanding during the year -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

41. Significant related party transactions

General information of the parent companies:

The Group is indirectly controlled by Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., which is a
Chinese commercial bank established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

controlled by the parent companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is Chiyu International Financial Holdings
Limited (“Chiyu International Holdings”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Xiamen International Investment Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd.

The majority of transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. and Luso
International Banking Limited arise from money market activities. As at 31
December 2023, the related aggregate amount due from and to Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. of the Group were HK$658,237,000 (31 December
2022: HK$112,000) and HK$32,627,000 (31 December 2022: HK$319,777,000)
respectively. As at 31 December 2023, the related aggregate amount due from and
to Luso International Banking Limited of the Group were HK$1,511,000 (31
December 2022: HK$6,025,000) and HK$19,005,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$59,425,000) respectively. The aggregate amount of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.
during 2023 were HK$4,685,000 (31 December 2022: less than HK$1,000) and
HK$3,926,000 (31 December 2022: less than HK$1,000). There were no income
and expenses of the Group arising from these transactions with Luso International
Banking Limited of the Group during 2023 (31 December 2022: HK$2,089,000 and
HK$107,000 respectively).
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USRS Tdlie ST E R
JE AR WY A KB By B N
1,627,000 jT (2022 4 12
H 31 H : % 1,430,000
JT)

HZE 2023 £ 12 531 H
1B AEENGARAA AR

B B SR 1T 1T HY R AR &
(202212 531 H:#
% 148,037,000 7T) - HZE
2023412 A 31 Hik» &
SEEFA K 110,290,000
T PR PR SR 1T 38 171
ERsEs (2022 /£ 12 H
31 H : #®) - 2023 F45351
TP B B SR 1T B U W
7,447,000 7¢ (2022 4 12
A 31 H : 45 9,000,000
TC)FIE U AFIHEE PR
FRATHEECEIK 285,000 TT
(202212 531 H:#
e 2,927,000 5t) FIEUL
/k °

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

41. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arise from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2023, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$183,757,000 (31 December 2022: HK$396,570,000).
The aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions during
2023 was HK$9,478,000 (31 December 2022: HK$5,190,000).

There are transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies arise
from rental service. The aggregate amount of income of the Group arising from these
transactions during 2023 was HK$1,627,000 (31 December 2022: HK$1,430,000).

As at 31 December 2023, there were no investment in the subordinated debt issued by
a fellow subsidiary Luso International Banking Limited held by the Group (31 December
2022: HK$148,037,000). As at 31 December 2023, the Group investment in debt
securities issued by Xiamen International Bank was HK$110,290,000 (31 December
2022: Nil). The interest income gained during 2023 from Luso International Banking
Limited and Xiamen International Bank were HK$7,447,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$9,000,000) and HK$285,000 (31 December 2022: HK$2,927,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

41. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies (continued)

There are transactions with parent companies and the other companies controlled by
the parent companies that arise from outsourcing service. The aggregate amount of
income and expenses of the Group arising from these transactions during 2023 were
HK$4,712,000 (31 December 2022: HK$10,982,000) and HK$27,827,000 (31
December 2022: HK$26,071,000) respectively.

(b) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors, senior management and key personnel. The Group accepts
deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in
the ordinary course of business. During both the current and prior periods, no material
transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its
holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December
is detailed as follows:

2023 2022
BT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Salaries, other short-term employee
benefits and post-employment benefits 84,342 90,727
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SEE BRI
(&)

42. B IRIR R MEZSE 42, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
B®

(a) FARBGIRIR

(a) Statement of financial position

(EE%1)
(Restated)
B12H31H As at 31 December 2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ASSETS
JEE 17 B < B A7 SR AT e HoAth <5 il Cash and balances with banks and other
MRS ER financial institutions 18,821,500 22,345,327
ST R H A SRS — 2+ = Placements with banks and other
{68 5 N BN B BIFIL financial institutions maturing between
one and twelve months 1,946,513 3,503,238
PSR TR Derivative financial instruments 192,623 74,407
KPR E S Advances to customers and trade bills 89,933,678 88,190,928
BHE Investment in securities 70,010,810 63,899,196
LB AE Investment in subsidiaries 221,425 258,482
FEUSHT & A EIF0E Amounts due from subsidiaries 162,269 161,933
BV Investment properties 817,051 146,110
LY/ N ﬁ%ﬁ& S Properties, plant and equipment 1,896,140 1,833,567
JEWRRTA & Current tax assets 24,080 -
"ELKEEIE* Deferred tax assets 29,926 53,366
Hith& Other assets 576,525 1,292,066
BELEE Total assets 184,632,540 181,758,620
=i LIABILITIES
PRAT R EoAth Rl 2 17K Deposits and balances from banks and
“heR other financial institutions 14,744,681 18,283,234
TR TE Derivative financial instruments 93,348 81,675
HFEER Deposits from customers 146,750,704 140,873,343
JRERTBS A EI0R Amounts due to subsidiaries 7,320 5,905
HARRIE Rt Other accounts and provisions 2,887,937 3,002,728
AR IR A (R Current tax liabilities 44,064 48,807
IRIERSTIA & 57 Deferred tax liabilities 152,049 71,942
T TESEE 5 ATk Debt securities and certificates of deposit
in issue 1,735,810 1,572,167
B HRAEE Total liabilities 166,415,913 163,939,801
[-C: EQUITY
EZIN Share capital 6,577,871 6,577,871
EhH Reserves 10,080,944 9,683,136
AR TRE R B LA h B Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 16,658,815 16,261,007
HHNEARTE Additional equity instruments 1,557,812 1,557,812
TR Total equity 18,216,627 17,818,819
LV e e Total liabilities and equity 184,632,540 181,758,620
L 2024 £ 4 H 26 HiE Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2024 and signed on behalf of the Board
AL N A ERTRHEE by:
T R WANG Xiaojian  ZHENG Wei
HE HE Director Director
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42. EBIRIR KRS
#= (&)

(b) HEZEBEIR

7202341 H1H At1January 2023

FERERF] Profit for the year
Hith 4w (i) Other comprehensive
el (expense) / income :
R Premises
PAAFE# (LS A Equity instruments
oAt 4 T Y 25 at fair value
B e T B through other
comprehensive
income
PAAFE#(LE A Debtinstruments
Hfh 2 E W > at fair value
ERTEA through other
comprehensive
income
IR Currency translation
difference
27 (FH) /Uis44 Total comprehensive
%5 (expense) / income
RIS 5 ST EF] Transfer from retained
earnings
L AT#EANE AT B Distribution to the
HEHE holders of the

additional equity
instruments

Release upon disposal
of equity instruments
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income

R B DA P E AL
aF A LA 4 UL iR
ZHttEm TR
o5

#2023 212 H 31 H At 31 December 2023

(continued)

(b) Statement of changes in equity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity

BRI ARTROR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
i
Reserves
BESf  APEE
it = BE EERNC  BERE EEEF Yt BYNEATR EAEE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve' reserve? reserve® reserve* earnings Total _instruments equity
BETIT BTt BN BETT B¥TT BTt BETr EWTT  EWTT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
6,577,871 1,157,407 (724,396) 325,433 (109,341) 9,034,033 16,261,007 1,557,812 17,818,819
- - - - - 174,804 174,804 - 174,804
- (14,977) - - - - (14,977) - (14,977)
- - (90,054) - - - (90,054) - (90,054)
- - 527,959 - - - 527,959 - 527,959
- - - - (74,549) - (74,549) - (74,549)
- (14,977) 437,905 - (74,549) 174,804 523,183 - 523,183
- - - 52,730 - (52,730) - - -
- - - - - (125,375) (125,375) - (125,375)
- - 18,914 - - (18,914) - - -
6,577,871 1,142,430 (267,577) 378,163 (183,890) 9,011,818 16,658,815 1,557,812 18,216,627
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42. EBIRIR KRS
#= (&)

(b) EzzBEhE (&)

202241 H1H  At1January 2022

R Profit for the year
HAtr 2 Other comprehensive
expense:
R Premises
DIAEE S {EEE A Equity instruments
ot 4 UL s > at fair value
Bl T A through other
comprehensive
income
DLAEES (b A Debtinstruments
ot 4 UL s > at fair value
E% T A through other
comprehensive
income
Bl e Currency translation
difference
2 (FH) /YiZs48 Total comprehensive
HH (expense) / income
R R Transfer to retained
earnings
#as\ Dividends
BITHEINEARTH Issue of the additional
equity instruments
TEEEEINEA T A Redemption of the
additional equity
instruments

XA ESNEAR T A Distribution to the

HERE holders of the
additional equity
instruments

HE & LU % Release upon disposal

A H A4 mEgzs  of equity instruments

TSRS T R at fair value through

i other comprehensive

income

#2022 4212 F 31 H At 31 December 2022

1. B E A R (AN R R AR
E AR &R

2. N PEE G ERERA DA TPAES
{LEF AR A 2 E U RS 75 H 5

B AL FEST R RET A THE RS

3. PREEEMTHEREREAE 9 PEHE
FEEBURE RSN - B EREK
BT B A E B i (R R
TG 2l (BERAERLH
HAA TR -

4. MR GEE R R RSN
PrRFrR A EEBOR -

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
(continued)

BRI A SR THEER
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
(et
Reserves
FEEM  APEE
A bt " G GEEREG S MERE Y SERA Wt BUNEATHR  EARNEE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve’ reserve? reserve® reserve* _ earnings Total _ instruments equity
BETIT BETT BBTIT  BETIT BETOT BBTIT BETT BEETIT BB
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
6,577,871 1,196,706 (97,064) 344,870 196,254 8,611,852 16,830,489 1,937,712 18,768,201
- - - - - 861,053 861,053 - 861,053
- (39,299) - - - - (39,299) - (39,299)
- - (72,273) - - - (72,273) - (72,273)
- - (568,576) - - - (568,576) - (568,576)
- - - - (305,595) - (305,595) - (305,595)
- (39,299) (640,849) - (305,595) 861,053  (124,690) - (124,690)
- - - (19,437) - 19,437 - - -
- - - - - (328,299) (328,299) - (328,299)
_ R - - - - - 1,657,812 1,557,812
- - - - - (13,675) (13,675)  (1,937,712) (1,951,387)
- - - - - (102,818) (102,818) - (102,818)
- - 13,517 - - (13,517) - - -
6,577,871 1,157,407 (724,396) 325,433  (109,341) 9,034,033 16,261,007 1,667,812 17,818,819

Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies adopted for the revaluation of premises.

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of fair value through other
comprehensive income securities held until the securities are derecognised.

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking
risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment

allowances recognised under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9.

Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for foreign currency translation.
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v‘(l" ;E%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
43. XEEfTZHBAE 43. Subsidiaries of the Bank

ﬁA 2023 £ 12 H 31 HASR

The particulars of direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2023 are

17T E K MR B A E R A as follows:
ﬁ* RS RATT
Rl = EETISUE A
e R R H A FEMEA Rt FEER
Place and date of
incorporation / Issued share capital /
Name operation Registered capital Interest held Principal activities
2023 2022
BRI (B ARSY B WAy 100% 100% FREH R A% S e
H] 1981411 53 H 100,000 7T
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Nominee service and
(Nominees) Limited 3 November 1981 HK$100,000 investment holding
WEEFARAE i i iilieah) 100% 100% g et I SLIERYE S
19614F 125 11 H 2,800,000 7T HE
Seng Sun Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding and
Company, Limited 11 December 1961 HK$2,800,000 leasing of properties
to group companies
FIOEAIRAE & fepiiliEah) 100%* 100%* B
2001 E5 H4H 2 BT
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding
4 May 2001 HK$2
ERHEERAIRAE & EepiiliEan) 100% 100% TR b SRl A R AR 75
20173 513 H 5,000,000 7T
Chiyu International Capital Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Corporate finance
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$5,000,000 advisory
EREEEHARNS i i iilieah) 100% 100% HEEHER
20173 513 H 356,800,000 T
Chiyu Asset Management ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Asset management
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$356,800,000
i i 100%* 100%* EER=EUES
201843 29 H 1 4T
Sun King Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
29 March 2018 HK$1
ERESEIINEHGAE FAEHE B 100%* 100%* HETHAH
201941 H22H 100 2T
Chiyu Fund Segregated Cayman Islands Management shares 100%* 100%* Fund vehicle
Portfolio Company 22 January 2019 uUsSD100
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁz*ﬁf’m SEH Y FEFEA 100%* 100%* PR TS
D BIRAE 202044 A 17 H 2,000,000 =7t
Shenzhen Registered capital 100%* 100%* Equity Investment
17 April 2020 uSD2,000,000
ERFEEE CRID AR 20 FEFEA - 100% EERE - BB
AE] 202049 H 21 H 10,000,000 A it HoAth AR
Shenzhen Registered capital - 100% Information technology,
21 September 2020 RMB10,000,000 data processing and

RERATREIRER ALY

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank
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43. XEEfTZHBAE 43. Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

(&)

HESERREAE CRID Disposal of ELRIFART (FYI) BRAH
BIRAE
1202346 H8H - R On 8 June 2023, Chiyu Bank (as seller) entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
17 (R J7 ) BAE PR Xiamen International Investment Limited (as buyer) in relation to the disposal of all ordinary
REARAE (FERETT) shares of & &FEHGAIE CEII) AFR/AE and the completion of the disposal took place on
gt EE LRI Al OF 27 June 2023. Upon completion of the disposal, £ FHGAIE GEYI) BIR/AE ceasedto
PIDBERRA S w5 be a subsidiary of Chiyu Bank.

STREEEE a0 TR
20234E6H27H » IER52HK
HUEERYASE] » X EISERR A
ERRPHAR CEID BIR
NEERFH BERIRITH
NG

BHNBAENHEHDN The net assets of the concerned subsidiary at the date of disposal were as follows:
HEENT
2023
BT
HK$’000
HEEEFE Net assets disposed of 3,049
R E > SR E Y EE R Release upon disposal reclassified to
income statement 420
3,469
&S Gain on disposal 1,459
PUR 4 2R 5 e 4E 4R Total consideration satistied by cash 4,928
B AR SR B Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
2023
BT
HK$’000
ULELRE 5 S 3E 4 440 Total cash consideration received 4,928
B S RS EHSIEE Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (2,534)
2,394
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44. HREEMEEIER/NE]  44. Inmediate and ultimate holding company

#2023F 12 31 H A& At 31 December 2023, the immediate holding company of the Bank is Chiyu International
T HB s\ g Bk Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding
S SRR AT 2 company is Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., a Chinese commercial bank incorporated in
INEIRE AL > oA the PRC.
FR PRI N B Ry I B B 3R
7 > AT PP
B R B M e A Ay
PESEIRTT °

45. BB A 45. Approval of financial statements
KB HZER 2024 - 4 H The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
26 H&REEEmilE s on 26 April 2024.
Hpf o
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R FZZ A EER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

1. E5EkE 1. Credit Risk
1.1 @ HEEE 3 (HH 285K 1.1 Advances overdue for more than three months
RS 3 {EH 2 SR The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as
FiEba an I follows:
(E%1)
(Restated)
2023 2022
Lr-a=y= & F &K
S8 S E &EE WEESTE
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
F SRR - T Gross advances to
customers which have
been overdue for:
- i 3 {E AR - six months or less but
6 {5 F over three months 128,756 0.14% 563 0.00%
- A 6 {5 5 {E A - one year or less but
14F over six months 6,474 0.01% 176,040 0.20%
- i 1A - over one year 837,722 0.92% 96,462 0.1%
A 3 (EH 2 &5k Advances overdue for over
three months 972,952 1.07% 273,065 0.31%
g e ES S Specific provisions made in
respect of such advances 266,444 55,883
(%)
(Restated)
2023 2022
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
gl A SR Current market value of collateral held
FEEC A STE against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 880,420 100,000
e RSEE e Covered portion of such advances to
B customers 826,483 87,738
ISR REE R Uncovered portion of such advances to
PR customers 146,469 185,327
8 HH SR EORVE SR TR Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
Mo FREEAERER charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
TH N & AR E R corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FEMF - EAREFET
REEHZEYEE -
2023 £ 12 H 31 H % As at 31 December 2023, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three

Haifes 3 M85 months (2022: Nil).
T (2022 4% ¢ i) -
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KRR FZ Z A EER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
&) (continued)

1. E8EE (8) 1.  Credit Risk (continued)
1.2 KELHER 1.2 Rescheduled advances
2023 2022
& FERK %5 P EGR
S8R e Sy &EH EEOE
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
KEAR P EFORH (T Rescheduled
A SN i 3 advances to
B85 855 customer_s net of
amounts included
in “Advances
overdue for more
than three months” 815,296 0.90% 372,697 0.42%
K E M IR ER AR Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
Ty B BUR B S RE T 40 renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of
LRSS lEi=8=90'4:E the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
BRGTHEZ &30 - 85T advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
ERGET TR 2 SR EHEK repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
ik 3 @A - Al
BFET TaiHEs 3 EA
ZER LA
1.3 IKEIEE 1.3 Repossessed assets
AEEE 2023 4 12 H 31 There were HK$636,353,000 repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
H R A U0 & R B December 2023 (2022: HK$702,626,000). The repossessed assets represent
636,353,000 jr( 2022 4F: properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through
i 702,626,000 JT) - UT court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned) for release in
[0 55 2 5 AN S 1B i 28 S full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

TR R B S P2 R HE )
FE(UE AP e+
FIRRAS A i 2 5 U
) MEER R B T
GBI
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THILZ &8 R AR R
[IDECEEE

(continued)

2. Currency Risk

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading and non-trading and is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

2023

BT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
=y om Bt BT gk AR¥%  HitsMg SR

Other Total

us Euro Japanese Australian Pound foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars Yen Dollars  Sterling Renminbi currencies currencies

WEHE Spot assets 44,531,241 380,802 386,537 3,159,464 1,295,698 48,451,223 232,865 98,437,830

HEAE Spot liabilities (46,887,789)  (385,372)  (378,081)  (785,887)  (856,165) (41,799,793)  (407,686) (91,500,773)
N

EIHHE A Forward purchases 3,181,082 7,987 24,977 20,106 14,423 220,088 219,059 3,687,722

HEAE Forward sales (774,597) (4,764) (32,279) (2,388,942)  (451,980) (6,356,542) (43,747) (10,052,851)

&/ (F) 854  Netlong/ (short)

position 49,937 (1,347) 1,154 4,741 1,976 514,976 491 571,928
2022
BETIOEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
ESH BT Hit BT gE ANERHE  HAsMEE SMEAESE
Other Total
us Euro Japanese Australian Pound foreign foreign
Dollars Dollars Yen Dollars  Sterling Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 48,094,220 631,425 240,070 1,906,053 179,098 50,086,650 351,878 101,489,394
HEaE Spot liabilities (42,164,594)  (558,928)  (244,360)  (659,823)  (187,760) (46,603,716)  (334,456) (90,753,637)
HEPAEA Forward purchases 3,358,074 11,020 82,303 20,800 46,066 190,024 12,489 3,720,776
HEAE Forward sales (9,200,409) (86,977)  (74,793) (1,271,440) (36,759) (2,976,101) (33,740) (13,680,219)

&/ (F) 854  Netlong/ (short)

position

87,291 (3,460) 3,220 (4,410) 645 696,857 (3,829) 776,314
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(continued)

Liquidity coverage ratio

2023 2022
Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
- First quarter 205.47% 184.03%
- Second quarter 176.10% 197.00%
- Third quarter 191.52% 186.35%
- Fourth quarter 179.21% 205.67%

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

Net stable funding ratio

(EE51)
(Restated)
2023 2022
Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio
- First quarter 123.47% 120.19%
- Second quarter 125.10% 120.04%
- Third quarter 120.95% 120.11%
- Fourth quarter 123.75% 121.65%

The quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.

The additional information of net stable funding ratio disclosures is available under
section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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BAEHE
5.1 BB AR

2023 FVETER ESR A A
BEIOREE (RITE (EAO
MAT) KtgeBRmEE
FUE Z R AR T Z A
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5.

Capital management

5.1 Basis of regulatory combination

The consolidated basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
Bank'’s local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries specified by
the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules in 2023.

For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with
HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in Note 43.

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of combination are as
follows:

(EE51)
(Restated)
2023 2022
BEGRH BARGH B ENEER N
E Name Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity
BT AT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EREEEARARAH Chiyu International Capital
79,535 77,501 89,392 88,004
EREEEHARAH Chiyu Asset Management
214,648 212,512 238,653 237,592
B HSETIZEM AT Chiyu Fund Segregated
Portfolio Company 1 1 1 1
ERNGEEESEE -
YD BIEAE 37,566 35,934 31,661 30,021
ERBHGAR CRID AR -
e - - 14,241 3,695

DA EFT 2N B0y £
KL 43

742023 412 F§ 31 H 7R
AT AT S 2 B[R] LA
gt e MR B AE &
RS [ 1 552 P S R 6 7
% (202212 311 ¢

) -

R ORI A
RAFHESH 2023
H6 H 27 H5ERccE -

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in Note 43.

There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of combination where the methods
of consolidation differ as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).

The disposal of &K REHLAI (5I) BIR/AE was completed on 27 June 2023.
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5 BEAEH (&) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 TRIE®E 5.2 Capital ratio
BRSO The capital ratios are analysed as follows:
(E%1)
(Restated)
2023 2022
B AR CET1 capital ratio 13.87% 13.19%
—ERFRLER Tier 1 capital ratio 15.33% 14.31%
YREARLLR Total capital ratio 17.81% 16.29%
5.3 IERLER 5.3 Leverage ratio
BRRELERS AT The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:
2023 2022
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
— B Tier 1 capital 16,395,767 15,629,898
TEFRLE R A R E Leverage ratio exposure 186,069,687 183,580,507
TEfREE%R Leverage ratio 8.81% 8.51%
HRIE AR & REELL%R The additional information of capital disclosures and leverage ratio disclosures are
WENHTER A AR available under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at
(@ 44 H www.chiyubank.com.

www.chiyubank.com
FECENEE ) TR -
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6.

International claims

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the
counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of
cross-border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim
guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will
be transferred to the country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the
country where its head office is located.

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more
of the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

2023
FESRATRANIERS
Non-bank private sector
. FERTT El S N
AT BT SRS YN dEst
Non-bank

Official financial Non-financial
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o BR A Mainland China 16,167,000 1,576,000 2,096,000 19,319,000 39,158,000
HHE Hong Kong 657,000 577,000 3,582,000 8,421,000 13,237,000

2022
FESRITRLASAE
Non-bank private sector

3 FEIRTT FEeRl

ST BT RS LN 11 dEst
Non-bank

Official financial  Non-financial
Banks sector Institutions  private sector Total
AT AT ATT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 8] AT 1, Mainland China 16,452,000 1,854,000 2,186,000 20,111,000 40,603,000
T Hong Kong 2,305,000 211,000 4,925,000 5,649,000 13,090,000
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O
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Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets

201

Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank only.

2023
BEER KEAR
A FAHY FHMY
WREE R EleRE  EERRE
Items in On-balance Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AT AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1 12,424,987 669 12,425,656
2 14,983,861 7,736 14,991,597
3 21,967,759 339,454 22,307,213
4 2,083,468 - 2,083,468
5 1,082,135 17,036 1,099,171
6 9,683,925 37,536 9,721,461
7 3,424,223 - 3,424,223
8 65,650,358 402,431 66,052,789
9 184,522,417
10 35.58%
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(continued)

Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments
not reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

(&%)
(Restated)
2022

HEAR HEAR

SR R RHMY
HRIEH R RRRE SRR

ltems in On-balance  Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
ATT ATT AT T
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
1 16,318,603 137,024 16,455,627
2 14,488,540 254,242 14,742,782
3 26,264,741 443,513 26,708,254
4 2,459,088 147,256 2,606,344
5 1,026,970 182,482 1,209,452
6 7,633,884 148,290 7,782,174
7 3,369,753 - 3,369,753
8 71,561,579 1,312,807 72,874,386

9 181,778,759
10 39.37%
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(continued)

8.

Risk Management

Overview

The Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk management and
emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and business
development. The Group’s risk management objective is to maintain risk
exposures within acceptable level amid the Group’s efforts made to enhance
shareholders’ wealth. The Group has a defined risk appetite statement
approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk that
the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its business goals and to meet
the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk management
governance structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

Credit risk management

For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.1 to
the Financial Statements.

Market risk management

For details of the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to
the Financial Statements.

Interest rate risk management

For details of the Group’s Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer to Note
4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

For details of the Group’s Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3
to the Financial Statements.

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or from external events. Operational risk is
inherent in all banking products, activities, processes and systems, and
confronted by the Group in its day-to -day operational activities.

The Group has put in place effective internal control processes and has
formulated relevant policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The
Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and
authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk management tools or
methodologies such as key risk indicators, self-assessment, operational risk
events reporting and review to identify, assess, monitor and control the risks
inherent in business activities and products, as well as purchase of insurance
to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans are
established to substantiate business operations in the event of an emergency
or disaster. Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are
conducted.
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8.

Risk Management (continued)

Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business
practices, whether genuine or not, causes a potential decline in the customer
base, or lead to costly litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent
in other types of risk and every aspect of business operation and covers a wide
spectrum of issues.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to
continuously monitor reputation risk incidents in the financial industry, so as to
effectively manage and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident.
The Group also adopts robust disclosure mechanism to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps to build confidence in the Group and to
establish a strong public image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial
conditions of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory
sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group may suffer as a
result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The Group
has put in place relevant rules and procedures for legal and compliance risk
management.

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future
negative impacts on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of
the Group because of poor strategic decision-making, improper implementation
of strategies and inadequacies in response to the changing market conditions.
The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk management policy. Key
strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly endorsed by the senior
management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.
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8.

Risk Management (continued)

Climate risk management

Climate risks generally refer to the risks posed by climate change, such as
damage caused by extreme weather events or a decline in asset value in
carbon-intensive sectors. They are broadly classified into physical risk and
transition risk. Physical risk refers to the impacts of climate and weather-related
events and long-term progressive shifts of climate. Transition risk refers to the
financial risk related to the process of adjustment towards a lower-carbon
economy which can be prompted by, for example, changes in climate policy,
technological changes or a change in market sentiment.

1. Governance

The organizational structure of climate risk management consists of the Board
of Directors and the Risk Management Committee, the Senior Management and
functional departments/units.

Board of Directors and Risk Management Committee

The Board of Directors is the top decision-making body for risk management in
our bank and bears ultimate responsibility for climate risk management. The
Board of Directors fulfills its monitoring and oversight responsibilities through
the Risk Management Committee.

Functions of the Risk Management Committee: Reviewing and approving
climate risk strategies proposed by the senior management, ensuring that
appropriate resources, processes, systems, and control measures are in place
to support the implementation of strategies, with clear responsibilities and
divisions of labor, cultivating a top-down climate risk management culture and
integrating climate risk considerations into the bank's business and decision-
making processes, monitoring and managing various types of risks within the
bank and approving high-level risk policies and reviewing significant risk
exposures or transactions.

Senior Management

The Senior Management is responsible for the proper functioning of the bank's
risk management framework. The Risk Management and Internal Control
Committee which is designated by the Senior Management is responsible for
the implementation of the bank's risk management framework and the
monitoring of climate risk limit. It establishes effective reporting channels for
reporting significant risks and exceptions.
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8.

Risk Management (continued)

Climate risk management (continued)
1. Governance (continued)
Three Lines of Defence/ Functional department

The First Line of Defence: Treasury Department, Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, and Mainland Branches serve as the front-line business units
responsible for climate risk. They act as the first line of defence in climate risk
management. For example, they conduct climate risk assessments in customer
guidance, loan applications, loan approvals, post-loan supervision, and loan
reviews.

The Second Line of Defence: Risk Management, Risk Assessment, Legal and
Compliance, Finance, and General Administration form the second line of
defence in climate risk management. They are responsible for establishing
policies, system, and processes, monitoring and managing climate risk. Specific
responsibilities include formulating risk management policies and procedures,
defining methods and procedures for climate risk identification, assessment,
measurement, monitoring, reporting, control, or mitigation. Additionally, they
continuously monitor risk appetite, risk management strategies, risk limits, and
the implementation of risk management policies and procedures. They provide
timely alerts, reporting, and handling of situations that exceed risk appetite, risk
limits, or violate risk management policies and procedures.

The Third Line of Defence: Audit Department serves as the third line of
defence in climate risk management. They are responsible for conducting
internal audits and reviews of climate risk management policies and processes
to ensure comprehensive and effective control of climate risks within the bank.

2, Strategy
Overall Strategy

Actively implementing the national concept of green development and
sustainable development strategy, we will continue to increase support for the
green economy, low-carbon economy, and circular economy. We will also strive
to prevent environmental, social, and governance risks. We are focused on
achieving "carbon peak" and "carbon neutrality" goals, fostering a green
awareness throughout the entire bank, fulfilling our social responsibilities, and
using these efforts to optimize our customer structure, improve service levels,
promote the transformation of the entire sector, and achieve green, healthy, and
high-quality development.

Goals and Visions

The bank strives to become a leader and advocate in green finance. Firstly, we
will refer to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority's Green Classification
Framework Prototype Discussion Paper to establish a roadmap for green
classification. We will implement green classification practices within the bank
and enhance our systems to incorporate relevant processes, providing a
standardized framework for sustainable actions. Secondly, we will actively
promote the concept of green finance and engage in energy-saving and
emission-reducing employee initiatives, promote green procurement, and
implement energy-saving measures in office buildings. Thirdly, we will continue
to engage in green public welfare activities, support green products, and fulfill
our social responsibilities. We aim to integrate the concept of green finance into
our daily work and business activities, fostering a comprehensive green
atmosphere among all staff members. The bank will continually refine its goals
and vision and establish short-term, medium-term and long-term objectives
based on development needs.
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8.

Risk Management (continued)

Climate risk management (continued)
3. Risk Management

The bank will integrate "climate risk management" into our comprehensive risk
management framework and establish a climate risk management system. We
will identify and assess climate risks by analyzing climate factors that impact
traditional risks.

Incorporating Climate Risk into Comprehensive Risk
Management Framework

Climate risk has been included as one of the risk categories in the bank's
comprehensive risk management framework, aligning with the existing
comprehensive risk governance system and three lines of defence.

Climate Risk Identification and Assessment

The bank identifies and assesses climate risks by analyzing climate factors that
impact traditional risks.

Credit Risk: Once climate risk driving factors negatively affect the borrower's
repayment and debt-servicing capacity, or if collateral is damaged or devalued
due to climate risk factors, it increases the bank's credit risk exposure.

Market Risk: When climate risk driving factors that are not yet reflected in
prices or valuations emerge, it may trigger large-scale, sudden, and negative
price adjustments.

Liquidity Risk: Climate risk driving factors can lead to increased liquidity
demands from counterparties, such as withdrawal of deposits or drawing on
credit facilities, impacting the bank's liquidity risk.

Operational Risk: Extreme weather events can disrupt the bank's operations
and/or outsourcing arrangements.

Legal Risk: Legal cases related to climate change that may result in
compensation claims against the bank.

Reputation Risk: As market and consumer preferences for climate-friendly
products, services, and business practices increase, public or stakeholder
expectations and concerns regarding the bank's response to climate change
and support for transition may pose additional reputational risks.

Strategic Risk: Failure to timely respond to evolving market conditions,
implement effective strategies aligned with climate or environmental
preferences and expectations, may lead to loss of competitiveness and market
position for the bank.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(continued)

8.

Risk Management (continued)

Climate risk management (continued)
3. Risk Management (continued)
Climate Risk Factors Integrated into Project Management Process

The bank actively promotes the integration of climate risk considerations into
the credit approval process and establishes a comprehensive climate factor
assessment system.

Pre-credit approval: Within the framework of the Bank's credit policy and
relevant credit guidelines, climate risk assessments are conducted in the
customer guidance, loan application, loan approval, post-loan monitoring, and
loan review processes. Special attention is given to sectors undergoing
transition and upgrading in the areas of renewable energy, pollution control, and
high-energy consumption sectors.

Credit review: The Risk Assessment Department considers climate risk in the
credit applications submitted by business units and conducts credit assessment
on the impact of climate risk to the Bank.

Climate Risk Stress Testing

Stress testing and scenario analysis are key measures we employ to assess
and quantify climate risk. Starting from the characteristics of the asset portfolio,
they cover the major risk exposures influenced by climate risk. These analyses
predict the potential losses the bank may incur when facing climate risks and
evaluate the bank's ability to withstand such losses.

The HKMA released the guidelines for the second round of climate risk stress
testing in April 2023. It requires banks to conduct testing based on specified
short-term and long-term scenarios. Building on the practical experience gained
from participating in the HKMA's 2021 climate risk stress testing pilot program,
we will further enhance our stress testing methods and workflow in accordance
with the latest 2023 guidelines.

The HKMA's second round of climate risk stress testing guidelines, released in
April 2023, continue to focus on the impact of physical risks and transition risks
on financial institutions. Various improvements have been made based on the
lessons learned from the 2021 climate risk stress testing pilot program, such as
expanding the scenarios and increasing assessment requirements. This time,
as the adverse financial impacts of climate risks may coincide with
macroeconomic shocks, the HKMA introduced a new scenario in this climate
risk stress testing to assess the potential impacts of simultaneous economic
and climate change shocks on authorized institutions.
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(continued)

8. Risk Management (continued)

Climate risk management (continued)

3. EEE (&) 3. Risk Management (continued)
FIEEEERHER (8) Climate Risk Stress Testing (continued)
HREHE AER

Scenario Short-term Scenario

SRR R e i o e

Climate Risk Type Transition and Physical Risk

TERRYER R E 2023 £ 20274

Time Horizon 2023 to 2027

TR R R R IE R SOE TS  ACB N ST - B

Scenario Description

The intensification of climate risks and economic impacts brings overlapping pressures, including:
AR

R [ EHR AR - G 20235485 [ BRI » LA il e (o A AR Re T - AR oK
RWERD > HEDHE SR Nk -

Transition Risk :

China is introducing a carbon tax starting from 2023, with annual increases, as part of the
accelerated transition towards a low-carbon economy.There is a shift towards the use of
renewable energy, resulting in a significant decline in coal demand and a sharp drop in coal prices.
R

MRS - A0 B, - BRRT o SUREER L HEEEZ RN BOEEE

Physical Risk :

Extreme weather events such as typhoons and heavy rainfall are occurring more frequently,
causing damage to assets and impacting business operations.

s

A S BRECRTR S $AMN R > 1 SRS BRI AR -
ZNHEOR R N FETE B BEEBRORER » At S E(CDP) L ERILAE - VIR K
FERFEEE

Economic Impact :

Global economic slowdown and reduced external demand, coupled with a sluggish property
market in mainland China, lead to a slowdown in the mainland economy.

The mainland economic slowdown, combined with the impact of high US interest rates, results in
an economic recession in Hong Kong, with a contraction in GDP, worsening property prices, and
rising unemployment rates.
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(continued)

8. Risk Management (continued)

KEEREHE (&) Climate risk management (continued)
3. EEE (&) 3. Risk Management (continued)
FIEEEERHER (8) Climate Risk Stress Testing (continued)
ERLHE REAER

Scenario Long-term Scenario

RERERREE Y i g R S R B

Climate Risk Type Transition and Physical Risk

TR R 20234F 2 20504F

Time Horizon 2023 to 2050

- xig B -

Scenario Description

TLRIERAUTENR VIREERCE - IR E E AR AR R IR SRR IR HIE TR bATKELIT2'C BV
T o 7202320504 - BiR{EFIZMT LT o i A FrrV A B i - B e R B pE S
/N o EEREOEATEIU IS FEAT SRS - (ERERIIARE - SZ2aa i vl FpE R A IR -

Orderly Transition :

Take immediate action to reduce carbon emissions, aiming to limit global warming to below 2°C
above pre-industrial levels by the end of this century. Carbon prices gradually rise from 2023 to
2050. With orderly transition policy measures, physical and transition risks are relatively smaller.
The global economy experiences short-term adjustments in the early stages of transition but
benefits in the long term from sustainable productivity transformation.

SR

B F2030F A HEHAYRMEECR - P TEIEE - FEIRAGEE DIBERIEIE - DIEIRAEAR TR
BRI IR HIE2 CLUTAY B AR - BriVBCRIE S E0E (FR - SO RIEE - FEBCRITEZR
FY20304E(X, - FHIAMEARAE I (UmAEh - IBAREESTHRF IR -

Disorderly Transition :

New climate policies are only introduced by 2030. Due to delayed action, strong policy measures
are needed to achieve the goal of limiting global warming to below 2°C by the end of this century.
The new policy measures result in a surge in carbon pricing and slower economic growth. In the
2030s, after the policy implementation, inflationary pressures may arise due to the shortage of
alternative energy sources.

AITEH (4 TR EHHZRIRE
s EERE - BRIERERE - R
b HEFT R ST MG SE T AT - PARFAG R
BB 2 > R ECsR R A
s BBt T T VB E R BB B - E B
T JE e P 2 R AL s 4R e DR
JBE ST G BE B A4S R -

The bank conducts regular (annually) and ad-hoc stress testing or scenario
analysis on credit risk, operational risk, and market risk affected by climate risk.
These assessments aim to evaluate the potential impacts of climate risk. The
bank also records potential risks or deficiencies in the methodology or
assumptions of the models used. The results of stress testing or scenario
analysis are regularly reported to the Risk Management Committee and the
Senior Management.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(continued)

8.

Risk Management (continued)

Capital management

For details of the Group’s Capital management, please refer to Note 4.4 to the
Financial Statements.

Stress testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress testing.
Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures under
stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units in accordance with the principles
stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by
the RC. The RMD reports the combined stress test results of the Group to the
Board and RC regularly.
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Senior Management

Executive Director and Chief Executive
Zheng Wei

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Wong Siu Man

Chief Audit Officer
Lee Fai Ming

Deputy Chief Executive
Fung Chi Lap Pierre

Assistant Chief Executive
Chang Yu Man

Chief Information Officer cum Chief Operations Officer

Wang Zhi Qiang

Business Director
Wang Bing Ling

Chief Risk Officer
Ying Qianfan

Company Secretary
Chan Sze Wai
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THTHEE

Branch Network

AT
BRANCH (Br.)
BBE

HONG KONG ISLAND

HEAT
Central Br.

BlwzEpakn
North Point Br.

TS
Wanchai Br.

RS
Sheung Wan Br.

P17

Western Br.

B0 g AT
Quarry Bay Br.

BT
Aberdeen Br.

T
KOWLOON

AL TT
Hung Hom Br.

BUBEOAT
Kwun Tong Br.

FIKIB T
Sham Shui Po Br.

W AT
San Po Kong Br.

SRR T
Yau Ma Tei Br.

HUEDTT

Castle Peak Road Br.

FUBEE T

Kowloon Bay Br.

KBS
Tokwawan Br.

HELNTT
Tsz Wan Shan Br.

buA I
ADDRESS

EATIREREES 78 5%
No. 78 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, H.K.

FAILATLEE 390-394 SR T
G/F, No. 390-394 King's Road, North Point, H.K.

TEEB{TEFERE 323-331 i CAID
Shop C & D, G/F, No. 323-331 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, H.K.

EHH FIREEAES 315-319 58T 3 5FH
Shop 3, G/F, No. 315-319 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, H.K.

BTN 518 f 520 SEHEA M T

G/F, Luen Wah Mansion, No.518 & 520 Queen's Road West, Hong Kong

AR fORSLEE 10685 SEaE LM~ C B
Unit C, G/F, Eastern Centre, 1065 King's Road, Quarry Bay, H.K.

TBT TR IE 138-140 ST
G/F, No. 138-140 Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, H.K.

FUREAT R - % 23-25 S
G/F, No. 23-25 Gillies Avenue South, Hung Hom, Kin.

JUREBIEE 398-402 St T A Bifir
Unit A, G/F, No. 398-402 Kwun Tong Road, Kin.

JUHEATKIS 1 i 235-237 ST
G/F, No. 235-237 Laichikok Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

FUBE R e R 9 1E 61-63 SRt T
G/F, No. 61-63 Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kin.

JUBE R FORHET 117-119 53t T
G/F, No. 117-119 Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Kin.

TUREF KIS A LI 226-228 S T
G/F, No. 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

FUBES LB R SRR eIt T 10 K2 10A 52d

Shop 10 & 10A, G/F, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kin.

JUHETJIVEE 78-80W 5t I 11-13 54
Shop 11-13, G/F, No. 78-80W To Kwa Wan Road, Kin.

FUBBZEE L0, 7 1 7T03A 5REH
Shop 703A, 7/F, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, Kin.
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G5
TELEPHONE

(852) 3556 9730

(852) 3556 9731

(852) 3556 9734

(852) 3556 9737

(852) 3556 9739

(852) 3556 9743

(852) 3556 9753

(852) 3556 9732

(852) 3556 9733

(852) 3556 9735

(852) 3556 9736

(852) 3556 9738

(852) 3556 9740

(852) 3556 9741

(852) 3556 9742

(852) 3556 9751
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Branch Network (continued)

TR
BRANCH (Br.)
ey

NEW TERRITORIES

51T
Tuen Mun Br.

ZERAR T
Kwai Hing Estate Br.

R ARFE 1T

Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br.
REYCCRETTT

Belvedere Garden Br.

EEAT
Tsuen Wan Br.

VOHFEARIESIT
Shatin Sui Wo Court Br.

BT
Ma On Shan Br.

e T
Sheung Tak Estate Br.

HEd P
MAINLAND CHINA
EFI 1T

Xiamen Br.

[EFEEL LT
Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br.

&R AT
Xiamen Siming Sub-Br.

NS

Fuzhou Br.

TEINEHE LT
Fuzhou Gulou Sub-Br.

FYNIAT

Shenzhen Br.

FYIFEULSTT

Shenzhen Nanshan Sub-Br.

buA I
ADDRESS

AP e e HAAN.D.S N E& 1 48 N-125 i
Shop N-125, Level 1, Zone N, H.A.N.D.S, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T.

Hr SRS S B ELR N 1 SR
Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T.

W SRR ZEAIEE T 112-114 S
Shop 112-114, G/F, On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T.

s ERIE =BT 5A SEEH
Shop 5A, G/F, Belvedere Square, Belvedere Garden Phase 3, Tsuen Wan,

N.T.

RS DIE 3 131-135 SRR
G/F, No. 131-135 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T.

5D R STER PSS 1 18 F7 5565
Shop F7, 1/F, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T.

Pt BB LR B LSS 3 1 313 i
Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, Bayshore Towers, Ma On Shan, N.T.

S SR BB ) P 1 R 45 2 18 238 S
Shop 238, 2/F, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Estate,

Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

R R I P T R AR R s 90 SR1L(S a5 101-103 J 202 Bt
Unit 101-103 and 202, Lixin Plaza, No. 90 Hubin South Road, Siming District,
Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

PEEEGEM T EEERE TS 158 119-121 % 220 BT
Units 119-121&220,No.1 Longting Liuli, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian

Province, China

T BRI T R B E SRS 182 5 112-123 BT
Unit 112-123, No. 182 Jiahe Road, Siming District, Xiamen, Fujian Province,

China

o EIEE A RN T SR FLPURS 118 SF =R BR b LB 30 18 ~ 32 1 K 33

1

30F/32F-33F, East Tower, Sansheng International Center, No. 118 Wusi
Road, Gulou District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, China

B R A T TS AL YRS 210 SREIFERIE—14
1/F, International Building, No. 210 Wusi Road, Gulou District, Fuzhou, Fujian

Province, China

Hh B R R T fE & A
01 B8yt ~32JE -~ 33 /g

Unit 1, Level 1, Block A, 32F-33F, Rongchao Business Center, No. 6003
Yitian Road, Lianhua Street, Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,

China

R R AT R LU & B E B e B AN B SRR AE 01

01-a EJr ~ 04 Jg 02-a EjT

Unit 01-A, Floor 01, Unit 02-A, Floor 04, Hi-tech Demonstration Building,
Reclamation Zone 6, Yuehai Hi-Tech Zone, Yuehai Street, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, China

Frifzi g 6003 SEssEms e A 1 e

G5
TELEPHONE

(852) 3988 9508

(852) 3556 9745

(852) 3556 9746

(852) 3556 9747

(852) 3988 9518
(852) 3556 9749
(852) 3556 9750

(852) 3556 9752

(86-592) 585 6288

(86-592) 585 6258

(86-592) 585 6278

(86-591) 2831 5555

(86-591) 3810 1555

(86-755) 3690 8888

(86-755) 3293 5336
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